
     

A copy of this document, which comprises a prospectus relating to Tullett Prebon plc ("Tullett Prebon plc" or 
the "Company") prepared in accordance with the Prospectus Rules made under section 73A of the Financial 
Services and Markets Act 2000 ("FSMA"), has been filed with the Financial Conduct Authority ("FCA") and 
made available to the public in accordance with Rule 3.2 of the Prospectus Rules.  This document has been 
approved as a prospectus by the FCA under Section 87A of FSMA.

Applications will be made to the FCA and to the London Stock Exchange for 25,776,523 Consideration Shares
to be admitted to the Official List (premium segment) of the FCA and to trading on the London Stock 
Exchange's main market for listed securities respectively ("Admission").  Admission to the London Stock 
Exchange's main market for listed securities, constitutes admission to listing on a regulated market. No 
application has been, or is currently intended to be, made for such Consideration Shares to be admitted to 
listing or dealt with on any other stock exchange.

This Prospectus has been prepared solely in respect of the Admission and no Consideration Shares 
or other securities are being offered for subscription or sale pursuant to this document. This 
Prospectus is being made publicly available for information purposes only and does not require any action to 
be taken by Shareholders. This Prospectus does not constitute an offer or invitation to any person to 
subscribe for or purchase any securities in the Company or any other entity.

You should read the whole of this document.  In particular, see Part II: "Risk Factors" for a discussion 
of certain risks and other factors that should be considered in connection with Tullett Prebon plc and 
an investment in the Ordinary Shares.

____________________________________________________________________________
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(Incorporated and registered in England and Wales under the Companies Act

with registered number 05807599)

Prospectus

Admission to the Official List and to trading on the London Stock Exchange of 25,776,523
Consideration Shares to be issued in connection with the acquisition of the PVM Group

HSBC

Sponsor

____________________________________________________________________________

HSBC Bank plc, which is authorised by the Prudential Regulation Authority and regulated in the United 
Kingdom by the Financial Conduct Authority and Prudential Regulation Authority, is acting exclusively for the 
Company as its Sponsor and no-one else in connection with Admission and will not be responsible to anyone 
other than the Company for providing the protections afforded to clients of HSBC Bank plc or for providing 
advice in relation to Admission or any other matter referred to herein.

Apart from the responsibilities and liabilities, if any, which may be imposed on HSBC Bank plc by FSMA or the 
regulatory regime established thereunder, HSBC Bank plc accepts no responsibility whatsoever and makes no 
representation or warranty, express or implied, for or in respect of the contents of this document, including its 
accuracy, completeness or verification or for any other statement made or purported to be made by it, or on its 
behalf, in connection with the Company, the Consideration Shares or the Transaction, and nothing in this 
document is, or shall be relied upon as, a promise or representation in this respect, whether as to the past or 
future.  HSBC Bank plc accordingly disclaims to the fullest extent permitted by law all and any responsibility 
and liability whether arising in tort, contract or otherwise (save as referred to above) which it might otherwise 
have in respect of this document or any such statement.

The Consideration Shares have not been and will not be registered under the US Securities Act of 1933 (as 
amended) (the "Securities Act") and may not be offered or sold in the United States of America (the "United 



     

States") or to, or for the account or benefit of, US persons (as defined in Regulation S under the Securities 
Act) except pursuant to an applicable exemption from or in a transaction not subject to the registration 
requirements of the United States Securities Act of 1933 and in compliance with any securities laws of any 
State or any other jurisdiction of the United States.

The distribution of this document and the issue of the Consideration Shares in certain jurisdictions other than 
the United Kingdom may be restricted by law and therefore persons into whose possession this document 
may come should inform themselves about and observe any such restrictions.  Any failure to comply with 
these restrictions may constitute a violation of the securities laws of any such jurisdiction.  No action has been 
or will be taken by the Company or HSBC Bank plc that would permit possession or distribution of this 
document or any other material relating to the Consideration Shares in any country or jurisdiction where action 
for that purpose is required, other than in the United Kingdom.  This document does not constitute an offer of, 
or the solicitation of an offer to buy or subscribe for, Consideration Shares to any person in any jurisdiction to 
whom or in which such offer or solicitation is unlawful and, in particular, is not for distribution in Australia,
Canada, South Africa, the United States or Japan.

The contents of this document should not be construed as legal, business or tax advice.  Each prospective
shareholder should consult his, her or its own legal adviser, independent financial adviser or tax adviser for 
legal, financial or tax advice.
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PART I

SUMMARY

Summaries are made up of disclosure requirements known as 'Elements'. The Elements are 
numbered in Sections A – E (A.1 – E.7).

This summary contains all the Elements required to be included in a summary for this type of 
securities and issuer (defined below). Because some Elements are not required to be addressed,
there may be gaps in the numbering sequence of the Elements.

Even though an Element may be required to be inserted in the summary because of the type of 
securities and issuer, it is possible that no relevant information can be given regarding the Element.
In this case a short description of the Element is included in the summary with the mention of 'not 
applicable'.

Section A – Introduction and warnings

A.1 Introduction: This summary should be read as an introduction to the full text of this 
document.

Any decision to invest in the securities should be based on consideration of 
this document as a whole by the investor. 

Where a claim relating to the information contained in this document is 
brought before a court within the EEA, the plaintiff investor might, under the 
national legislation of the relevant member state of the European Economic 
Area ("EEA State"), have to bear the costs of translating this document 
before the legal proceedings are initiated.

Civil liability attaches only to those persons who have tabled the summary, 
including any translations thereof, but only if the summary is misleading, 
inaccurate or inconsistent when read together with other parts of this 
document or if it does not provide, when read together with the other parts of 
this document, key information in order to aid investors when considering 
whether to invest in such securities.

A.2 Consent for 
intermediaries:

Not applicable. Tullett Prebon is not engaging any financial intermediaries for 
any resale of securities or final placement of securities.

Section B - Issuer 

B.1 Legal and 
commercial 
name:

Tullett Prebon plc.

B.2 Domicile and 
legal form, 
applicable 
legislation and 
country of 
incorporation:

The Company is a public limited company, incorporated in England and 
Wales with registered number 05807599 and its registered office is situated in 
England. The Company operates under the Companies Act.

B.3 Current 
operations and 
principal 
activities:

The Group’s business involves the provision of broking services to 

counterparties operating in the world’s major wholesale OTC and exchange 

traded financial and commodity markets. As an intermediary, the Group 

provides a valuable service to its clients through its ability to create liquidity 

through price and volume discovery to facilitate trading, and to provide 

anonymity and confidentiality for the counterparties. The business offers 

broking services in five major product groups: Fixed Income Securities and 
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their derivatives, Interest Rate Derivatives, Treasury Products, Equities and 

Energy.  The Group also has an Information Sales business and a Risk 

Management Services business.

Principal Activities

Fixed Income Securities

The Group's operations cover the broking of cash bonds including US 

Treasuries, US government agencies, US mortgage-backed securities, US 

municipal bonds, and European government bonds. The fixed income 

business also covers credit products including high-grade and high-yield 

corporate bonds, credit default swaps, and emerging markets bonds. In the 

2013 financial year, the Group's Fixed Income Securities product group 

generated revenue of £225.5 million (2012: £241.0 million).

Interest Rate Derivatives

The Group brokers products covering the full yield curve on a multi-currency 

basis including interest rate swaps in all forms (spread, coupons and basis), 

interest rate options, and forward rate agreements. In the 2013 financial year, 

the Group's Interest Rate Derivatives product group generated revenue of 

£174.2 million (2012: £185.2 million).

Treasury Products

The Group brokers treasury products including spot and forward foreign 

exchange, non-deliverable forwards in non-convertible currencies, foreign 

exchange options, and cash and deposits. In the 2013 financial year, the

Group's Treasury Products product group generated revenue of £211.4 million

(2012: £229.8 million).

Equities

The Group offers broking services in a variety of equity derivative products 

including index and single stock options, and in some cash equity products 

including American depositary receipts and global depositary receipts. In the 

2013 financial year, the Group's Equities product group generated revenue of 

£43.2 million (2012: £42.6 million).

Energy

The Group's broking activities in the energy markets cover a wide variety of 

products in oil (including crude oil, fuel oil, gas oil, gasoline, naphtha and 

derivatives related to those products), power (electricity) and gas, as well as 

in commodities such as metals, coal and soft commodities. In the 2013 

financial year, the Group's Energy product group generated revenue of £102.4 

million (2012: £106.4 million).

Information Sales and Risk Management Services

The Group’s Information Sales business provides high quality independent 

real-time and end of day price information from the wholesale interdealer 
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brokered financial and commodity markets to both major data vendors and 

directly to end users.  The Group’s Risk Management Services business 

provides clients with services to facilitate their post trade management of 

interest rate risk in a number of currencies and date mismatch risk on 

deliverable forward contracts.  In the 2013 financial year these businesses 

generated revenue of £47.0 million (2012: £45.8 million).

The table below shows the Group's revenue for the first six months of 2014 

and for the financial year ended 31 December 2013 broken down by product 

group:

Revenue by product group H1 2014

(£m)

2013 

(£m)

Treasury Products 96.9 211.4

Interest Rate Derivatives 70.6 174.2

Fixed Income 103.0 225.5

Equities 20.3 43.2

Energy 46.6 102.4

Information Sales and Risk 
Management Services

22.9 47.0

Reported 360.3 803.7

Principal Markets

The Group manages its operations on a regional basis. Each region provides 

broking services in the five product groups, information sales and risk 

management services.  

Europe and the Middle East

The Group has offices in London, Paris, Frankfurt, Madrid, Zurich, 

Luxembourg, Warsaw, Geneva, Bahrain and Dubai. The Group has also 

recently opened an office in Johannesburg which is managed as part of the 

region.  Revenue from the Group's activities in Europe and the Middle East for 

the 2013 financial year was £468.7 million (2012: £501.2 million), representing 

58.3% of total Group revenue. Broker headcount in Europe and the Middle 

East at 30 June 2014 was 762, with 599 brokers based in the Group's offices 

in London, and 163 brokers based in offices in Continental Europe and in the 

Middle East.

Americas

The Group has offices in New York, Jersey City, Houston, Toronto and Sao 

Paulo. The Group has also recently opened an office in Mexico City. Revenue 

from the Group's activities in the Americas for the 2013 financial year was 

£233.9 million (2012: £236.9 million), representing 29.1% of total Group 

revenue. Broker headcount in the Americas at 30 June 2014 was 490, with 

441 brokers based in the Group's offices in North America (primarily New 

York and New Jersey), and 49 brokers based in Brazil.
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Asia Pacific

The Group has offices in Singapore, Hong Kong, Tokyo, Sydney, Seoul, 

Jakarta, and Manila.  The Group also operates through associated companies 

with offices in Shanghai, Mumbai and Bangkok. Revenue from the Group's 

activities in Asia Pacific for the 2013 financial year was £101.1 million (2012: 

£112.7 million), representing 12.6% of total Group revenue. Broker headcount 

in Asia Pacific at 30 June 2014 was 343.

The table below shows the Group's revenue for the financial year ended 31 

December 2013 broken down according to region: 

Revenue by region H1 2014

(£m)

2013 

(£m)

Europe and the Middle East 209.0 468.7

Americas 102.7 233.9

Asia Pacific 48.6 101.1

Reported 360.3 803.7

B.4a Significant 
recent trends 
affecting the 
Company and 
its industry

Market conditions were challenging throughout 2013, and remained 
challenging throughout the first half of 2014, as the overall level of activity in 
the financial markets has remained subdued. Although market conditions 
have continued to be challenging in the period since 1 July 2014, the level of 
activity in financial markets has benefited from some pick up in volatility in 
September and October, particularly in the Americas and in Asia Pacific. The 
level of activity in Europe and the Middle East has improved more modestly, 
reflecting the cyclical effect of further flattening and lowering of yield curves 
which continues to dampen trading activity in the region.

The Group generates revenue from commissions it earns by facilitating and 
executing customer orders. The level of revenue is substantially dependent on 
customer trading volumes. The volumes of transactions the Group's 
customers conduct with it are affected by the level of volatility in financial 
markets, by their risk appetite, and by their willingness and ability to trade.

Volatility is one of the key drivers of activity in the financial markets.  There 
was some financial market turbulence during 2013 but periods of higher levels 
of market activity were isolated and were not sustained. Measures of financial 
market volatility reached post financial crisis lows during the first half of 2014, 
which also saw further flattening of yield curves and significant further spread 
compression in bond markets.

Customer trading volumes have also been adversely affected by the more 
onerous regulatory environment applicable to many of the Group’s customers. 
Regulators worldwide have been adopting an increased level of scrutiny in 
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supervising the financial markets and have been generally tightening the 
capital, leverage and liquidity requirements of commercial and investment 
banks, and taking steps to limit or separate their activities in order to reduce 
risk. This has reduced risk appetite and reduced the willingness and ability of 
the Group’s customers to trade.

The introduction of new regulatory reforms directly affecting the operation of 
the OTC derivatives markets has created considerable uncertainty and the 
fragmentation of liquidity pools which also reduced market volumes.  

Consistent with the lower level of market activity, revenue in 2013 was 6% 
lower than in 2012 at constant exchange rates, and revenue in the first half of 
2014 was 15% lower than in the same period in 2013 at constant exchange 
rates. Revenue in the four months July to October 2014 was 4% lower than in 
the same period last year at constant exchange rates, and year to date 
(January to October) revenue was 11% lower than in the same period last 
year at constant exchange rates.

Significant expenditure is being incurred on the regulatory readiness project 
which covers the development, launch and ongoing running costs of new 
electronic platforms and associated infrastructure, and additional compliance 
resources. In 2013, the charge in the income statement for these additional 
costs was 2% of revenue, and was approaching 3% of revenue in the first half 
of 2014.

The Group actively manages its cost base to support its profitability, including 
taking actions designed to preserve the variable nature of broker 
compensation in relation to broking revenue. A number of actions are being 
taken in 2014 to further reduce headcount and other fixed costs. It is currently 
anticipated that this cost improvement programme will reduce annual fixed 
costs by around £40 million through the exit of around 160 front office 
headcount and around 50 back office headcount and vacating office space.
The cost of these actions, including the £3.2 million non-cash write down of 
an employment incentive grant receivable that may not be recoverable due to 
the reduction in headcount, is expected to be around £45m, of which £21
million are non-cash charges. This cost will be charged as an exceptional 
item in the 2014 accounts.

Underlying operating profit in 2013 was £115.4 million, 8% lower than 
reported for 2012, with the underlying operating margin at 14.4%, 0.4% points 
lower than the 14.8% reported for 2012. The adverse impact on operating 
margins from the operational leverage effect of lower broking revenue, and 
from the increased costs associated with the regulatory readiness project, 
were largely offset by the actions to reduce costs in broker compensation and 
other areas. Underlying operating profit for the first half of 2014 was £50.3
million, 30% lower than reported for the first half of 2013, with an underlying 
operating margin of 14.0%, compared with 16.2% reported for the first half of 
2013, and 14.4% reported for the full year 2013.

The Company continues to pursue legal action against BGC in response to 
the raid on the business by BGC Partners Inc. and certain of its subsidiaries in 
the second half of 2009.

The outcome of the FINRA arbitration on the claims against certain of BGC's 
US subsidiaries and certain former employees brought by certain of the 
Group's subsidiary companies in the United States which were raided, along 
with various claims asserted against those subsidiary companies, was 
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determined in July 2014.

The Arbitrators determined that certain of BGC's US subsidiaries and certain 
former Group employees should pay US$33.3 million (£19.5 million) in 
compensatory damages to the Group on account of the claims against them, 
and that the Group's subsidiary companies should pay $6.1 million (£3.5
million) in compensatory damages to a representative of the former equity 
holders of Chapdelaine Corporate Securities & Co. which the Company 
acquired in January 2007 on account of certain of their claims, and $0.2
million (£0.1 million) to one of the Group's former employees. The net £15.8
million arbitration award was received in August 2014.

A separate action is being pursued by the Company and certain of its 
subsidiaries against BGC Partners Inc. in the New Jersey Superior Court, 
alleging, among other causes of action, violations under the NJ Racketeering
Act. The trial in relation to this action has started and is currently scheduled to 
conclude in January 2015.

The £15.2 million charge relating to the cost in 2013 of bringing these actions 
was charged as an exceptional item in the 2013 accounts. The costs relating 
to these actions in the first half of 2014 were £4.4 million, and £3.6 million of 
costs have been incurred in the period from 1 July 2014 to the end of October.

B.5 Description of 
the Company's 
Group and the 
Company's 
position 
therein:

The Company is the ultimate holding company of the Group. The sole 
purpose of the Company is to act as a holding company within the Group. The 
principal trading subsidiaries of the Group are:

Tullett Prebon (Europe) Limited;

Tullett Prebon (Securities) Limited;

Tullett Prebon Americas Corp;

Tullett Prebon Financial Services LLC;

Tullett Prebon (Singapore) Limited;

Tullett Prebon (Hong Kong) Limited;

Tullett Prebon (Japan) Limited; and 

Tullett Prebon Information Limited.

B.6 Interests in the 
Company and 
voting rights:

As at 19 November 2014 (the "Latest Practicable Date"), the following (not 
being Directors, their families, or persons connected, within section 252 of the 
Companies Act 2006) had notified the Company in accordance with DTR 5 of 
their interests in the following voting rights of the issued ordinary share capital 
of the Company:

Name of Shareholder Number of Ordinary 
Shares and vested 
options

Percentage of issued 
share capital

Jupiter Asset 
Management Limited

18,651,200 8.57%

Allianz Global Investors 
Europe GmbH

11,398,535 5.23%

OppenheimerFunds Inc 10,951,454 5.03%

Majedie Asset 
Management Limited

10,947,324 5.03%

Schroders 10,912,044 5.01%
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Invesco 10,895,800 5.00%

Aberdeen Asset
Managers Limited

10,772,958 4.95%

Terry Smith 9,947,658 4.57%

So far as the Company is aware, no person or persons, directly or indirectly, 
jointly or severally, own or exercise or could exercise control over the 
Company.

There are no differences between the voting rights enjoyed by the 
shareholders described above and those enjoyed by any other holder of 
Ordinary Shares.

B.7 Selected key
financial 
information:

The selected financial information set forth below for the financial years ended 
as at 31 December 2013, 2012 and 2011 has been extracted without material 
adjustment from the audited financial statements included in or incorporated 
by reference into this document. 

The selected financial information set forth below for the six months ended 30 
June 2014 and 2013 has been extracted without material adjustment from the 
financial statements included in or incorporated by reference into this 
document.

Consolidated Statement of Income

For the years ended 31 December 2013, 2012 and 2011 and for the six months 
ended 30 June 2014 and 2013

                     

Six	months	

ended	30	

June	2014

(unaudited)	

£m

Six	months	

ended	30	

June	2013

(unaudited)	

£m

Year	ended	

31	

December	

2013	

(audited)

£m

Year	ended	31	

December	

2012	(audited)

£m

Year	ended	

31	

December	

2011	

(audited)

£m

Revenue 360.3 493.8 803.7 850.8 910.2

Underlying 

operating 

profit

50.3 71.4 115.4 125.5 148.4

Charges

relating to 

major legal 

actions

(4.4) (10.3) (15.2) (11.6) (6.6)

Charge 

relating to 

cost 

improvement 

programme / 

restructuring

(28.6) - - (14.8) (11.5)

Goodwill 
- - - (123.0) -
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impairment

Acquisition 

costs
(1.3) - - - -

Reported 

operating 

profit

16.0 61.1 100.2 (23.9) 130.3

Net finance 

costs
(7.1) (8.6) (15.8) (14.2) (12.3)

Other gains 

and losses
- - - - 1.2

Profit/ (loss)

before tax
8.9 52.5 84.4 (38.1) 119.2

Taxation (7.1) (12.9) (20.0) (24.0) (30.3)

Profit/ (loss)

of 

consolidated 

companies

1.8 39.6 64.4 (62.1) 88.9

Share of 

results of 

associates

1.2 0.9 1.4 1.2 1.2

Profit / (Loss) 

for the 

Period

3.0 40.5 65.8 (60.9) 90.1

Consolidated Balance Sheet

For the years ended 31 December 2013, 2012 and 2011 and for the six months 
ended 30 June 2014 and 2013

Six	months	

ended	30	

June	2014

(unaudited)	

£m

Six months	

ended	30	

June	2013

(unaudited)	

£m

Year	

ended	31	

December	

2013	

(audited)

£m

Year	

ended	31	

December	

2012	

(audited)

£m

Year	

ended	31	

December	

2011	

(audited)

£m

Non-current assets 390.1 413.6 389.3 380.3 488.2

Current assets 18,864.8 37,620.4 6,103.0 6,185.3 5,628.7

Total assets 19,254.9 38,034.0 6,492.3 6,565.6 6,116.9

Current liabilities (18,627.5) (37,350.3) (5,842.3) (5,918.8) (5,377.5)

Non-current liabilities (253.8) (266.7) (251.6) (274.8) (263.9)

Total liabilities (18,881.3) (37,617.0) (6,093.9) (6,193.6) (5,641.4)
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Net assets 373.6 417.0 398.4 372.0 475.5

Equity

Share capital 54.4 54.4 54.4 54.4 53.8

Share premium 17.1 17.1 17.1 17.1 9.9

Reverse acquisition 

reserve
(1,182.3) (1,182.3) (1,182.3) (1,182.3) (1,182.3)

Other reserves 119.0 143.5 123.7 131.5 148.4

Retained earnings 1,364.1 1,381.8 1,383.4 1,348.8 1,442.6

Equity attributable to 

equity holders of the 

parent

372.3 414.5 396.3 369.5 472.4

Minority interests 1.3 2.5 2.1 2.5 3.1

Total Equity 373.6 417.0 398.4 372.0 475.5

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

For the years ended 31 December 2013, 2012 and 2011 and for the six months 
ended 30 June 2014 and 2013

Six	months	
ended	30	
June	2014
(unaudited)	

£m

Six	months	
ended	30	
June	2013
(unaudited)	

£m

Year	
ended	31	
December	
2013	

(audited)
											£m

Year	
ended	31	
December	
2012

(audited)
£m

Year	
ended	31	
December	
2011

(audited)
£m

Net cash from operating 
activities 8.5 27.5 62.1 16.6 95.2

Net cash from
investment activities 17.6 (10.6) (18.4) (23.9) (15.7)

Net cash used in 
financing activities (24.6) (56.4) (68.7) (48.6) (128.2)

Net increase / 
(decrease) in cash and 
cash equivalents

1.5 (39.5) (25.0) (55.9) (48.7)

Cash and cash 
equivalents at the 
beginning of the period

251.6 281.5 281.5 342.0 390.1

Effect of foreign 
exchange rates (2.7) 4.9 (4.9) (4.6) 0.6

Cash and cash 
equivalents at the end of 
the period

250.4 246.9 251.6 281.5 342.0

The Group generates revenue from commissions it earns by facilitating and 
executing customer orders, and the level of revenue is substantially 
dependent on customer trading volumes.  The volumes of transactions are 
affected by the level of volatility in financial markets, by customers’ risk 
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appetite and by their willingness and ability to trade.  The Group’s revenue 
was lower in 2012 than in 2011 and was lower in 2013 than in 2012 due to the 
lower level of market activity in 2012 than in 2011, and in 2013 than in 2012, 
reflecting lower levels of financial market volatility and a reduction in the 
willingness and ability of customers to trade. Consistent with the lower level of 
market activity, revenue in the first half of 2014 was 15% lower than in the 
same period in 2013.

Underlying operating profit was lower in 2012 than in 2011, and was lower in 
2013 than in 2012, and was lower in the first half of 2014 than in the first half 
of 2013, predominantly due to the lower level of revenue.  The most 
significant cost in the business is broker employment costs. As a percentage 
of broking revenue, these costs were unchanged in 2012 compared with 
2011, and were 1.5% points lower in 2013 than in 2012, and were 1.5% points 
lower in the first half of 2014 than in the first half of 2013.  There is operational 
leverage in the business due to the fixed costs and operating margins are 
adversely affected by lower levels of revenue.  The underlying operating 
margin in 2012 of 14.8% was 1.5% points lower than in 2011, and the 
underlying operating margin in 2013 of 14.4% was 0.4% points lower than in 
2012. The underlying operating margin for the first half of 2014 was 14.0%, 
compared with 16.2% reported for the first half of 2013, and 14.4% reported 
for the full year 2013.

Legal action has been and in some cases continues to be taken by the Group 
against BGC and former employees in relation to the raids on the Group’s 
operations in London and North America in 2009.  The costs of these actions, 
and the settlements and awards received as a result, are reported as 
exceptional items in the income statement.  The net charge for these items 
was £6.6 million in 2011, £11.6 million in 2012, and £15.2 million in 2013. The 
Group has incurred £4.4 million of costs in the first half of 2014 in relation to 
these actions.

In anticipation of challenging market conditions and in the light of increased 
costs faced by the business, action was taken at the end of 2011 and during 
the first half of 2012 to reduce fixed costs and to maintain flexibility in the cost 
base.  Through this restructuring programme headcount was reduced by 220, 
over two-thirds from the front office.  The costs associated with achieving 
these reductions are included as exceptional items in the income statement, 
£11.5 million in 2011 and £14.8 million in 2012. 

In light of the continuation of difficult market conditions a number of actions 
are being taken in 2014 to further reduce headcount and other fixed costs. It 
is anticipated that this cost improvement programme will reduce annual fixed 
costs by over £40 million through the exit of around 160 front office headcount 
and around 50 back office headcount and vacating office space. The cost of 
these actions, including the £3.2m non-cash write down of an employment 
incentive grant receivable that may not be recoverable due to the reduction in 
headcount, is expected to be around £45 million, of which £21 million are non-
cash charges. This cost will be charged as an exceptional item in the 2014 
accounts.

The carrying value of goodwill is tested for impairment at least annually.  The 
annual impairment review for the 2012 year end balance sheet concluded that 
the estimated value for the North America region based on its current 
performance and position was £123.0 million less than the balance sheet 
carrying value.  This was recognised as an exceptional item in the income 
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statement in 2012. 

The Group’s net assets reduced from £475.5 million at the end of 2011 to 
£372.0 million at the end of 2012 reflecting the loss for 2012 due to the 
impairment of goodwill recognised in the income statement in 2012.  The 
Group’s net assets increased to £398.4 million at the end of 2013 reflecting 
the net retained profit for the year. As at 30 June 2014 the Group's net assets 
stood at £373.6 million.

The Group has generated cash from its operations to fund investment in the 
business and to provide funds to pay interest and dividends on the Group’s 
capital.  Over the three years 2011 to 2013, the net cash generated from 
operating activities, less the amounts used in investment activities, totalled 
£115.9 million.  The amount paid as dividends to shareholders of the 
Company in that period totalled £107.2 million, with £1.6 million paid as 
dividends to minority interests.   Over that three year period the Group has 
repaid £330 million of debt and raised £200 million (gross of issue costs) of 
new debt.  In the first half of 2014 the net cash generated from operating 
activities, plus the amount from investment activities, totalled £26.1 million, 
and £24.5 million was paid as dividends to shareholders of the Company.

Revenue in the four months July to October 2014 of £233 million was 8% 
lower than in the same period last year.

Save as set out above, there has been no significant change to Tullett 
Prebon’s financial condition and operating results during the period covered 
by the historical key financial information on Tullett Prebon set out in this 
Element or after such period and prior to the latest practicable date before 
publication of this document.

B.8 Select 
unaudited pro 
forma financial 
information:

Not applicable. There have been no transactions resulting in a significant 
gross change since 1 January 2014 and accordingly no pro forma financial 
information is included in this document.

B.9 Profit forecast 
or estimate:

Not applicable. The Company has not made any public profit forecast or profit 
estimate. 

B.10 Nature of any 
qualifications 
in audit report
on the 
historical 
financial 
information:

Not applicable. The audit reports on the Company's audited financial 
statements for the years ended 31 December 2013, 2012 and 2011 are 
unqualified.

B.11 Explanation in 
respect of 
insufficient 
working 
capital:

Not applicable.  The Company is of the opinion that the working capital 
available to the Group is sufficient for its present requirements, that is, for at 
least the next 12 months from the date of publication of this document.

Section C - Securities

C.1 Type and class 
of the 
securities 
being offered 
and admitted 

Ordinary shares in the capital of the Company, comprising Consideration 
Shares to be issued pursuant to the Acquisition.

When admitted to trading, the Consideration Shares will be registered with 
ISIN GB00B1H0DZ51.
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to trading, 
including the 
security 
identification 
number:

C.2 Currency of 
the securities 
issue:

The Consideration Shares are denominated in sterling.

C.3 Number of 
shares in 
issue and par 
value:

As at the date of this document there are 217,739,704 Existing Company 
Shares in issue (all of which are fully paid up).

The Existing Company Shares have a par value of 25 pence each.

C.4 Rights 
attached to the 
securities:

The Ordinary Shares, including Consideration Shares, rank equally for voting 
purposes. On a show of hands, each Shareholder has one vote and on a poll 
each Shareholder has one vote for every Ordinary Share held.

Each Ordinary Share ranks equally for any dividend declared or any 
distributions made on winding up of the Company.

Each Ordinary Share ranks equally in the right to receive a relative proportion 
of shares in the case of a capitalisation of reserves.

C.5 Restrictions 
on free 
transferability 
of the 
securities:

Not applicable.  The Ordinary Shares are, and the Consideration Shares will 
be, freely transferable.

C.6 Admission to 
trading on 
regulated 
market:

The Existing Company Shares are currently admitted to trading on the London 
Stock Exchange's main market for listed securities.

Application will be made for the Consideration Shares to be admitted to 
trading on the London Stock Exchange's main market for listed securities.

The London Stock Exchange's main market is a regulated market.

C.7 Dividend 
policy:

There will be no change in the Company's dividend policy as a result of the 
Acquisition. It is envisaged that the Company will pay an interim dividend in 
November and a final dividend in May of each year.

Section D – Risks

D.1 Key 
information on 
the key risks 
related to the 
Company and 
its industry:

 The primary source of the Group's revenue is commissions earned from 
facilitating and executing customer orders. The Group is currently 
operating in challenging market conditions, characterised by relatively 
short periods of volatility and extended periods of subdued market activity. 
Domestic or international market factors that are outside the Group's 
control could significantly affect customer trading volumes, which could 
significantly reduce the Group's revenue and profitability. 

 The Group has in the past undertaken cost improvement and restructuring 
programmes to manage its cost base to support its profitability as 
circumstances require it.  The Group may in the future take further 
significant action to manage its cost base.   These actions may involve 
significant one-off costs, may have a disruptive effect on the Group’s 
business, and the anticipated benefits of the actions may not be realised 
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in full.

 The Group may not detect, deter or prevent employee misconduct, 
employee errors or fraudulent activity and may suffer financial loss either 
directly or as a consequence of damage to its reputation.

 If the Group fails to maintain computer and communication systems and 
networks adequately it could have a material effect on the performance 
and reliability of such systems and networks, which could materially harm 
the business. In addition, the Group's future success will depend in part 
on its ability to anticipate and adapt to technological advances, evolving 
customer demands and changing standards for technology and systems, 
and to upgrade and expand its systems accordingly in a timely, cost 
efficient and competitive manner.  A particular risk faced by the Group is 
the development by the Group's competitors of new electronic trade 
execution or market information products that give competitors a "first 
mover" advantage.

 The Group’s Matched Principal broking activity and Executing Broker 
activity and the resultant settlement processes expose the Group to both 
market risk and liquidity risk that may reduce its liquidity and adversely 
affect its profitability. The Group does not take proprietary positions in 
financial instruments, but may incur losses as a result of the closure of 
unmatched positions that may arise as a result of an inability to match 
client orders precisely, or through broker error. The Group faces liquidity 
risk from cash collateral or margin deposit calls, which may result from 
volatile market conditions outside the Group's control, operational errors 
or by the Group trading with certain counterparties, and by errors or 
interruptions in the settlement process.

 The Group’s activities give rise to credit risk.  Where the Group brokers on 
a Matched Principal basis it is exposed to the risk of loss should one of 
the counterparties to a transaction default prior to the settlement date and 
the market price of the relevant securities moves adversely before the 
Group replaces the defaulted contract. The Group is also exposed to 
short-term pre-settlement risk where it acts as Executing Broker. Where 
the Group brokers on a Matched Principal basis it is also exposed to 
settlement risk should a counterparty default on its contractual obligation 
to deliver securities or cash after the Group has completed its part of the 
transaction.  The Group is exposed to credit risk should a client fail to pay 
brokerage fees or other invoices.  The Group is also exposed to 
counterparty credit risk on its cash deposits.

 The Group requires financial liquidity to facilitate its operations. Lack of 
sufficient liquidity could adversely impact the Group’s operations. In 
addition to significant cash balances, the Group maintains credit facilities 
provided by the Group’s bankers which may impose certain operating and 
financial restrictions on the Group.  In the longer term, withdrawal or non-
renewal of these facilities could severely impact the Group.

 Changes in market dynamics or structure as a result of new regulations 
directly or indirectly affecting the Group’s activities or its customers, or a 
rapid change in the method of broking in one or more products, could 
significantly harm the Group. New regulations and reforms may affect the 
Group's business directly if they reduce the role of interdealer brokers as 
intermediaries in one or more OTC product markets or impose new 
requirements or rules that the Group is unable satisfactorily to respond to, 
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and indirectly through their impact on customers’ willingness and ability to 
trade. Any inability of the Group to adapt or deliver services that are 
compliant with new regulations could significantly adversely affect its 
competitive position and therefore reduce the revenue and profitability of 
the Group. New regulations may also impact the Group's customers, 
including through increased capital requirements, which may cause a 
reduction in overall trading.

 The markets in which the Group operates are highly competitive and 
competition could intensify in the future. The Group may be adversely 
affected if it is unable to continue to compete effectively for any reason, 
including if its market share is eroded by competitors offering new 
services or existing services to more diverse customers, or if the Group is 
required to reduce its commissions to remain competitive. In addition, 
competition for front office personnel may increase personnel costs or 
result in the loss of capability, customer relationships and expertise to 
competitors. Consolidation among the Group's customers may result in 
additional pricing pressure, or lower volumes.

 The Group operates in a regulated environment that imposes significant 
compliance requirements. Changes in regulations may increase the cost 
and complexity of doing business, or may disadvantage the Group relative 
to its competitors. The failure to comply with regulations could subject the 
Group to sanctions, force it to cease providing certain services, or oblige it 
to change the scope or nature of its operations

 The Group is required to maintain capital in excess of minimum levels in 
each of its regulated entities and in the top holding company.  The amount 
of capital that is required to be held by a particular entity is determined by 
the relevant regulator, and the Group’s capital requirements may increase 
in the future, which could limit the Group’s flexibility regarding its capital 
structure and its ability to pay dividends.  Failure to maintain excesses 
over the minimum levels of capital or failure to comply with the terms of 
the investment firm consolidation waiver could subject the Group to 
sanctions, or force it to change the scope of its operations

D.3 Key 
information on 
the key risks 
related to the 
Acquisition 
and the 
Ordinary 
Shares

 The Acquisition may fail to realise anticipated benefits or may exceed the 
Group's cost expectations or the Group may encounter difficulties in 
achieving the anticipated benefits of the Acquisition.  The value of PVM is 
dependent on its revenue, which it generates from commissions it earns 
by facilitating and executing customer orders and which is substantially 
dependent on customer trading volumes in the oil market, and PVM is 
also reliant on broker retention.  Failure to realise any or all of the 
anticipated benefits of the Acquisition could have a material adverse 
effect on the price of the Ordinary Shares and, if the Group incurs 
significant costs, on the Group's results.  In addition, the actual costs 
incurred by the Group in connection with the Acquisition may exceed 
those currently anticipated and there may be additional, unforeseen costs.

 The Acquisition will result in a dilution of shareholdings of Existing 
Company Shares.  Shareholders will suffer a reduction in their 
proportionate ownership and voting interest in the ordinary share capital 
of the Company as a result of the Acquisition and may be further diluted 
to the extent that the Deferred Consideration Shares are allotted and 
issued.
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Section E – Offer

E.1 Total net 
proceeds and 
estimate of 
total expenses 
of the 
issue/offer, 
including 
estimated 
expenses 
charged to 
investors

There is no offer of the Company's securities and no costs or expenses 
relating to the issue will be charged to investors.

The total consideration for the Acquisition is US$ 160,000,000 (one hundred 
and sixty million US dollars) (the "Consideration"), to be paid to PVM 
Shareholders in the following instalments:

(A) upon Completion 70% of the Consideration ("Initial Consideration"); 
and

(B) 30% of the Consideration to be deferred for three years from the date 
of Completion ("Deferred Period") with payment subject to an 
adjustment mechanism to reflect a minimum level of revenue not 
being achieved during the Deferred Period (the "Deferred 
Consideration").

Pursuant to the Sale and Purchase Agreement, the Initial Consideration will 
be paid to PVM Shareholders by the allotment and issue to the PVM 
Shareholders of the Consideration Shares, or in relation to certain PVM 
Shareholders (the "Electing PVM Shareholders") who have elected to sign a 
deed of variation and election with the Company altering the Sale and 
Purchase Agreement (the "Deed of Variation and Election"), the Initial 
Consideration is expected to be paid in whole or in part from the net proceeds 
of a placing of Consideration Shares allotted and issued directly to institutional 
investors procured by HSBC Bank plc on the Company's behalf.  

Deferred Consideration will be payable to PVM Shareholders in cash or by the 
allotment and issue of new Ordinary Shares in the Company (the "Deferred 
Consideration Shares") or by a combination of cash and Deferred 
Consideration Shares.

The total costs and expenses relating to the issue of this document and to the 
negotiation, preparation and implementation of the Acquisition are estimated 
to amount to approximately £2.6 million, of which £1.1 million relates to the 
Admission.

25,776,523 Consideration Shares will be issued and admitted to the Official 
List and to trading on the London Stock Exchange under this prospectus.

E.2a Reasons for 
the offer, use 
of proceeds 
and estimated 
net amount of 
proceeds

Not applicable. There is no offer of the Company's securities.

E.3 Terms and 
conditions of 
the offer:

Not applicable. There is no offer of the Company's securities.

E.4 Interests 
material to the 
issue/offer, 
including 
conflicting 
interests:

Not applicable. There is no interest, including any conflicting interest, which is 
material to the issue of Consideration Shares.

E.5 Name of 
person 
offering to sell 
the securities:

Not applicable. There is no offer of the Company's securities and there are no 
selling shareholders.

None of the recipients acquiring Consideration Shares pursuant to the 
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Lock-up 
agreement 
details 
including the 
parties 
involved and 
indication of 
the period of 
the lock-up:

Acquisition will enter into a lock-up agreement.

E.6 Amount and 
percentage of 
immediate 
dilution 
resulting from 
the issue

Following the issue of 25,776,523 Consideration Shares pursuant to the 
Acquisition, the Existing Company Shares will represent 89.4% per cent of the 
total issued Enlarged Company Shares immediately following Admission.

E.7 Estimated 
expenses 
charged to the 
investor by the 
Company

Not applicable. There is no offer of the Company's securities and there are no 
commissions, fees or expenses to be charged to investors by the Company.
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PART II

RISK FACTORS

An investment in the Ordinary Shares is subject to a number of risks. Accordingly investors and 
prospective investors should consider the following risks and uncertainties together with all the 
other information set out in this document prior to making any investment decision. If any of the 
following risks actually materialises, the Company's business, financial condition or operating or 
financial results could be materially adversely affected and the value of the Ordinary Shares could 
decline. The risks and uncertainties described below are not the only ones the Company faces.  
Additional risks and uncertainties not presently known to the Directors or that the Directors 
currently deem immaterial may also have a material adverse effect on the Company's business, 
financial condition or operating or financial results and could negatively affect the price of the 
Ordinary Shares and investors could lose all or part of their investment. 

Prospective investors should carefully consider whether an investment in the Ordinary Shares is 
suitable for them in light of the information in this document and their personal circumstances.

Prospective investors should note that the risks relating to the Group, its industry, and the Ordinary 
Shares summarised in the section of this document headed "Summary" are the risks that the 
Directors believe to be the most essential to an assessment by a prospective investor of whether to 
invest in the Ordinary Shares. However, as the risks which the Group faces relate to events and 
depend on circumstances that may or may not occur in the future, prospective investors should 
consider not only the information on the key risks summarised in the section of this document 
headed "Summary" but also, among other things, the risks and uncertainties described below.

References in this Part II to the Group shall be taken to mean the Company and its subsidiary 
undertakings from time to time (including, following the Acquisition and Admission, PVM Group, 
unless the context otherwise requires).

1. RISKS RELATING TO THE GROUP'S BUSINESS

The Group is currently operating in challenging market conditions, characterised by 
relatively short periods of volatility and extended periods of subdued market activity.  
Domestic or international market factors that reduce activity levels could 
significantly reduce the Group’s revenue

The Group generates revenue primarily from commissions it earns by facilitating and 
executing customer orders. These revenue sources are substantially dependent on 
customer trading volumes. The volume of transactions the Group’s customers conduct with 
it will be directly affected by domestic and international market factors that are beyond the 
Group’s control, including:

 economic, political and market developments;

 broad trends in industry and finance;

 changes in trading patterns in the broader marketplace which depend on customer 
confidence levels and risk appetite, both of which may be adversely affected at times 
when the financial markets generally are unsettled;

 price levels and price volatility in the securities, currency, commodities and other 
markets.  In general market volatility tends to increase trading activity although in more 
recent years periods of market volatility have tended to be relatively short;

 legislative and regulatory changes which may generate significant uncertainty and 
therefore reduced activity by customers pending the outcome of such changes;

 actions of competitors, see ‘‘The markets in which the Group operates are highly 
competitive and competition could intensify in the future. If the Group is unable to
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continue to compete effectively for any reason, certain aspects of its business may be 
materially damaged which could result in lower revenue and loss of reputation’’;

 changes in government monetary policies, with the easing of monetary policy in certain 
markets resulting in a flattening of yield curves and the dampening of activity in certain 
asset classes; and

 changes in interest rates, foreign exchange rates and inflation.

Material decreases in trading volumes from period to period may significantly reduce the 
Group’s reported revenue which can contribute to reduced profit levels and lower retained 
earnings.

The Group has in the past undertaken cost improvement and restructuring 
programmes to manage its cost base to support its profitability as circumstances 
require it.  The Group may in the future take further significant action to manage its 
cost base.  These actions may involve significant one-off costs, may have a 
disruptive effect on the Group’s business, and the anticipated benefits of the actions 
may not be realised in full

Action was taken at the end of 2011 and during the first half of 2012 to reduce fixed costs 
and to maintain flexibility in the cost base. Through this restructuring programme, 
headcount was reduced by 220, over two-thirds of which was from the front office, with a 
reduction in annual fixed costs of around £30 million.  The £26.3 million of costs associated 
with achieving this restructuring programme were included as exceptional items in the 
income statements in the Company's 2011 and 2012 Annual Reports.

In light of the continuation of difficult market conditions a number of actions are being taken 
in 2014 to further reduce headcount and other fixed costs. It is anticipated that this cost 
improvement programme will reduce annual fixed costs by over £40 million through the exit 
of around 160 front office headcount and around 50 back office headcount and vacating 
office space. The cost of these actions, including the £3.2 million non-cash write down of 
an employment incentive grant receivable that may not be recoverable due to the reduction 
in headcount, is expected to be around £45 million, of which £21 million are non-cash 
charges. This cost will be charged as an exceptional item in the 2014 accounts.

The Group may undertake further cost improvement and restructuring programmes from 
time to time in the future, and any such future action might involve significant costs, may 
have a disruptive effect on the Group’s business, may harm the Group’s business through 
its impact on capability or employee morale, and the anticipated benefits of any actions 
might not be realised in full.

The Group’s future success depends to a significant degree upon the continued 
contributions of its key personnel and its ability to recruit, train, retain and motivate 
personnel and to ensure that employment contract terms are appropriate

The Group’s future success depends upon the expertise and continued services of certain 
key personnel, including personnel involved in the management and development of the 
business, personnel directly generating revenue, and personnel involved in the 
management of the control functions, and upon its ability to recruit, train, retain and 
motivate qualified and highly trained personnel in all areas of the business. The Group’s 
employment contracts with certain key personnel may include minimum notice periods and 
non-compete provisions and fixed terms with staggered renewal dates, and the Group 
seeks to ensure that it has appropriate succession plans in place, to lessen the impact of 
the departure of a key member of personnel or a team of revenue generators. 
Nevertheless, the Group’s business, its operating results, and its financial condition may be 
adversely affected by the departure of one or more key members of personnel.
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The Group competes with other interdealer brokers for front office personnel and the level 
of this competition is intense, see ‘‘The markets in which the Group operates are highly 
competitive and competition could intensify in the future. If the Group is unable to continue 
to compete effectively for any reason, certain aspects of its business may be materially 
damaged which could result in lower revenue and loss of reputation’’.  If the Group is not 
able to attract and retain highly skilled employees, or if it incurs increased costs associated 
with attracting and retaining personnel, or if it fails to assess training needs adequately or 
deliver appropriate training, this could be substantially detrimental to the Group’s ability to 
compete and would therefore have an adverse effect on its revenue and profitability and 
could harm its reputation.

The Group also faces the risk that any of its employment agreements may contain terms 
under which it is obliged to make payments to an employee in excess of the benefit to the 
business of the employee’s services. In such cases, the Group’s profitability could be 
adversely affected.

The Group may not detect, deter or prevent employee misconduct, employee errors 
or fraudulent activity and may suffer financial loss either directly or as a 
consequence of damage to its reputation

The Group maintains controls designed to mitigate a wide range of operational risks. 
However, these controls will not be able to eliminate the occurrence of these risks.  The 
principal operational risks faced by the Group include:

 Systems – Unauthorised use of systems or data leading to loss of data integrity, 
dissemination of confidential material, introduction of malicious software or the theft of 
intellectual property, see ‘‘Software or systems failure could limit the Group’s ability to 
conduct its operations or impact the Group in other ways’’.

 Employee Error – An employee, whether in the front office or in a control function, fails 
to carry out properly his assigned role, resulting in significant economic loss or damage 
to the Group’s reputation. Employee errors in the front office may give rise to 
losses. This could be caused by residual balances, see “Matched Principal broking and 
the resultant settlement processes expose the Group to both market risk and liquidity 
risk that may reduce its liquidity and adversely affect its profitability”, incorrect charging 
of broker commission on Name Passing trades or other broker errors.

 Fraudulent Transactions – The Group suffers a loss as a consequence of unauthorised 
or fraudulent activity.

 Employee Misconduct – Misconduct including hiding unauthorised activities from the 
Group, improper or unauthorised activities on behalf of customers, improper use of 
confidential information, the use of improper marketing materials, or the inappropriate 
use of authority or influence by current or former personnel.

 Settlements – The unauthorised transfer of funds or the use of incorrect settlement 
instructions leading to loss.

Should the Group’s operational risk controls prove to be inadequate and an operational risk 
occurs, the Group is likely to be adversely impacted and this could result in significant 
damage to the Group’s reputation, a material financial loss or potential litigation and 
regulatory sanctions.

There have been a number of highly publicised cases involving fraud or other misconduct 
by employees of financial services firms in recent years and various investigations have 
been conducted by the FCA in the United Kingdom, the Commodities Futures Trading 
Commission ("CFTC") in the United States and other regulators around the world, including  
in relation to the alleged manipulation of the London Inter-Bank Offer Rate ("LIBOR") which 
have resulted in substantial fines being imposed on a number of institutions. In October 
2014, the Serious Fraud Office in the United Kingdom announced that it had issued 
criminal proceedings against Noel Cryan, a former employee of the Group, in connection 
with the manipulation of LIBOR. The Group has been asked to provide information to the 
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FCA and other regulators and government agencies in connection with their enquiries in 
relation to LIBOR and is cooperating fully with those requests. The Group is currently under 
investigation by the FCA in relation to certain 'wash trades' (trades that are risk free, with 
no commercial rationale or economic purpose, on which brokerage is paid) carried out by 
two former employees, one of whom is Noel Cryan. As part of this investigation the Group 
continues to cooperate with regulators and government agencies.

The Group’s reputation may be damaged by any involvement or the involvement of any of 
its employees or former employees in any regulatory investigation and by any allegations
or findings, even where the associated fine or penalty is not material.  It may also be 
damaged by association where there is a regulatory investigation into, or an allegation or 
finding of fraud or other material misconduct which relates to one of its competitors or 
clients or any of their employees.  If the Group or any of its employees were to be 
implicated in any misconduct uncovered by a regulatory investigation, the Group may be 
subject to the imposition of substantial fines and penalties.  Any involvement of the Group 
in any such regulatory investigation and in proceedings resulting from any allegations or 
findings arising therefrom may place significant strain on management time and resources.

The Group may suffer costs associated with legal action taken to defend its 
business, employees, rights and assets, including intellectual property, and may be 
adversely affected if it is not able to protect its rights. The Group may be subject to 
claims made against it which may result in significant legal costs and settlements

The Group may take legal action to enforce its contractual, intellectual property and other 
legal rights where it believes that those rights have been violated and that legal action is an 
appropriate remedy. The steps the Group has taken, or may take to protect its contractual, 
intellectual property and other legal rights may be inadequate.  Action taken to defend the 
Group’s contractual, intellectual property and other legal rights may be protracted, involve 
the expenditure of significant financial and managerial resources, and may ultimately not 
be successful, which may result in an adverse impact on the Group’s financial position.

The Group may also be subject to a claim of significant economic or reputational 
significance, whether by a third party or an employee. Such claims could include actions 
arising from acts inconsistent with employment law, health and safety laws, contractual 
agreements, from infringements of intellectual property rights, or from personal injury,
diversity or discrimination claims.  The Group may incur significant costs in defending any 
claims, or if any such action is successful, in making payments to resolve the action and 
may suffer reputational damage.

To remain competitive the Group must continue to develop its business.  Failure to 
do so successfully, including the failure to integrate acquisitions effectively could 
adversely impact the Group. Failure to realise the benefits of investments in some 
markets could also affect the Group’s profitability. Changes in the risk profile of the 
Group as a result of developing the business could result in a new or increased 
exposure to risks that could impact the Group

The markets in which the Group operates are dynamic and to remain competitive the 
Group must invest in the development of the business to respond to changes in customer 
demand for its services. This business development activity may include hiring brokers, 
opening offices in new countries, expanding existing offices, providing broking and other 
services in new product markets, serving different types of customers and undertaking 
activities through different business models. Such activity may be achieved through the 
acquisition of businesses or through investment in existing businesses, and may result in 
changes in the risk profile of the Group. Failure to integrate acquisitions effectively or 
failure to manage changes in the Group’s risk profile appropriately or failure to realise the 
benefit of investments in some markets may adversely affect the Group’s business or result 
in it failing to achieve anticipated benefits. The acquisition of businesses can also give rise 
to unforeseen legal, regulatory, contractual, employment or other issues, or significant 



     24

unexpected liabilities or contingencies for which the Group is not fully indemnified.

The Group may need to replace, upgrade and expand its computer and 
communications systems in response to technological or market developments

The Group needs to maintain the computer and communications systems and networks 
that the Group currently operates. Its failure to maintain these systems and networks 
adequately could have a material effect on the performance and reliability of such systems 
and networks, which in turn could materially harm its business.

Further, the markets in which the Group competes are characterised by rapidly changing 
technology, evolving customer demand and uses of its services and the emergence of new 
industry standards and practices that could render its existing technology and systems 
obsolete.  The Group’s future success will depend in part on its ability to anticipate and 
adapt to technological advances, evolving customer demands and changing standards in a 
timely, cost-efficient and competitive manner and to upgrade and expand its systems 
accordingly.  Any upgrades or expansions in technology and the use of technology may 
require significant expenditures of funds.  In the longer term, the Group may not have 
sufficient funds to update and expand its systems adequately, and any upgrade or 
expansion attempts may not be successful and accepted by the marketplace and its 
customers.  Any failure by the Group to update and expand its systems and technology 
adequately or to adapt its systems and technology to evolving customer demands or 
emerging industry standards would have a material effect on the Group’s ability to compete 
effectively which could reduce its revenue and profitability.

A particular risk faced by the Group is the development by the Group’s competitors of new 
electronic trade execution or market information products that gain acceptance in the 
market.  These products could give those competitors a ‘‘first mover’’ advantage that may 
be difficult for the Group to overcome with its own technology.

Loss of access to the Group’s premises or an inability to operate from the Group’s 
facilities could limit the Group’s ability to conduct its operations

The Group’s employees operate from premises that provide the necessary facilities and 
systems to enable them to carry out their roles. The loss of access to these sites or an 
inability to operate from these sites, due to, for example, loss of power, acts of war or 
terrorism, human error, natural disasters, fire, or sabotage, could limit the Group’s ability to 
conduct its operations or impact the Group in other ways.

Whilst the Group has disaster recovery sites, and business continuity plans are in place 
and are regularly tested, these may not cover all activities within the Group. Further, if the 
Group’s business continuity plans do not operate effectively, they may not be adequate to 
correct or mitigate the effects of any of the above eventualities. In addition, the business 
continuity plans or personnel of its third-party service providers may not be adequate to 
correct or mitigate any of the above eventualities or may not be implemented properly.

Software or systems failure could limit the Group’s ability to conduct its operations 
or impact the Group in other ways

The Group is heavily dependent on the capacity and reliability of the computer and 
communications systems supporting its operations, whether owned and operated internally 
or by third parties. These systems include broking platforms essential to transacting 
business and middle office and back office systems required to record, monitor and settle 
transactions. These systems are concentrated at the Group’s operating sites and are 
difficult to replicate.

The performance of these computer and communications systems could deteriorate or fail 
for any number of reasons. These could include loss of power, human error, natural 
disasters, fire, sabotage, hardware or software malfunctions or defects, computer viruses, 
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intentional acts of vandalism, customer error or misuse, lack of proper maintenance or 
monitoring and similar events. If such a degradation or failure were to occur, it could cause, 
among other things:

 significant disruptions in service to the Group’s customers;

 slower response times;

 delays in trade execution;

 failed settlement of trades; and

 incomplete or inaccurate accounting, recording or processing of trades.

Failure of the communications and computer systems and facilities on which the Group 
relies may lead to significant financial losses, litigation or arbitration claims filed by or on 
behalf of its customers and regulatory sanctions. Any such failure could also have a 
negative effect on the Group’s reputation.

The secure transmission of confidential information over public and private networks is a 
critical element of the Group’s operations. Its networks and those of the third-party service 
providers and counterparties with whom the Group trades and its customers may be 
vulnerable to unauthorised access, computer viruses and other security problems, 
including the Group’s inadvertent dissemination of non-public information. The Group’s 
activities will also require the recording, storing, manipulation and dissemination of 
significant amounts of data. Whilst the Group maintains electronic and physical security 
measures, loss of data integrity could occur.

Any failure by the Group to maintain the confidentiality of information or other data security 
failures could impact the Group’s ability to trade effectively and could result in significant 
financial losses, litigation by its customers or counterparties and regulatory sanctions as 
well as adverse reputational effects.

Matched Principal broking and the resultant settlement processes expose the Group 
to both market risk and liquidity risk that may reduce its liquidity and adversely 
affect its profitability

The Group brokers transactions through three distinct broking models: the Name Passing 
model (also known as the Name Give-Up model); the Matched Principal model; and the 
Executing Broker model.

The Group’s Matched Principal activity, where the Group is the counterparty to both sides 
of a matching trade, gives rise to limited market risk as a result of the infrequent residual 
balances which result from the Group’s inability to match client orders precisely, or through 
broker error. Broking illiquid instruments, such as certain emerging markets bonds, may 
elevate the market risk of any residual balances should they occur. The Group’s Executing 
Broker activity, where the Group executes transactions on certain regulated exchanges in 
accordance with client orders and then ‘gives-up’ the trade to the relevant client or its 
clearing member, also gives rise to limited market risk in the event that the client or its 
clearing member fails to take up the position traded, or through broker error.  When 
residual balances occur, the Group’s policy is to close the unmatched position promptly, 
whether or not this results in a loss to the Group, reflecting the fact that the Group’s risk 
management policies, and the terms of its licenses, prevent the Group from taking 
proprietary positions in financial instruments. The Group brokers large value transactions in 
volatile markets and whilst the Group believes it has robust operational controls errors can 
occur and can generate losses.  Any error which gives rise to a significant loss or a series 
of such losses could adversely impact the Group’s profitability and retained earnings, as 
well as damaging its reputation.

The Group’s Matched Principal and Executing Broker activities also give rise to liquidity 
risk. The Group uses settlement agents, and central counterparties where appropriate, to 
effect the settlement of trades. Providers of these facilities generally require cash collateral 
or margin deposits from the Group and providers can call for increased cash collateral or 
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margin deposits to be made at short notice.  Such calls can be driven by volatile market 
conditions outside the Group’s control, operational errors or failures by the Group or a 
customer, or by the Group’s trading with counterparties who are not themselves members 
of a central counterparty.  Additionally, if during the settlement process the Group were to  
receive the underlying security from a seller but were to find itself unable to deliver the 
security onto the purchaser, the Group might be required to fund the settlement balances 
until onward delivery could be effected. This could occur for technical or operational 
reasons, including due to errors in the delivery instructions. Such matters could have a 
significant impact on the Group’s liquidity, and if the Group is unable to access sufficient 
liquidity to enable continued clearing and settlement, or fund the posting of collateral and 
margin deposits, this would severely limit the Group’s ability to trade under the Matched 
Principal and Executing Broker models.

Settlement failures can also give rise to financing charges which may be recoverable from 
the counterparty, but sometimes are not. In instances where the failure to deliver is 
prolonged or widespread, there may also be regulatory capital charges required to be 
taken by the Group which, depending on their size and duration, could limit the Group’s 
flexibility to transact other business, and could adversely affect the Group's profitability and 
retained earnings. 

Customers and counterparties that owe the Group money, securities or other assets 
may default on their obligations to the Group due to bankruptcy, lack of liquidity, 
operational failure or other reasons

Where the Group brokers on a Matched Principal basis it is exposed to the risk of loss 
should one of the counterparties to a transaction default prior to the settlement date, 
requiring the Group to replace the defaulted contract in the market. This is a contingent risk 
in that the Group will only suffer loss if the market price of the securities has moved 
adversely to the original trade price. The Group is also exposed to short term pre-
settlement risk where it acts as an Executing Broker during the period between the 
execution of the trade and the client claiming the trade.

Where the Group brokers on a Matched Principal basis it is exposed to settlement risk 
where a counterparty defaults on its contractual obligation to deliver securities or cash after 
the Group has completed its part of the transaction. Unlike pre-settlement risk, this 
settlement risk exposure is to the full principal value of the transaction. The Group seeks to 
mitigate this risk by effecting settlement on a delivery-versus-payment basis. However, 
these procedures and controls do not eliminate settlement risk and defaults may still occur 
and have a significant impact on the Group’s results and financial condition.

Where the Group operates on a Name Passing basis it is exposed to the risk that the client 
fails to pay the brokerage fee/commissions it is charged. The Group generally invoices 
customers for its Name Passing activities on a monthly basis. Failure or delay in the 
process of collecting invoiced receivables also gives rise to liquidity risk to the Group.

The Group is also exposed to counterparty credit risk in respect of cash deposits held with 
financial institutions. The Group is also exposed to concentration risk in that it may have 
exposures with a counterparty arising through a number of different activities in a number 
of different regions and may also have cash deposits with the same counterparty.

The Group seeks to mitigate its credit risk through the adoption of specific credit risk 
management policies which include the assessment, monitoring and escalation of credit 
risk exposures by dedicated credit risk management teams.  However, these procedures 
cannot eliminate all defaults, particularly those that may arise from events or circumstances 
that are difficult to detect or foresee. In addition, reflecting the inter-connected nature of the 
global financial system, concerns about, or a default by, one institution could lead to 
significant systemic liquidity problems, including losses or defaults by other institutions, as 
was the case following the default of Lehman Brothers in 2008.

The Group’s profitability and retained earnings may be materially adversely affected in the 
event of a significant default by any of its customers and counterparties and this could be 
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exacerbated where it has a concentrated exposure to the counterparty or where the default 
arises from, or gives rise to further losses as a result of, systemic risk.

The Group requires access to settlement services and other market infrastructure 
arrangements without which its ability to undertake some or all of its activities would 
be affected

The Group uses various market infrastructure arrangements including settlement services, 
such as Euroclear and Clearstream, and central counterparties, such as the DTCC. Loss of 
access to, or restrictions on the Group’s use of, these services, due to non-compliance with 
membership or participants' requirements, or due to credit or reputational issues, could 
impact the Group’s ability to carry out its activities.

The Group requires financial liquidity to facilitate its day to day operations. Lack of 
sufficient liquidity could adversely impact the Group’s operations

The Group requires financial liquidity to facilitate its operations. In addition to significant 
cash balances, the Group maintains credit facilities provided by the Group’s bankers. The 
Group’s existing credit facilities impose certain operating and financial restrictions on the 
Group, and contain covenants that require the Group to maintain specified financial ratios 
and satisfy specified financial tests, that may limit how the Group conducts its business. In
the longer term, the Group may be unable to renew existing facilities or raise additional 
financing and the withdrawal, non-renewal or a lack of access to credit facilities, whether as 
a result of market conditions, general market disruption or a failure by the Group itself, 
could severely impact the Group.  Nothing in this risk factor should be interpreted as 
qualifying the Working Capital Statement in paragraph 11 of Part XIII of this document.

Damage to the Group’s reputation and other consequences of perceived or actual 
failures in regulatory or governance compliance or in operational, financial or 
governance controls, may materially adversely impact the Group

The Group’s ability to operate, to attract and retain customers and employees, or to raise 
appropriate financing or capital may be adversely affected as a result of its reputation 
becoming damaged. Clients will rely on the Group’s integrity and probity. If the Group fails, 
or appears to fail, to deal promptly and effectively with issues that may give rise to 
reputational risk, its reputation and in turn its business prospects may be materially 
harmed. These issues include, but are not limited to:

 appropriately dealing with potential conflicts of interest;

 complying with all applicable legal and regulatory requirements, see ‘‘The Group 
operates in a regulated environment that imposes costs and significant compliance 
requirements. Changes in regulations may increase the cost and complexity of doing 
business, or may disadvantage the Group relative to its competitors. The failure to 
comply with regulations could subject the Group to sanctions, force it to cease 
providing certain services, or oblige it to change the scope or nature of its operations’’ 
and "The Group may not detect, deter or prevent employee misconduct, employee 
errors or  fraudulent activity and may suffer financial loss either directly or as a 
consequence of damage to its reputation";

 effectively managing customer relationships and ensuring full communication with 
customers;

 avoiding claims of discrimination;

 maintaining effective anti-money laundering, anti-terrorist financing and anti-corruption 
procedures;

 ensuring effective data security, privacy, recordkeeping, sales and trading practices, 
see ‘‘Software or systems failure could limit the Group’s ability to conduct its operations 
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or impact the Group in other ways’’;

 properly identifying and managing the legal, reputational, credit, liquidity and market 
risks inherent in its business, each of which is discussed further in different risk factors 
above; and

 ensuring full compliance with corporate governance and reporting requirements.

Any failure by the Group to address these or any other issues which could adversely affect 
its reputation could result in losses of front office personnel and customers, a reduced
ability to compete effectively, financial losses and potential litigation and regulatory actions 
and penalties against the Group.

Notwithstanding anything in this risk factor, this risk factor should not be taken as implying 
that (i) the Company is unable to comply with its obligations as a company with securities 
admitted to the Official List or (ii) any member of the Group (which will be a supervised firm 
regulated by the FCA) is unable to comply with its obligations as a supervised firm 
regulated by the FCA.

The Group’s financial position and results of operations could be adversely affected 
by changes in interest rates and exchange rates, changes in taxation rates and 
regimes, failure to comply with tax requirements, and from challenges by tax 
authorities

The Group reports its financial results in sterling. However, a significant proportion of the 
Group’s activity is conducted outside the UK in currencies other than sterling. For the 
purposes of preparing its consolidated financial statements, the Group converts the results 
of operations of its subsidiaries which account in other currencies into sterling at period 
average or period-end rates in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards (‘‘IFRS’’). As a result, the Group’s reported results of operations will be affected 
by movements in the exchange rates between sterling and the other currencies in which 
Group companies operate, and these movements can have a significant impact on the 
Group’s results of operations and financial position. The Group also has an exposure to the 
effect of movements in foreign exchange rates on its financial assets and liabilities 
denominated in foreign currencies.

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk in that the rates of interest which it receives on 
its cash deposits and other interest earning assets may not match the rates which it pays 
on its borrowings and other interest bearing liabilities and these differences can affect its 
results of operations in each financial period.

The Group is subject to taxes in the various jurisdictions in which it operates and any 
failure to comply with all local tax rules and regulations may result in penalties and fines 
being imposed on the Group. The Group is exposed to changes in taxation rates and 
regimes which may result in an increased proportion of the Group’s profit being paid in 
taxation, or may result in parts of the Group’s activities becoming less profitable or 
unprofitable through the imposition of higher transaction taxes or indirect taxes borne by 
the Group or its customers. The Group has exposure to historic tax issues including 
through businesses that have been acquired, and the Group may be subject to challenge 
from tax authorities on these or other matters that may result in significant tax payments 
being required to be made in the future.

Changes in the Group’s accounting policies or in accounting standards could 
materially affect how it reports its financial condition and results of operations

From time to time, the International Accounting Standards Board (the ‘‘IASB’’) and/or the 
European Union change the financial accounting and reporting standards that govern the 
preparation of the Group’s financial statements. These changes can be difficult to predict 
and may materially impact how the Group records and reports its financial condition and 
results of operations. In some cases, the Group could be required to apply a new or 
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revised standard retroactively, resulting in restating prior period financial statements. By 
way of example, the IASB has issued amendments to a number of standards which, when 
endorsed and applicable to the Group, are expected to impact its financial statements. 
These standards include IFRS 9, which is expected to impact both the measurement and 
disclosures of financial instruments. IFRS 9 remains to be endorsed by the European 
Union and as such, it is not yet possible to quantify the precise impact of this amended 
standard.  

The EU-endorsed amendments to IAS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’ have been adopted by the 
Group from 1 January 2013 with retrospective application to prior periods. The 
amendments to prior periods change the measurement of various components within the 
defined benefit pension asset, but do not change the overall value of the Group’s 
retirement benefit asset. The Group adopted IFRS 13 ‘Fair Value Measurement' from 1 
January 2013, which impacts upon the measurement of fair value for certain assets and 
liabilities as well as the associated disclosures.

The IASB may make other changes to financial accounting and reporting standards that 
will govern the preparation of the Group’s financial statements, which the Group may adopt 
if determined to be appropriate by its management, or which the Group may be required to 
adopt.  Any such change in the Group’s accounting policies or accounting standards could 
materially affect its reported financial condition and results of operations.

Changes in judgements, estimates and assumptions made by management in the 
application of the Group’s accounting policies may result in significant changes to 
the Group’s reported financial condition and results of operations

Accounting policies and methods are fundamental to how the Group will record and report 
its financial condition and results of operations. In the application of the Group’s accounting 
policies, management must make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the 
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.   
These judgements, estimates and assumptions are based on historical experience and 
other factors that are considered relevant.  Judgements, estimates and assumptions are 
reviewed on an ongoing basis and revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the 
accounting period in which an estimate is revised.

Actual results may differ from these estimates, and revisions to estimates can result in 
significant changes to the carrying value of assets and liabilities.  For example, the Group’s 
net assets reduced from £475.5 million at the end of 2011 to £372.0 million at the end of 
2012 reflecting the loss for 2012 due to the impairment of goodwill recognised in the 
income statement in 2012.  

The Group's management has identified that significant judgements and estimates are 
necessary in the application of certain accounting policies. These include:

 impairment of goodwill and intangible assets – the determination as to whether or not 
goodwill and intangible assets are impaired requires an estimation of the value-in-use 
of the cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated. The value-in-use 
calculation requires estimation of future cash flows expected to arise for the cash-
generating unit, the selection of suitable discount rates and the estimation of future 
growth rates;

 the value of tax related assets and liabilities – in arriving at the current and deferred tax 
liability the Group takes account of tax issues that are subject to ongoing discussions 
with the relevant tax authorities. Liabilities are calculated based on management's 
assessment of relevant information and advice and where outcomes differ from the 
amounts initially recorded, such differences impact current and deferred tax amounts in 
the accounting period in which the outcome is determined;

 the value of provisions – provisions are established by the Group based on 
management's assessment of relevant information and advice available at the time of 
preparing financial statements.  Outcomes are uncertain and dependent on future 
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events and where outcomes differ from management's expectations, differences from 
the amount initially provided will affect profit or loss in the accounting period in which 
the outcome is determined; 

 the value of deferred consideration payable on acquisitions – consideration for 
acquisitions that is contingent on future events is recorded at its fair value as at the 
acquisition date, based on management's assessment of the likelihood of the 
conditions for payment of that consideration being satisfied.  Subsequent changes in 
the fair value of contingent consideration will be reflected in the Group's profit or loss 
for the accounting period in which any re-measurement of the fair value of that 
contingent consideration occurs; and

 the value of the retirement benefit asset – the Group’s retirement benefit asset is the 
net of its defined benefit scheme’s assets and the related defined benefit obligation.  
The defined benefit obligation represents the scheme’s future liabilities, which are 
estimated using actuarial and other financial assumptions, discounted to a current 
value using a discount rate set by reference to market yields on high quality corporate 
bonds.  The value of the defined benefit obligation is sensitive to changes in the 
actuarial, financial and discount rate assumptions, changes to which would be reflected 
in other comprehensive income in the period in which the change occurs. 

Because of the uncertainty surrounding the Group’s management's judgements and the 
estimates pertaining to these matters, the Group may make changes in accounting 
judgements or estimates that have a significant effect on the reported value of the Group’s 
assets and liabilities and the Group’s reported results of operations and financial position, 
which may in turn have a significant effect on the trading price of the Ordinary Shares.

2. RISKS RELATING TO THE INDUSTRY IN WHICH THE GROUP OPERATES

Changes in market dynamics or structure as a result of new regulations directly
or indirectly affecting the Group’s activities or its customers, or a rapid change
in the method of broking in one or more products, could significantly harm the 
Group

In response to the global financial crisis following the collapse of Lehman Brothers in 
2008, regulators worldwide have been adopting an increased level of scrutiny in
supervising the financial markets, and have been developing a number of new
regulations and other reforms designed to strengthen the financial system and to
improve the operation of the world’s financial markets. Many of the detailed rules and
regulations are still in the process of being finalised, and some of those that have
already been agreed are being phased in over time.

These regulations and reforms may affect the Group’s business directly, through their 
impact on the way in which trading in one or more OTC product markets is undertaken 
which may reduce the role of interdealer brokers as intermediaries in those markets, or 
through the introduction of requirements and rules to operate as an intermediary which the 
Group is unable to satisfactorily respond to, and indirectly through their impact on the 
Group’s customers and their willingness and ability to trade.

New regulations, including the Dodd-Frank Act in the United States and revisions to the 
Market in Financial Instruments Directive and other regulations in Europe, may potentially 
redefine some aspects of interdealer broking, including changing the method of broking in
certain product markets, and may create new types of competition between interdealer
brokers and other market intermediaries for execution business. Under Title VII of the 
Dodd-Frank Act, certain activities of the Group relating to OTC derivatives are now
regulated by the CFTC, and on 25 September 2013 the Company announced that the 
CFTC had granted temporary registration as a Swap Execution Facility ("SEF") to tpSEF 
Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. The precise scope and impact of these 
new laws, regulations and proposals on market operating models are yet to be fully 
realised.
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Any inability of the Group to adapt or deliver services that are compliant with the new 
regulations could significantly adversely affect its competitive position and therefore 
reduce the revenue and profitability of the Group. To date, the Group has needed to incur 
certain costs to comply with the new regulations, and even if successful in adapting its 
services to new regulations, the costs of making those adaptations or otherwise complying 
with those regulations may significantly increase the cost base of the Group. There is also 
a possibility that further regulations and reforms affecting the OTC markets may be 
introduced that may adversely affect the role of interdealer brokers or may introduce 
requirements or rules that the Group is unable to meet.

Changing regulation may also impact the activities of the Group’s customers, including 
through increased capital requirements, which may cause a reduction in overall trading 
activity or increased costs in certain markets.  This may in turn reduce the Group’s 
revenue.

The markets in which the Group operates are highly competitive and competition 
could intensify in the future. If the Group is unable to continue to compete 
effectively for any reason, certain aspects of its business may be materially 
damaged which could result in lower revenue and loss of reputation

The Group has numerous current and prospective competitors, both domestic and
international. Some of its competitors and potential competitors may have, in
certain m a r k e t s , larger cus tomer b a s e s , more established name recognition
and greater financial, marketing, technology and personnel resources than the 
Group might have, or may be able to offer services that are disruptive to current market
structures and assumptions. These resources may enable them to, among other
things:

 develop services similar to the Group or new services that are preferred by the 
Group’s customers;

 provide access to trading in products or a range of products that the Group does
not offer;

 provide better execution and lower transaction costs;

 provide new services more quickly and efficiently than the Group can;

 offer better, faster and more reliable technology;

 take greater advantage of new or existing acquisitions, alliances and other 
opportunities;

 more effectively market, promote and sell their services;

 migrate products more quickly or effectively to electronic platforms which could 
move trading activity from the Group;

 better leverage their relationships with their customers, including new classes of
customer; or

 offer better contractual terms to customers.

In addition, n e w or existing competitors could gain access to markets o r products 
i n which the Group currently enjoys a competitive advantage. Competitors may have
a greater ability to offer new services, or existing services to more diverse customers. 
This may erode the Group’s market share. Even if new or existing competitors do
not significantly erode the Group’s market share, they may offer their services at 
lower prices, and the Group may then be required to reduce its commissions to remain 
competitive, which could have a material adverse effect on its profitability.

The Group currently competes with other interdealer brokers for front office personnel. 
The effect of such competition can be to increase front office personnel costs
significantly or can result in the loss of capability, customer relationships and expertise 
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to competitors through the loss of front office personnel to competitors. By way of 
example the Group has, in recent years suffered from predatory actions by a certain 
competitor including raids on the Group’s operations in London and in North America
designed to poach large numbers of brokers. The Group has taken legal action to seek 
to enforce its contractual and other legal rights, but the outcome of such legal action is
not certain, and the Group may suffer reduced profits or prospects as a result of such
competitor activity, which may continue or intensify in the future.

In addition, consolidation among the Group’s customers may cause revenue to be
dependent on a smaller number of customers and may result in additional pricing
pressure. While no single customer currently accounts for a material part of the 
Group’s total revenue, if the Group’s existing customers consolidate and new
customers do not generate offsetting volumes of transactions, then the Group’s 
revenue may become concentrated in a smaller number of customers. In that event, 
the Group’s revenue may be dependent on its continued good relationships with
those customers to a material extent and any adverse change in those relationships
could materially reduce the Group’s revenue.

The Group operates in a regulated environment that imposes significant compliance 
requirements. Changes in regulations may increase the cost and complexity of 
doing business, or may disadvantage the Group relative to its competitors. The 
failure to comply with regulations could subject the Group to sanctions, force it to 
cease providing certain services, or oblige it to change the scope or nature of its 
operations

Regulatory obligations require a significant commitment of resources. The Group’s ability to 
comply with applicable laws, rules and regulations will be largely dependent on its 
establishment and maintenance of compliance, control and reporting systems, as well as 
its ability to attract and retain qualified compliance and other risk management personnel. 
Failure to establish and maintain effective compliance and reporting systems or failure to 
attract and retain personnel who are capable of designing and operating such systems, 
may increase the risk that the Group could breach applicable laws and regulations, thereby 
exposing it to the risk of litigation and investigations and possible sanctions by regulatory 
agencies. These agencies have broad powers to investigate and enforce compliance with 
applicable rules and regulations and to punish non-compliance, and any investigations or 
actions by these agencies could adversely affect the Group, both in terms of its reputation,
and financially to the extent that penalties are imposed. Similarly, any failure of commercial 
management to understand and act upon applicable laws and regulations would present a 
similar risk.

The Group’s lead regulator is the FCA and the Group is required to meet the systems and 
controls requirements of the EU’s Capital Requirements Directive (‘‘CRD’’). The FCA
adopts a risk-based approach to supervision which it undertakes in various ways, including 
through the review of prudential returns, visits to the Group and meetings with senior 
management. In the United States, the Group’s activities are primarily regulated by, 
amongst others, the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority and the Securities and 
Exchange Commission. Under Title VII of the Dodd-Frank Act, certain activities of the 
Group relating to OTC derivatives are now regulated by the CFTC. The Group’s operations 
in other countries will also be subject to relevant local regulatory requirements which may 
change from time to time.

Any significant changes in regulation, including in particular the changes in regulation in the 
United Kingdom and the United States discussed above, may result in rules that are more 
onerous than the existing rules to which the Group is currently subject and the Group may 
incur significant costs in establishing the necessary systems and procedures, and in 
training its front office personnel, to enable it to comply with any new regulations to which it 
becomes subject. In addition, changes in the Group’s regulatory environment may 
disadvantage the Group relative to its competitors operating under different regulatory 
environments which may reduce the Group’s relative competitiveness.
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The compliance requirements imposed by the regulators are designed to ensure the 
integrity of the financial markets and to protect customers and other third parties who deal 
with the Group and are not designed to protect the Group’s investors. Consequently, these 
regulations may serve to limit the Group’s flexibility regarding its capital structure. 
Customer protection and market conduct requirements may also restrict the scope of the 
Group’s activities.

The Group may develop its activities in a way that changes the nature of its customer base 
or the geographic markets in which it operates and this may increase the Group’s 
regulatory burden and the risk of infringement of rules and regulations.

The Group is required to maintain capital in excess of minimum levels in each of its 
regulated entities and in the top holding company.  The amount of capital that is 
required to be held by a particular entity is determined by the relevant regulator, and 
the Group’s capital requirements may increase in the future, which could limit the 
Group’s flexibility regarding its capital structure and its ability to pay dividends.  
Failure to maintain excesses over the minimum levels of capital or failure to comply 
with the terms of the investment firm consolidation waiver could subject the Group 
to sanctions, or force it to change the scope of its operations

The current regulatory regimes under which the Group operates require the maintenance 
of minimum levels of capital in each of its regulated entities. Any changes in the Group’s 
regulatory environment, or the imposition of new or increased regulatory requirements on 
any of the Group’s businesses in the future could require the Group to increase the capital 
held in the top holding company, or in a regulated subsidiary entity. The Group is not 
currently required to meet the own funds requirements on a consolidated basis under CRD 
IV, as it is eligible for and has obtained a derogation from the application of own funds 
requirements on a consolidated basis (the "Waiver") in accordance with Article 15 of the 
Capital Requirements Regulation ("CRR").  Under the terms of the Waiver the Company, 
as the parent company, must maintain financial resources in excess of the sum of the solo 
notional capital resources requirements for each relevant firm within the Group.

To be eligible for the Waiver each investment firm within the Group must fall within either of 
the categories set out in Article 95(1) or Article 96(1) of the CRR and each EU investment 
firm in the Group must meet its relevant own funds requirements. Under the terms of the 
Waiver the Group must eliminate the excess of its own funds requirements compared with 
its own funds ("excess goodwill") over the ten year period to 24 September 2024. The 
amount of the excess goodwill must not exceed the amount determined as at the date the 
Waiver took effect and must be reduced in line with a schedule over the ten years, with the 
first reduction of 25% required to be achieved by March 2017. The Company expects to 
achieve this reduction within its current business plan. The Waiver also sets out conditions 
with respect to the maintenance of financial ratios relating to leverage, debt service and 
debt maturity profile. In order to comply with the terms of the Waiver, the Company may 
need to increase the capital it holds, which may require it to reduce or suspend the 
payment of dividends or, in the longer term, to raise additional equity capital.  

Each of the Group’s regulated entities must hold sufficient capital resources to meet their 
local regulatory capital requirements. These local regulatory capital requirements are 
subject to change either through changes to the relevant rules or their application, or 
through changes to the scale and nature of the underlying business or particular issues 
affecting the business.  For the United Kingdom legal entities regulated by the FCA, the 
capital resources requirement is the higher of (a) the minimum requirements calculated 
under Pillar 1 of Basel II plus a scalar and other add-ons imposed by the FCA, and (b) the 
entity’s own assessment of its requirements under the Internal Capital Adequacy 
Assessment Process ("ICAAP"). The level of the scalar and other add-ons imposed by the 
FCA is subject to change and may increase in the future.  An entity's own assessment of its 
requirements is also subject to change from time to time and may increase in the future.  
Increases in any individual entity’s capital requirements may restrict the ability of an entity 
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to distribute its earnings within the Group or may require the Group to inject additional 
capital into an entity, which may restrict the Company’s ability to pay dividends, or require 
the Group to increase its indebtedness, or, in the longer term, to raise additional equity 
capital.

3. RISKS RELATING TO THE ACQUISITION

The Acquisition may fail to realise anticipated benefits or may exceed the Group's 
cost expectations

There can be no guarantee that the Group will realise any or all of the anticipated benefits 
of the Acquisition as described in Part VIII of the Prospectus, either in a timely manner or at 
all. The value of PVM is dependent on its revenue, which it generates from commissions it 
earns by facilitating and executing customer orders. The level of revenue of PVM is 
substantially dependent on customer trading volumes in the oil market, and PVM is also 
reliant on broker retention. A decline in any of these factors may mean that the Group 
encounters difficulties in achieving the anticipated benefits of the Acquisition. If that 
happens, it could have a material adverse effect on the price of the Ordinary Shares and if 
the Group incurs significant costs, it could also have a material adverse impact on the 
results of the Group. It is expected that the Group will incur a number of costs in relation to 
the Acquisition, including post-completion costs and integration costs. The actual costs of 
the Acquisition may exceed those estimated and there may be further additional and 
unforeseen expenses incurred in connection with the Acquisition.  In addition, the 
Company will incur legal, accounting, transaction fees and other costs relating to the 
Acquisition.

The Acquisition will result in a dilution of shareholdings of Existing Company 
Shares

Shareholders of Existing Company Shares will suffer a reduction in their proportionate 
ownership and voting interest in the ordinary share capital of the Company as a result of 
the Acquisition. The terms of the Acquisition are such that additional Deferred
Consideration Shares may be allotted and issued, which will further dilute Shareholders' 
proportionate ownership and voting interest in the ordinary share capital of the Company.
The number of Deferred Consideration Shares (if any) to be issued and the extent of the 
dilution (if any) arising on such issue is uncertain and will depend on various factors, 
including the extent to which the Deferred Consideration becomes payable, whether the 
Company elects to pay the Deferred Consideration in cash rather than issuing Deferred 
Consideration Shares and the Company's share price at the time of issue. 

4. RISKS RELATING TO THE ORDINARY SHARES

The Company's share price may fluctuate

The Company's share price is generally subject to fluctuation and, in addition, the market 
price of the Ordinary Shares could be subject to significant fluctuations due to a change in 
sentiment in the market specifically regarding the Acquisition. Such risks depend on the 
market's response to the Acquisition and results of operations, and business developments 
of the Group and/or its competitors. Stock markets have recently experienced significant 
price and volume fluctuations that have affected the market prices for securities and which 
may be unrelated to the Group's operating performance or prospects. Furthermore, the 
Group's results of operations and prospects may, from time to time, be below the 
expectations of market analysts and investors. Any of these events could result in a decline 
in the market price of the Ordinary Shares.

The sale of the Company's shares by substantial shareholders could depress the 
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price of the Ordinary Shares

As at the date of this document, the Company's six largest shareholders collectively hold 
33.9 per cent. of the voting share capital of the Company. Subsequent sales by any of 
them (or any other substantial shareholders) of a substantial number of Ordinary Shares 
may significantly reduce the price of the Ordinary Shares. Also, any perceived view that 
any such shareholder might sell substantial numbers of Ordinary Shares could depress the 
price of Ordinary Shares for an unknown period of time.

The Company's ability to continue to pay dividends will depend on revenue, the level 
of profits, and cash flow generated by the Group

Under English company law, a company can only pay cash dividends to the extent that it 
has distributable reserves and cash available for this purpose. As a holding company, the 
Company's ability to pay dividends in the future is affected by a number of factors, 
including having sufficient distributable reserves and its ability to receive sufficient 
dividends from subsidiaries. 

The ability of these subsidiaries to pay dividends and the Company's ability to receive 
distributions from its investments in other entities are subject to applicable local laws and 
regulatory requirements and other restrictions, including, but not limited to, the existence of 
sufficient distributable reserves and cash and applicable tax laws. These laws and 
restrictions could limit the payment of dividends and distributions to the Company by its 
subsidiaries, which could in future restrict the Company's ability to fund other operations or 
to pay a dividend to holders of the Ordinary Shares, which could have an adverse impact 
on the market price of the Ordinary Shares.

The ability of Overseas Shareholders to bring actions or enforce judgments against 
the Company or the Directors may be limited

The ability of an Overseas Shareholder to bring an action against the Company may be 
limited under law. The Company is a public limited company incorporated in England. The 
rights of holders of Ordinary Shares are governed by English law and by the Company's 
Articles of Association. These rights differ from the rights of Shareholders in typical US 
corporations and some other non-UK corporations. An Overseas Shareholder may not be 
able to enforce a judgment against some or all of the Directors and executive officers. The 
majority of Directors and executive officers are residents of the United Kingdom. 
Consequently it may not be possible for an Overseas Shareholder to effect service of 
process upon the Directors and executive officers within the Overseas Shareholder's 
country of residence or to enforce against the Directors and executive officers judgments of 
courts of the Overseas Shareholder's country of residence based on civil liabilities under 
that country's securities laws. There can be no assurance that an Overseas Shareholder 
will be able to enforce any judgments in civil and commercial matters or any judgments 
under the securities laws of countries other than the United Kingdom against the Directors 
or executive officers who are residents of the United Kingdom or countries other than those 
in which judgment is made. In addition, English or other courts may not impose civil liability 
on the Directors or executive officers in any original action based solely on foreign 
securities laws brought against the Company or the Directors in a court of competent 
jurisdiction in England or other countries.
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PART IV

EXPECTED TIMETABLE OF EVENTS

All references to time in this document and in the expected timetable are to the time in London, 
United Kingdom, unless otherwise stated.  Each of the times and dates in the table below are 
indicative only and may be subject to change.

TIMETABLE

            Date

Publication of this document 21 November 2014

Expected date of Completion 26 November 2014

Expected date of Admission and commencement of unconditional dealings in 
Consideration Shares on the London Stock Exchange

26 November 2014

ACQUISITION STATISTICS

Number of Existing Company Shares as at 21 November 2014 217,739,704

Maximum number of Consideration Shares to be issued at Completion pursuant to
the Acquisition

25,776,523

Maximum number of Enlarged Company Shares in issue following Completion 
(assuming the maximum number of Consideration Shares are issued pursuant to the
Acquisition) 243,516,227

Consideration Shares as a percentage of the Enlarged Company Shares 10.6%
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PART V

IMPORTANT INFORMATION

1. FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This document contains forward-looking statements regarding the financial condition, results of 
operations, cash flows, dividends, financing plans, business strategies, operating efficiencies or 
synergies, budgets, capital and other expenditures, competitive positions, growth opportunities, 
plans and objectives of management and other matters relating to the Group.  Statements in this 
document that are not historical facts are hereby identified as "forward-looking statements".  In 
some instances, these forward-looking statements can be identified by the use of forward-looking 
terminology, including the terms "believes", "expects", "intends", "may", "will" or "should" or, in each 
case, their negative or other variations or comparable terminology. Such forward-looking 
statements, including, without limitation, those relating to the future business prospects, revenues, 
liquidity, capital needs, interest costs and income, in each case relating to the Company wherever 
they occur in this document, are necessarily based on assumptions reflecting the views of the 
Company, involve a number of risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ 
materially from those suggested by the forward-looking statements and speak only as at the date of 
this document.

Important factors which may cause actual results to differ include, but are not limited to, those 
described in Part II "Risk Factors" of this document.

Save as required by law, or by the Listing, Prospectus or Disclosure and Transparency Rules, the 
Company undertakes no obligation to release publicly the results of any revisions to any forward-
looking statements in this document that may occur due to any change in the Directors'
expectations or to reflect events or circumstances after the date of this document.  Nothing in this 
section 1 should be interpreted as qualifying the Working Capital Statement in paragraph 11 of Part 
XIII of this document.

2. MARKET AND INDUSTRY DATA

All references to market data, industry statistics and forecasts and other information in this 
document consist of estimates based on data and reports compiled by industry professionals, 
organisations, analysts, publicly available information or the Company's own knowledge of its sales 
and markets.  The third party data used herein comprises the Group's rankings by Risk Magazine's 
annual interdealer rankings, as well as Tullett Prebon Information's awards by the Inside Market 
Data Awards. The Company confirms that information sourced from a third party has been 
accurately reproduced, and as far as the Company is aware and is able to ascertain from 
information published by that third party, no facts have been omitted which would render the 
reproduced information inaccurate or misleading.  In addition, in many cases the Company has 
made statements in this document regarding its industry and its position in the industry based on 
industry forecasts, market research and internal surveys as well as its own experience.

3. SOURCES AND PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Unless otherwise indicated, financial information relating to the Company for the financial years 
ended 31 December 2013, 2012 and 2011 and the six months ended 30 June 2014 and 2013 has 
been extracted without material adjustment from the financial information in, or which has been 
incorporated by reference into, Part X.

4. PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

All references to "pounds", "pounds sterling", "sterling", "£", "pence", and "p" are to the lawful 
currency of the United Kingdom.  The Group prepares its financial statements in pounds sterling.

Percentages in tables have been rounded and accordingly may not add up to 100 per cent.  
Certain financial data has been rounded.  As a result of this rounding, the totals of data presented 
in this document may vary slightly from the actual arithmetic totals of such data.
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5. US SECURITIES LAW CONSIDERATIONS

The Consideration Shares have not been, and will not be, registered under the Securities Act, or 
with any securities regulatory authority of any state or any other jurisdiction of the United States or 
under the applicable securities laws of any jurisdiction outside the United Kingdom. Accordingly, 
the Consideration Shares may not be offered, sold or otherwise transferred, directly or indirectly, in 
or into any such jurisdiction or for the account or benefit of citizens or residents of any such 
jurisdiction except under circumstances that will result in compliance with any applicable rules and 
regulations of such jurisdiction. Investors outside the United Kingdom are required by the Company 
to inform themselves about and observe any restrictions on the offer, sale or transfer of 
Consideration Shares.

6. INFORMATION NOT CONTAINED IN THIS DOCUMENT

No person has been authorised to give any information or make any representation other than 
those contained in this document and, if given or made, such information or representation must 
not be relied upon as having been so authorised by the Company, the Directors or HSBC.  In 
particular, the content of the website does not form part of this document and should not be relied 
upon. 

Without prejudice to any legal or regulatory obligation on the Company to publish a supplementary 
prospectus neither the delivery of this document, nor Admission, shall under any circumstances 
create any implication that there has been no change in the affairs of the Company or the Group 
since the date of this document or that the information contained herein is correct at any time 
subsequent to the date of this document.

7. CREDIT RATING AGENCY

This document includes details of the Group's credit rating provided by Fitch.  Fitch is a registered 
Credit Rating Agency in accordance with Regulation (EC) No 1060/2009 of the European 
Parliament and of the Council of 16 September 2009.

8. TIME OF DAY

Unless otherwise indicated, all references in this Prospectus to time of day are references to the 
time in London. 

9. DEFINITIONS

Certain terms used in this document, including capitalised terms and certain technical terms, are 
defined and explained in Part XIV "Definitions".
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PART VI

BUSINESS OVERVIEW OF THE COMPANY

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 The Group’s business involves the provision of broking services to counterparties operating 
in the world’s major wholesale OTC and exchange traded financial and commodity 
markets. As an intermediary, the Group provides a valuable service to its clients through its 
ability to create liquidity through price and volume discovery to facilitate trading, and to 
provide anonymity and confidentiality for counterparties.

1.2 The business offers broking services in five major product groups: fixed income securities 
and their derivatives; interest rate derivatives; treasury products; equities; and energy.

1.3 The Group's broking business is conducted through voice broking, where brokers, 
supported by proprietary screens displaying historical data, analytics and real-time prices, 
discover price and liquidity for their clients; and through electronic platforms, which 
complement and support the voice broking capability.

1.4 The business brokers products on either a Name Passing (also known as Name Give-Up) 
basis (where all counterparties to a transaction settle directly with each other), a Matched 
Principal basis (where the Group is a counterparty to both sides of a matching trade), or an 
Executing Broker basis (where the Group executes transactions on certain regulated 
exchanges in accordance with client orders and then 'gives-up' the trade to the relevant 
client or its clearing member). The Group does not take any proprietary positions.

1.5 The Group also has an established information sales business ("Tullett Prebon 
Information" or the "Information Sales business"), which collects, cleanses, collates and 
distributes real-time information to data providers, and a Risk Management Services 
business, which provides clients with post-trade, multi-product matching services. 

1.6 The Group operates in Europe, the Middle East, Africa, North and South America and Asia 
Pacific.  Its principal offices are in London, New York, New Jersey, Singapore, Hong Kong 
and Tokyo.

2. HISTORY

2.1 The Group can trace its roots back to 1868 when Marshall & Son was established as an 
exchange brokerage company. The Marshall family remained in active control of the 
business, which was renamed M.W. Marshall and Co., through to 1967. During the 1970s 
and 1980s the business, along with a number of other independent broking houses, was 
consolidated by Mercantile House Holdings. In 1999 the M.W. Marshall business merged 
with Prebon Yamane to form Prebon Marshall Yamane.

2.2 In 2003 Collins Stewart Holdings plc, a financial services group whose principal activities 
were institutional and private client stock broking and wealth management, acquired Tullett 
plc, and the enlarged business was renamed Collins Stewart Tullett plc. Tullett plc can 
trace its origins back to 1971 when it was originally founded as Tullett & Riley.  The Tullett 
business merged with Liberty Brokerage in 1999 and was renamed Tullett Liberty in 2000.

2.3 In 2004 Collins Stewart Tullett plc acquired Prebon Marshall Yamane and integrated the 
two interdealer broker businesses to form Tullett Prebon.

2.4 In 2006 through a court approved scheme of arrangement, Collins Stewart Tullett plc 
formed a new parent company, Tullett Prebon plc, which acquired Collins Stewart Tullett 
plc and demerged the stock broking and wealth management business to form a separate 
listed company, Collins Stewart plc. The demerger was effective on 19 December 2006 
when Tullett Prebon plc became the listed parent of the interdealer broker business.



     41

2.5 Since December 2006 the Company has continued to acquire businesses to extend its 
product and geographic coverage, including the oil products brokers Primex and Aspen, 
both based in London, in 2008, Convenção, an interdealer broker based in Brazil, in 2011, 
and Chapdelaine & Co., a New York based municipal bonds broker, in 2012.

3. STRATEGY

3.1 The Group’s strategy is to continue to develop its business, operating as an intermediary in 
the wholesale OTC and exchange-traded financial and commodity markets, with the scale 
and breadth to deliver superior performance and returns, underpinned by strong financial 
management disciplines, and without actively taking credit and market risk.

3.2 The business objectives to deliver this strategy are:

3.2.1 to provide a high quality broking service to clients, facilitating their trading activity 
through developing and maintaining strong pools of liquidity across all major 
asset classes and all major financial centres.  The key actions to meet this 
objective include:

(A) attracting and retaining broking expertise and client relationships;

(B) providing clients with a variety of execution methods consistent with 
market demand and evolving regulatory requirements; and

(C) maintaining the business’s reputation for trustworthiness and integrity in 
the financial markets.

3.2.2 to develop revenue streams from non-broking services related to financial and 
commodity markets.  The key actions to meet this objective include:

(A) developing the Group’s information sales business through extension of 
its product offering and expansion of its customer base; and

(B) identifying potential opportunities to acquire or develop other value added 
non-broking services capable of generating an adequate financial return.

3.2.3 to deliver superior and consistent operating margins and return on capital.  The 
key actions to achieve this objective include:

(A) maintaining cost discipline and flexibility in the cost base;

(B) maintaining a prudent financial structure; and

(C) operating an effective risk management governance structure and risk 
management framework so that the Group can manage its risks within its 
risk appetite

4. BUSINESS MODEL 

4.1 The Group’s business model is based on generating a return from providing a facilitation 
service to clients, enabling them to trade efficiently and effectively. This service can be 
provided without actively taking credit and market risk.

4.2 The Group does not actively seek risk in order to generate a return but is willing to accept a 
limited amount of risk as a consequence of its broking activities, principally counterparty 
credit risk and operational risk. This is reflected in the business model adopted by the 
Group whereby it acts only as an intermediary in the financial markets. The Group’s risk 
management principles and policies explicitly prohibit any active taking of trading risk and 
the Group does not trade for its own account. However, whilst the Group does not actively 
seek to assume risk as part of its business model, the Group is exposed to certain risks as 
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a consequence of its broking activity, primarily counterparty credit risk and operational risk, 
and also, to a limited extent, market risk.

4.3 The broking business of the Group is conducted through three distinct broking models: the 
Name Passing model (also known as Name Give Up); the Matched Principal model; and 
the Executing Broker model.

4.4 Around 70% of the Group’s broking revenue is derived from Name Passing activities, 
where the Group is not a counterparty to the trade, and where its exposure to a client is 
limited to outstanding invoices for commission. The level of invoiced receivables is 
monitored closely, by individual client and in aggregate, and there have been very few 
instances in the past few years when invoiced receivables have not been collected.

4.5 Around 25% of the Group's broking revenue is derived from Matched Principal activities,
where the Group is the counterparty to both sides of a matching trade and consequently 
bears counterparty credit risk during the period between execution and settlement of the 
trade. Once a Matched Principal transaction has settled (usually 1-3 days after trade date), 
there is no ongoing risk for the business. To mitigate settlement risk the business seeks 
always to undertake transactions on a strict delivery-versus-payment basis. In the event 
that a client defaults prior to settlement in a Matched Principal trade, the Group’s exposure 
is not to the principal amount but to the movement in the market value of the underlying 
instrument, and so the Group’s exposure becomes a market risk. This risk is mitigated by 
the use of central counterparty services and other default risk transfer agreements, where 
appropriate, and by taking swift action to close out any position that arises as a result of a 
client default. In addition to credit risk, the Group’s Matched Principal activity also gives rise 
to limited market risk as a result of the infrequent residual balances which result from the 
Group’s failure to match clients’ orders precisely or through broker error.

4.6 Around 5% of the Group’s revenue is derived from the business operating as an Executing 
Broker, under an International Uniform Brokerage Execution Give-up agreement (or 
equivalent), whereby the Group executes transactions on certain regulated exchanges as 
per client orders, and then ‘gives-up’ the trade to the relevant client (or its clearing 
member). The Group is exposed to short term pre-settlement risk during the period 
between the execution of the trade and the client claiming the trade. This exposure is 
minimal, as under the terms of the ‘give-up’ agreements the Group has in place with its 
clients, trades must be claimed by the end of the trade day. Once the trade has been 
claimed, the Group’s only exposure to the client is for the invoiced receivables.

5. PRINCIPAL STRENGTHS

The Directors believe that the principal strengths of the Group are:

5.1 Quality of broking service

The business provides a valuable service to clients through its ability to create liquidity 
through price and volume discovery to facilitate trading in a wide range of financial 
instruments. The business employs experienced brokers with established relationships with 
potential counterparties in the wholesale financial markets, who work to bring together 
buyers and sellers of financial instruments to provide depth of liquidity and increased 
certainty of trading. The quality of the broking service the business provides to clients has 
been recognised by the Group being voted number one in more product categories than 
any other single interdealer broker in Risk Magazine’s annual interdealer rankings in each 
of the last five years.

5.2 Breadth of product and geographic coverage

The Group has broking expertise in all the main asset classes that are traded in the OTC 
markets. The Group is a member of the major derivatives exchanges and offers broking 
services in listed, exchange traded, derivatives. The Group also offers broking services in 
physical commodities.  As markets evolve and new financial instruments are introduced the 
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Group has been able to adapt its broking offering to facilitate client trading activity in those 
instruments. The group has a presence in all of the world’s major financial centres and has 
continued to expand its geographic footprint by establishing local offices in smaller and 
emerging financial centres including Dubai, Madrid, Geneva, Johannesburg, Sao Paulo 
and Mexico City, which facilitates the development of broking services tailored to specific 
markets.

5.3 Variety of execution methods

The Group’s brokers discover price and liquidity for their clients through voice broking and 
through electronic platforms which complement and support the voice broking activity.  The 
Group has developed electronic platforms to provide clients with a variety of execution 
methods to offer the flexibility to transact either entirely electronically or via the business’s 
comprehensive voice execution broker network. This hybrid model is consistent with the 
nature and operation of the majority of the OTC product markets which depend upon the 
intervention and support of voice brokers for their liquidity and effective operation. The 
Group has launched a wide range of platforms across the various asset classes reflecting 
market demand and changing regulatory requirements. We believe that these regulatory 
reforms reinforce the role of the intermediary in the OTC markets, and the introduction of 
more electronic platforms to service these markets reflects an evolution of the facilitation 
service that the business provides, rather than fundamentally changing the way in which 
OTC markets operate. As a result of the investment that has been made in these platforms 
and associated infrastructure, we believe that the Group is well positioned to respond to 
and benefit from changes in the way in which OTC product markets operate as a result of 
the regulatory reforms of these markets.

5.4 Limited exposure to market and credit risk

The Group’s business model is based on generating a return from providing a facilitation 
service to clients, enabling them to trade efficiently and effectively. This service can be 
provided without actively taking credit and market risk.  The business does not take trading 
risk and does not hold proprietary trading positions. The Group’s exposure to market risk is 
only in relation to incidental positions in financial instruments as a result of the business’s 
failure to match clients’ orders precisely or through broker error. The Group’s risk 
management policies are designed to reduce the likelihood of such trade mismatches and 
the Group’s policy is to close out such balances immediately. As the Group does not hold 
proprietary trading positions, the Group’s exposure to credit risk is principally counterparty 
credit risk as opposed to issuer risk.  The majority of the Group’s revenue is derived from 
Name Passing broking where the Group’s exposure to credit risk is limited to the client 
failing to pay the brokerage commission charged. The Group’s exposure to credit risk from 
its Matched Principal and Executing Broker activities is very short term in nature (generally 
up to three days) and the risk is contingent in nature; in the event of client default the 
Group would only suffer loss if the value of the underlying financial instrument had moved 
adversely in that time. The Group’s exposure to Matched Principal settlement risk is 
minimal as the Group seeks always to effect settlement on a delivery-versus-payment 
basis.

5.5 Quality of Tullett Prebon Information

The quality of Tullett Prebon Information, which provides valuable market data through the 
major data vendors and directly to customers, is recognised by the industry as a leading 
provider of high quality independent price information and data from the global OTC 
markets. The business has been awarded the title of Best Data Provider (Broker) at the 
Inside Market Data Awards for the last four years.

5.6 Strong balance sheet and prudent financial structure

The business has strong cash flow generation, converting 90% of its operating profit into 
operating cash flow over the seven years from 2007 to 2013, despite significant investment 
in the business over that period. The Group is conservatively financed, and has an 
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investment grade credit rating from Fitch of BBB-. The Group's gross debt of £221.1m is all 
in the form of fixed rate sterling Notes. The next debt maturity is June 2015. The Group 
manages its day to day liquidity through holding significant cash balances and other 
financial assets, and through various credit and settlement significant cash balances and 
other financial assets, and through various credit and settlement facilities provided by the 
Group's bankers and settlement agents. The Group's cash, cash equivalents and short 
term financial assets as at 30 June 2014 totalled £259.8 million. The Group has a 
committed revolving credit facility of £150m which matures in April 2016, which has never 
been drawn.

6. RISK MANAGEMENT GOVERNANCE 

6.1 Introduction

The Board is responsible for the Group’s risk management governance structure which is 
based on the three lines of defence principle which segregates risk management (first line 
of defence) from risk oversight (second line of defence) and risk assurance (third line of 
defence).

The Board sets down in the Enterprise Risk Management Framework how the Group’s risk 
exposure must be managed in line with the Group’s overall business objectives and within 
its stated risk appetite.  This includes the governance of the process for identifying, 
evaluating, managing and reporting the significant risks faced by the Group.

The Board is responsible for setting the Group’s risk appetite, defining the type and level of 
risk that the Group is willing to accept in pursuit of its business objectives.

The Board is responsible for approving the Risk Assessment Framework, which is used to 
ensure that the Group has a comprehensive understanding of its risk profile, including both 
existing and emerging risks facing the Group, and to enable it to assess the adequacy of its 
risk management policies in the context of the Group’s risk appetite.

The Board is ultimately responsible for ensuring that the Group maintains sufficient capital 
and liquidity resources to meet its regulatory capital and liquidity requirements and to 
support its growth and strategic objectives.

Risk management is embedded throughout the business, with the overall risk appetite and 
risk management strategy approved by the Board propagated down throughout the 
business as appropriate. The principal elements of the Group’s risk management 
governance structure are set out below.

6.2 First line of defence – Risk Management

6.2.1 Business management

The first line of defence is the regional senior management who have primary responsibility 
for ensuring that risks are clearly owned and managed on a day to day basis, that systems 
of control operate effectively and that the Group’s risk exposure remains within the 
prescribed risk tolerances set out in the Group's Risk Management Policies.

The regional senior management are reliant on various support and control functions in the 
discharge of their risk management responsibilities, most notably the regional Credit, 
Operations, Compliance, Legal and Finance departments.

6.2.2 Compliance

The Group’s Compliance departments monitor compliance with the various regulatory 
requirements to which the Group is subject, including those imposed by the UK regulatory 
regime and those imposed by the regulatory framework of the other jurisdictions in which 
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the Group operates. The compliance officers are in regular contact with the regional 
management and compliance reports are reviewed by the Board on a regular basis.

6.2.3 Credit risk management

The Group's Credit departments are responsible for monitoring the creditworthiness of the 
Group's counterparties and for the proactive monitoring of counterparty credit exposure 
against pre-determined reporting thresholds set by the relevant regional Credit Committee, 
as well as for providing senior management and the other control functions with timely and 
accurate reporting of the Group's credit exposure.

6.2.4 Operations / Settlements

The Operations departments play a key role in establishing procedures and monitoring the 
exposure to risks arising in Matched Principal activities. Controls include the reconciliation 
of cash, client money and securities positions; the monitoring and resolution of late-settling 
trades and resultant cash positions; and the identification and control of "non-standard" 
transactions.

6.2.5 Finance

The Group's regional Finance departments are responsible for implementing and 
monitoring the relevant financial controls, and for providing management with timely and 
accurate reporting of financial performance against budget and other measures.

6.3 Second line of defence - Risk Oversight

The second line of defence consists of the Group’s risk oversight functions, principally the 
Group Risk Control function and the Group Treasury and Risk Committee as well as 
certain business support functions which undertake a risk oversight activity in addition to 
their primary roles, most notably the Compliance and Finance departments.

6.3.1 Group Risk Control

Group Risk Control is independent of the business and is responsible for monitoring the 
Group’s risk exposure and developing risk management policies to ensure that the Group 
operates in accordance with the Group’s risk appetite. In fulfilling this duty, it provides daily 
and monthly risk reports to senior management which are reviewed by the Group Treasury 
and Risk Committee (“GTRC”). The Group Treasurer and Head of Risk Control reports to 
the Group Finance Director.

6.3.2 Group Treasury and Risk Committee 

The members of the GTRC are the Chief Executive, who acts as chairman, the Group 
Finance Director and the Group Treasurer and Head of Group Risk Control. The minutes of 
the GTRC are circulated to the Board. The responsibilities of the GTRC are to:

 review the risks arising in the Group’s businesses and the adequacy of monitoring 
and mitigating controls;

 make recommendations on risk appetite to the Board;

 monitor the implementation and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management 
framework;

 approve the Group’s Risk Management Policies that set minimum standards and 
risk tolerances for the management of each identified risk;

 approve the Group Risk Reporting Framework that sets out the minimum reporting 
requirements for each risk identified in the Risk Management Policies; and
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 approve specific technical policies, as required, that set out how certain risk 
management tasks or processes are to be carried out to provide a consistent 
approach in line with regulatory and internal standards.

6.3.3 Business support functions exercising oversight

Certain business support functions undertake certain risk oversight activities in addition to 
their first line of defence risk management activities.

 Operations departments - key oversight activities include the monitoring of residual 
balances and failed settlements, as well as the review of ‘cancels and corrects’ 
trade amendments.

 Compliance departments - the regional Compliance departments are responsible 
for investigating any suspicious broker or market activity, with the Head of 
Compliance acting as the Group’s Money Laundering Reporting Officer.

 Finance departments – Finance departments review financial results and balance 
sheets and investigate any unusual or unexpected results.

6.4 Third line of defence - Independent Assurance

The third line of defence consists of the Group’s risk assurance functions, principally the 
Internal Audit function which reports to the Audit Committee of the Board.

6.4.1 Internal Audit

The objectives of Internal Audit are to assess the effectiveness of the Group’s risk 
management, internal controls and governance process; whether operational and financial 
controls are appropriate and consistently applied; the effectiveness of internal controls for 
the safeguarding of assets; the reliability and integrity of management information; and the 
adequacy of processes to ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

Internal Audit also provides an independent reporting facility under the Group’s whistle-
blowing arrangements.

The Audit Committee reviews and approves the internal audit plans, the findings of all 
internal audits undertaken are reported to the Audit Committee, and actions taken by 
management in response to the findings are tracked and reported to the Audit Committee. 

Internal audit work during 2013 covered the full ‘audit universe’ within the Group at different 
levels of intensity based upon the internal audit plan agreed with the Audit Committee in 
December 2012. The plan was developed reflecting the results of a risk assessment 
exercise.

Since 1 July 2014, the internal audit team has been provided by KPMG.

7. ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

7.1 The principal purpose of the Company is to act as a parent undertaking for the Group.  The 
Group operates through a number of subsidiaries.  

7.2 All principal subsidiaries of the Group are wholly owned by the Company. The principal 
operating subsidiaries of the Group are incorporated by reference into paragraph 3 of Part 
XIII of this document.

8. CAPITAL STRUCTURE

8.1 The Group is financed through shareholders’ equity and debt.
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8.2 The Group seeks to ensure that it has access to an appropriate level of cash, marketable 
securities and facilities to enable it to finance its ongoing operations on cost effective 
terms. The primary source of liquidity for the Group’s operations is the cash balances and 
marketable securities that are held in each individual legal entity, and overdraft facilities 
provided by settlement agents or clearing banks to support the settlement process. The 
Group also has recourse to a committed revolving credit facility of £150 million maturing in 
April 2016.  This facility has never been drawn as at the date of this document.

8.3 As at 31 August 2014, the Group's outstanding debt comprised £141.1 million sterling 
Notes due July 2016, and £80.0 million sterling Notes due 2019.

9. PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

9.1 The business offers broking services in five major product groups: fixed income securities 
and their derivatives, interest rate derivatives, treasury products, equities and energy.  The 
Group also has an Information Sales business (Tullett Prebon Information) and Risk 
Management Services business. 

9.1.1 Fixed Income Securities

The Group has a broadly-based business in fixed income products. The Group's 
operations cover the broking of cash bonds including US Treasuries, US government 
agencies, US mortgage-backed securities, US municipal bonds, and European 
government bonds, as well as servicing the repo market and brokering bond futures and 
options. The fixed income business also covers credit products including high-grade and 
high-yield corporate bonds, credit default swaps, and emerging markets bonds. In 2013, 
the Group's fixed income securities product group generated revenue of £225.5 million
(2012: £241.0 million).

9.1.2 Interest Rate Derivatives

The Group brokers derivative products which facilitate the management of interest rate 
risk. The products brokered cover the full yield curve on a multi-currency basis and include 
interest rate swaps in all forms (spread, coupons and basis), interest rate options, and 
forward rate agreements. In 2013, the Group's interest rate derivatives product group 
generated revenue of £174.2 million (2012: £185.2 million).

9.1.3 Treasury Products

The Group brokers treasury products including spot and forward foreign exchange, non-
deliverable forwards in non-convertible currencies, foreign exchange options, and cash 
and deposits. In 2013, the Group's treasury products product group generated revenue of 
£211.4 million (2012: £229.8 million).

9.1.4 Equities

The Group offers broking services in a variety of equity derivative products including index 
and single stock options, and in some cash equity products including American depositary 
receipts and global depositary receipts. In 2013, the Group's equities product group 
generated revenue of £43.2 million (2012: £42.6 million).

9.1.5 Energy

The Group's broking activities in the energy markets cover a wide variety of products in oil 
(including crude oil, fuel oil, gas oil, gasoline, naphtha and derivatives related to those 
products), power (electricity) and gas, as well as in commodities such as metals, coal and 
soft commodities. In 2013, the Group's energy product group generated revenue of £102.4
million (2012: £106.4 million).

9.1.6 Information Sales and Risk Management Services
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The Group’s Information Sales business (Tullett Prebon Information) provides high quality 
independent real-time and end of day price information from the wholesale interdealer 
brokered financial and commodity markets to both major data vendors and directly to end 
users.  The Group’s Risk Management Services business provides clients with services to 
facilitate their post-trade management of interest rate risk in a number of currencies and 
date mismatch risk on non-deliverable forward contracts.  In 2013 these businesses 
generated revenue of £47.0 million (2012: £45.8 million).

The table below shows the Group's revenue for the first six months of 2014 and for the
financial year ended 31 December 2013 broken down in relation to each of the product 
groups: 

Revenue by product group H1 2014

(£m)

2013

(£m)

Treasury Products 96.9 211.4

Interest Rate Derivatives 70.6 174.2

Fixed Income 103.0 225.5

Equities 20.3 43.2

Energy 46.6 102.4

Information Sales and Risk Management 
Services

22.9 47.0

Reported 360.3 803.7

10. PRINCIPAL MARKETS

10.1 The Group manages its operations on a regional basis in Europe and the Middle East, 
Americas, and Asia Pacific. Each of the three regions provides broking services in the five 
product groups, information sales and risk management services.  

10.2 Europe and the Middle East

The Group has offices in London, Paris, Frankfurt, Madrid, Zurich, Luxembourg, Warsaw, 
Geneva, Bahrain and Dubai. The Group has also recently opened an office in 
Johannesburg which is managed as part of the region.  Revenue from the Group's 
activities in Europe and the Middle East for 2013 was £468.7 million (2012: £501.2 million), 
representing 58.3% of total Group revenue. Broker headcount in Europe and the Middle 
East at 30 June 2014 was 762, with 599 brokers based in the Group's offices in London, 
and 163 brokers based in offices in Continental Europe and in the Middle East.

10.3 Americas

The Group has offices in New York, Jersey City, Houston, Toronto and Sao Paulo. The 
Group has also recently opened an office in Mexico City. Revenue from the Group's 
activities in the Americas for 2013 was £233.9 million (2012: £236.9 million), representing 
29.1% of total Group revenue. Broker headcount in the Americas at 30 June 2014 was 
490, with 441 brokers based in the Group's offices in North America (primarily New York 
and New Jersey), and 49 brokers based in Brazil.

10.4 Asia Pacific

The Group has offices in Singapore, Hong Kong, Tokyo, Sydney, Seoul, Jakarta, and 
Manila.  The Group also operates through associated companies with offices in Shanghai, 
Mumbai and Bangkok. Revenue from the Group's activities in Asia Pacific for 2013 was 
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£101.1 million (2012: £112.7 million), representing 12.6% of total Group revenue. Broker 
headcount in Asia Pacific at 30 June 2014 was 343.

10.5 The table below shows the Group's revenue for the first six months of 2014 and for the 
year ended 31 December 2013 broken down according to region: 

Revenue by region H1 2014

(£m)

2013 

(£m)

Europe and the Middle East 209.0 468.7

Americas 102.7 233.9

Asia Pacific 48.6 101.1

Reported 360.3 803.7

10.6 Further details as to the Group's employees, employee share schemes and pensions can 
be found in paragraphs 7, 8 and 9 respectively of Part XIII (Additional Information).

11. INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

11.1 The Group deploys a number of computer and communications systems and networks to 
operate its broking business, including front office broking platforms available to customers 
and brokers to disseminate information, provide analytics and to collect and manage 
orders; and middle office systems to record, confirm, enrich, report, monitor, and settle 
trades and to calculate brokerage commission.

11.2 In its Information Sales business the Group deploys computer and communications 
systems and networks to capture, cleanse and package data, and to disseminate it  both 
real-time and end of day to customers.

11.3 In its Risk Management Services business the Group deploys computer and 
communications systems and networks to collect information from customers, and to 
compare and analyse that information to facilitate matching trades that reduce portfolio 
risk.

11.4 The Group deploys back office systems for invoicing customers, for financial management, 
and to support other administrative functions.

11.5 The Group’s systems form an integral part of the services offered to customers who rely 
upon them to facilitate their activities. The capability, availability and performance of these 
systems are a significant factor in the Group’s ability to attract and maintain customer 
business.

11.6 Over the last few years the Group has made investments in the development and launch of 
new electronic platforms, straight-through-processing functionality and associated 
technology infrastructure.  The Group’s electronic broking platforms provide clients with the 
flexibility to transact either entirely electronically or via the business’s comprehensive voice 
execution broker network.

11.7 The regulatory reforms to the OTC derivatives markets that have been and are being 
introduced in the main territories in which the Group operates, require in some cases, the 
deployment of front office order management systems and middle office deal management 
systems with particular functionality and connectivity capability.  In the United States, the 
Group’s SEF is required to operate an electronic system to meet the minimum functionality 
requirements to enable all market participants to enter multiple bids and offers, to observe 
and receive bids and offers, and to transact on such bids and offers.
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11.8 The Group deploys appropriate technical infrastructure to run the various platforms and 
systems and has established primary and secondary data centres in each of the three 
regions in which the Group operates.  These data centres are connected through a wide 
area network that carries data communications at the high speed necessary for low-latency 
trading systems, together with sufficient bandwidth to accommodate telephone 
communications over the global network.
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PART VII

BUSINESS OVERVIEW OF PVM

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 PVM is an independent broker of oil instruments. As at 31 December 2013, the PVM Group 
employed around 190 people globally.

2. HISTORY AND DEVELOPMENT

2.1 A brief outline of the corporate history of the PVM Group and the development of its group 
companies is set out below:

2.1.1 PVM and PVM Oil Futures Ltd. - London 

PVM was incorporated in Bermuda in 1977 and registered in the UK as a branch 
of an overseas company during the same year. PVM is the parent company of 
the PVM Group and carries out its UK broker activities through its UK 
establishment.

PVM together with its subsidiary PVM Oil Futures Limited, employed around 130
people in its Jermyn Street office in London's West End, as at 31 December 
2013. 

The London crude oil group covers markets including Brent CFDs and DFLs, 
Brent/WTI swaps, Dubai swaps, Urals swaps, Crude options and MOPs. The 
petroleum products group covers markets including propane, butane, naphtha, 
gasoline, jet fuel, gas oil, biodiesel and fuel oil. The futures group has recently 
opened an environmental products division which is currently covering biomass 
and emissions.

PVM and PVM Oil Futures Limited are authorised and regulated by the Financial 
Conduct Authority and the National Futures Association.  PVM operates a 
representative office in Dubai, and has been authorised by, and is regulated by, 
the Dubai Financial Services Authority.

2.1.2 PVM Oil Associates, Inc. and PVM Futures, Inc. – Hoboken, NJ and Houston

PVM Oil Associates, Inc. was originally incorporated under the laws of the State 
of New York in 1971 to broker international oil products. A crude oil group was set 
up in 1974, and a Houston office opened in 1975 to focus on US domestic crude 
oil and products. 

In 1985 PVM Oil Associates, Inc. re-domesticated and became a corporation 
incorporated in Delaware.  PVM Futures, Inc. was founded in New Jersey in 
2007. 

PVM Oil Associates, Inc. and PVM Futures, Inc. are authorised and regulated by 
the National Futures Association.

2.1.3 Pte. Ltd. - Singapore 

PVM Oil Associates Pte. Ltd. opened its Singapore office in 1994 and 
consolidated its existing Tokyo business in this location in 1996. The company 
initially focussed on crude oil broking and moved into products in 1998 with the 
acquisition of Shogun Products Brokers. In 2003 a freight division was opened. 

PVM Oil Associates Pte. Ltd. operates a ship broking desk specialising in the 
spot chartering of petroleum products tankers.

2.1.4 PVM Data Services GmbH. – Vienna



     52

PVM Data Services GmbH was formed in 2006 and provides crude oil and 
petroleum product derivative valuations on a daily and historical basis. The 
forward market curve data is derived from information supplied from brokers 
within the PVM Group. 

3. PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

3.1 The PVM Group's business involves the provision of OTC broking of swaps, forwards, 
options and physical crude oil and refined products together with exchange broking of WTI, 
Brent and Gasoil futures contracts. PVM's customers are oil companies, independent 
refiners and producers, government agencies, trading houses, banks and investment 
funds.

3.2 The PVM Group's principal broking and consultancy activities relate to seven product 
groups: Crude Oil, Petroleum Products, Futures, Data Services, Shipping, Environmental 
Products, and Reports.

3.2.1 Crude Oil

PVM has been a leading crude oil broker for the last 33 years. Within the PVM 
crude oil group are teams specialising in Brent CFDs and DFLs, Brent/WTI 
swaps, Dubai swaps, Urals swaps, Crude options and MOPs. 

3.2.2 Petroleum Products

The PVM products group covers refined products including propane, butane, 
naphtha, gasoline, jet fuel, gas oil, biodiesel and fuel oil.

3.2.3 Futures

PVM in London is an execution-only broker on the ICE Futures Exchange. The 
PVM Group is in the process of opening futures operations in Singapore and in 
February 2014, one of PVM Group's subsidiaries, PVM Oil Futures Pte. Ltd., 
received regulatory approval to trade in futures contracts from Monetary Authority 
of Singapore (MAS).

3.2.4 Data Services

PVM Data Services GmbH was formed in 2006 and provides crude oil and 
petroleum product derivative valuations on a daily and historical basis. The 
forward market curve data is derived from information supplied from brokers 
within the PVM Group.

3.2.5 Shipping

The PVM shipping desk operates from the Singapore office and is focused on the 
spot chartering of petroleum products tankers.

3.2.6 Environmental Products

PVM Environmental Products specialises in Biomass and Carbon Emissions 
markets. It began generating revenues in August 2013.

3.2.7 London Reports

PVM distributes daily technical, fundamental and midday oil reports:

 PVM Technical Report – daily technical analysis.

 PVM Fundamental Report – daily global oil market analysis and 
commentary. 
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 PVM Mid-day Report – an update of the technical picture plus a round-up 
of oil headlines and a summary of the London morning’s trading on ICE 
(Crude and Gasoil) and OTC crude markets. 

3.3 Revenue by product group

The below table shows PVM Group's revenue for  the year ended 31 July 2013 and the 
year ended 31 July 2012 broken down in relation to each of the products:

Product Group y/e 31

July 2013 

($,000)

y/e 31  

July 2012

($,000)

Crude Oil** 37,419 40,064

Petroleum Products** 52,832 44,680

Futures** 9,914 10,650

Data Services** 915 870

Shipping** 261 165

London Reports** 64 74

Other Income*  ** 6,122 6,156

Reported 107,527 102,659

*Other Income relates to Interest Receivable and Exchange Rebates.

**These figures have been derived from the PVM Group's unaudited management 
accounts.

The PVM Group's unaudited management accounts for the 12 months to July 2014 show 
revenue of $114.2 million.

4. PRINCIPAL MARKETS

The below table shows PVM Group's revenue for the year ended 31 July 2013 and the 
year ended 31 July 2012, broken down in relation to each of PVM Group's principal 
markets:

Revenue by region y/e 31

July 2013 

($,000)

y/e 31  

July 2012

($,000)

Europe** 92,268 86,813

Americas ** 5,729 7,856

Asia Pacific** 9,530 7,990

Reported 107,527 102,659
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**These figures have been derived from the PVM Group's unaudited management 
accounts.
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PART VIII

DETAILS OF THE ACQUISITION

1. TERMS OF THE ACQUISITION 

1.1 Acquisition

Pursuant to the Sale and Purchase Agreement the Company has agreed to purchase and 
the PVM Shareholders have agreed to sell the entire issued capital of PVM, the holding 
company of the PVM Group.

1.2 Consideration

1.2.1 The Company has conditionally agreed to acquire the entire issued share capital 
of PVM for consideration of US $ 160,000,000 (the "Consideration").

1.2.2 The Consideration shall be paid to PVM Shareholders in the following 
instalments:

(A) upon Completion 70% of the Consideration ("Initial Consideration"); and

(B) 30% of the Consideration to be deferred for three years from the date of 
Completion ("Deferred Period") with payment subject to an adjustment 
mechanism to reflect the minimum level of revenue (as set out in 
paragraph 1.2.3 below) not being achieved during the Deferred Period 
(the "Deferred Consideration"). 

1.2.3 The parties have agreed that the aggregate revenue level for PVM's business, 
based on the scope of the business at Completion, during the Deferred Period 
will be US$ 300,000,000 (three hundred million US dollars) (the "Aggregate 
Revenue Level"). If the Aggregate Revenue Level is not met, the Deferred 
Consideration will be subject to an adjustment mechanism such that, to the extent 
that the aggregate revenue for the Deferred Period exceeds US$ 270,000,000 
(but is less than US$ 300,000,000), each PVM Shareholder will receive a pro rata 
amount of the total Deferred Consideration available calculated on the basis of 
multiplying the shortfall between the aggregate revenue actually generated and 
the Aggregate Revenue Level by 1.6 and then subtracting the product of that 
calculation from the Deferred Consideration.  If the aggregate revenue actually 
generated during the Deferred Period is less than US $ 270,000,000 the Deferred 
Consideration will not become payable. 

1.2.4 Pursuant to the Sale and Purchase Agreement, the Initial Consideration is
payable to PVM Shareholders at the election of the Company (save that the 
portion of the Initial Consideration payable to one former shareholder of Pear Oil 
Associates Inc. shall be satisfied only by the issue of Consideration Shares), 
either by (i) cash, (ii) the allotment and issue of the Consideration Shares, or (iii) 
a combination of both cash and the allotment and issue of Consideration Shares, 
provided that in relation to certain PVM Shareholders (the "Electing PVM 
Shareholders") who have elected to sign a deed of variation and election with 
the Company altering the Sale and Purchase Agreement (the "Deed of Variation 
and Election"), the Initial Consideration is payable, at the election of the 
Company, through a combination of cash, the allotment and issue of the 
Consideration Shares, and cash raised pursuant to a placing of Consideration 
Shares to institutional investors procured by HSBC Bank plc on the Company's 
behalf (the " Placing").  

1.2.5 In no event will the total number of Consideration Shares allotted and issued 
directly to institutional investors pursuant to the Placing as a result of the 
elections of the Electing PVM Shareholders amount to more than ten per cent of 
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the Company's issued share capital prior to the issuance of such Consideration 
Shares.

1.2.6 The Company has determined that the Initial Consideration will be paid to PVM 
Shareholders (other than Electing PVM Shareholders) by the allotment and issue 
to such PVM Shareholders of the Consideration Shares, provided that, in relation 
to Electing PVM Shareholders, the Initial Consideration is expected to be paid in 
whole or in part (depending on the relevant election) from the net proceeds of the 
Placing.

1.2.7 The price of the Consideration Shares shall be determined by reference to the 
average closing price of the Existing Company Shares on the London Stock 
Exchange over a period of five business days that will end four business days 
prior to (but excluding) Completion ("Initial Consideration Calculation Period"). 
The exchange rate for the Consideration Shares shall be the average daily spot 
rate of exchange (the closing mid-point) for US dollars into sterling as published 
by the Bank of England over the Initial Consideration Calculation Period.

1.2.8 Deferred Consideration (if any) will be payable to PVM Shareholders in cash or 
by the allotment and issue of new Ordinary Shares in the Company (the 
"Deferred Consideration Shares") or by a combination of cash and Deferred 
Consideration Shares, at the election of the Company (save that the portion of 
the Deferred Consideration (if any) payable to one former shareholder of Pear Oil 
Associates Inc. shall be satisfied only by the issue of Deferred Consideration 
Shares). In the event that the Company pays part or all of the Deferred 
Consideration in Deferred Consideration Shares, their price shall be determined 
by reference to the average closing price of the Enlarged Company Shares on 
the London Stock Exchange over a period of five business days that will end 
three business days prior to the date of the Deferred Period completion 
("Deferred Consideration Calculation Period"). The exchange rate for the 
Deferred Consideration Shares shall be the average daily spot rate of exchange 
(the closing mid-point) for US dollars into sterling as published by the Bank of 
England over the Deferred Consideration Calculation Period.  

1.2.9 In the event that the Deferred Consideration Shares to be issued following final 
determination of the Deferred Consideration payable (together with any Ordinary 
Shares issued during the preceding twelve months, subject to certain limited 
exceptions) is equal to or exceeds ten per cent. of the Ordinary Shares in issue 
on the date the Deferred Consideration Shares are to be issued, and if the 
Company elects (in its sole discretion) to settle the Deferred Consideration 
through the issue of Deferred Consideration Shares rather than in cash, the 
Company will be required to publish a prospectus in order to admit the Deferred 
Consideration Shares to the Official List and to trading on the London Stock 
Exchange.

1.2.10 Simultaneously with settlement of the Deferred Consideration (if any), the PVM 
Shareholders may be eligible to receive a balancing payment, in either cash or 
Deferred Consideration Shares or by a combination of cash and Deferred 
Consideration Shares, at the election of the Company, in respect of their pro rata 
share in (i) any unspent investment cash not used by the PVM Group for new 
business expenditure during the Deferred Period, (ii) if the Aggregate Revenue 
Level is met, an agreed return of US$ 1 for every US$ 2 of spent investment cash 
used by the PVM Group for new business expenditure during the Deferred Period  
up to the level of the spent investment cash and (iii) any true-up amount payable 
in respect of the difference between the free cash in the PVM Group at signing 
and the actual free cash in PVM Group at Completion.
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1.3 Conditions to Completion

1.3.1 Completion is conditional upon:

(A) completion of all transactions in the reorganisation agreement;

(B) admission of the Consideration Shares to the Official List becoming 
effective; and

(C) admission of the Consideration Shares to trading on the London Stock 
Exchange becoming effective; 

together, the ''Conditions''.

1.4 Conduct of business

The Sale and Purchase Agreement contains customary provisions and protections for the 
Company in relation to the manner in which the PVM Group may conduct its business in 
the period between signing the Sale and Purchase Agreement and Completion. The effect 
of the covenants given by PVM is to ensure that the PVM Group is carrying on the 
business and the activities in the normal course and that the Company is informed of, and 
has the opportunity to consent to, certain specified actions in relation to the conduct of the 
PVM Group.

1.5 Warranties and indemnities 

The Sale and Purchase Agreement contains customary warranties and indemnities from 
PVM for an acquisition of this type.  

1.6 Principal Employees 

PVM's Principal Employees have signed, on the same date as the date the Sale and 

Purchase Agreement is signed, fixed term employment agreements with PVM, which will 

come into effect on Completion of the Acquisition.

1.7 Termination

1.7.1 In addition to customary termination rights for an acquisition of this type, the Sale 
and Purchase Agreement will terminate if:

(A) the Conditions have not been satisfied or waived by the Long-Stop Date; 
or

(B) the completion obligations of the parties have not been satisfied or 
waived at Completion; or

(C) the Company has elected to terminate the Sale and Purchase Agreement 
following a material adverse change in PVM's business. 

2. BACKGROUND AND RATIONALE FOR THE ACQUISITION

Tullett Prebon’s business involves the provision of broking services to professional 
counterparties operating in the world’s major wholesale OTC and exchange listed financial 
markets.  The business offers broking services in five major product groups: Fixed Income 
Securities and their derivatives, Interest Rate Derivatives, Treasury Products, Equities and 
Energy.  The Group also has an Information Sales and Risk Management Services 
business.

Over 75% of the Group’s broking revenue in 2013 was derived from three product groups: 
Fixed Income Securities and their derivatives, Interest Rate Derivatives, and Treasury 
Products, in which the business offers broking services to the traditional inter-dealer broker 
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customers comprising the world’s largest commercial and investment banks.  The Group’s 
broking activities in Energy products (including commodities) serve a broader customer 
base including energy producers, energy marketers, energy traders and risk managers, 
and major energy utilities, as well as some financial institutions, and accounted for only 
13% of the Group’s broking revenue in 2013.

The PVM Group’s business is focused entirely on Energy products, as a broker of oil 
instruments including OTC broking of swaps, forwards and physical crude oil and refined 
products, and broking of exchange listed instruments including WTI, Brent and Gasoil 
futures contracts.  PVM Group’s customers are major oil companies, independent refiners 
and producers, government agencies, trading houses, banks and investment funds.

The acquisition of the PVM Group is expected to:

 increase the scale of the Group’s activities in the Energy sector and increase the 
diversity of the Group’s revenue;  

 diversify the Group’s customer base, reducing the dependence of the Group on its
commercial and investment bank clients;

 give the Group a significant presence in broking crude oil and petroleum products 
complementing its existing activities in these products. Crude oil is the world’s 
most actively traded commodity;

 allow Tullett Prebon Information to expand its data offering to include the current 
and historical oil price data provided from the PVM business and to offer this data 
to a broader set of customers;

 provide the Group with a second broking brand with a view to facilitating
investment opportunities in Energy products other than oil products under the 
PVM name; 

 facilitate the introduction of Tullett Prebon’s technology into the PVM business 
which will help to diversify PVM’s revenue through the development of auctions, 
real time pricing, and post trade services including the expansion of information 
sales; and

 improve the overall financial position of the Group, with the addition of a 
consistent, significant income stream and cash flow, improving the Group’s 
interest cover and debt coverage ratios.

Becoming part of the Tullett Prebon business is expected to:

 facilitate PVM’s geographic expansion and the service that can be offered to 
international customers, with a particular opportunity to establish PVM in Geneva,
a significant location for oil products trading and broking, where Tullett Prebon has 
existing operations; and 

 facilitate the reduction of support and administration costs in the PVM business.

3. INTEGRATION OF THE PVM GROUP

3.1 Under the terms of the Sale and Purchase Agreement the parties have agreed that for a 
period of three years from (but excluding) the date of completion of the Acquisition, Tullett 
Prebon plc will conduct the affairs of the PVM Group so that it is a separate broking 
business to that of the Company ("Separate Business Period"), and the parties do not 
anticipate any material changes to the number and roles of the non-broking staff within the 
PVM Group during the first 12 months following Completion.

3.2 Following the expiration of the Separate Business Period the Company will develop an 
integration plan to realise the anticipated benefits from the Acquisition. 

4. FINANCIAL EFFECTS OF THE ACQUISITION

The PVM Group’s audited consolidated profit after taxation for the 12 months ended 31 
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July 2013 was $13.4 million (£8.4 million at current exchange rates).  The Group reported 
audited underlying earnings for 2013 of £78.4 million and underlying basic earnings per 
share of 36.0p. The Directors do not expect the Acquisition to have an adverse effect on 
earnings per share.

The Company will issue 25,776,523 new Ordinary Shares for the Initial Consideration.  
Using the same exchange rates and Tullett Prebon plc share price as those used to 
determine the number of shares to be issued to satisfy the Initial Consideration, and 
assuming that the Deferred Consideration becomes payable in full, and that the Deferred 
Consideration is satisfied by the issue of Ordinary Shares, the Company would expect to 
issue a further 11,044,196 new Ordinary Shares.

5. FUNDING OF THE ACQUISITION 

Funding of the Acquisition shall be satisfied by the issue and allotment of Consideration 
Shares to the PVM Shareholders, and, in respect of Electing PVM Shareholders, by the net 
proceeds of the Placing.

6. AUTHORITY TO ALLOT THE CONSIDERATION SHARES

6.1 The Company currently has 217,739,704 Existing Company Shares in issue with a nominal 
value of £0.25.

6.2 In accordance with resolutions passed by the Company's shareholders at its 2014 AGM, 
Article 7 of Tullett Prebon plc's Articles of Association and section 551 of the 2006 Act the 
Company is authorised to allot shares or grant rights to subscribe for or convert any 
security into shares in the Company up to a maximum nominal amount of £18,144,975
(representing 72,579,900 Ordinary Shares (the "2014 AGM Authority").  

6.3 Pursuant to the 2014 AGM Authority the Company has sufficient authority to issue and allot 
the Consideration Shares.

7. LISTING OF THE CONSIDERATION SHARES 

7.1 The Company will apply for the Consideration Shares to be admitted to the Official List 
(premium segment) and will apply to the London Stock Exchange for the Consideration 
Shares to be admitted to trading on the main market of the London Stock Exchange. 

7.2 It is expected that the Consideration Shares will be traded in sterling on the main market of 
the London Stock Exchange. When admitted to trading, the Consideration Shares will be 
registered with ISIN GB00B1H0DZ51.

7.3 It is expected that Completion will occur, that Admission will become effective and that 
dealings in the Consideration Shares will commence on the London Stock Exchange on 26
November 2014.

8. CREST 

8.1 The Existing Company Shares are admitted to CREST, the paperless settlement system 
which enables securities to be transferred and held by electronic means rather than by a 
certificate or written instrument, for the purposes of trading on the London Stock Exchange. 
The system is designed to reduce the costs of settlement, and facilitate the processing of 
settlements and the updating of registers, through an electronic settlement system. Shares 
in CREST are in electronic form and evidence of title to Ordinary Shares is established on 
an electronic register maintained by the Registrar which can only be altered by an 
electronic instruction sent through CREST. It is possible for shareholders in CREST to 
transfer their Ordinary Shares without executing written stock transfer forms.

8.2 The Consideration Shares will be issued at Completion to PVM shareholders and credited 
as fully paid and will rank pari passu in all respects with the Existing Company Shares, 
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including the right to receive all dividends, distributions or any return of capital declared, 
made or paid after Completion.

8.3 Following Completion, the Consideration Shares will be admitted to CREST meaning that 
settlement of transactions in the Consideration Shares following the Acquisition may take 
place within the CREST system if any shareholder so wishes. CREST is a voluntary 
system and holders of Ordinary Shares who wish to receive and retain share certificates 
will be able to do so. 

9. TAXATION

9.1 Information regarding tax is set out in paragraph 15 of Part XIII of this document.
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PART IX

SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following is a summary of the Company's financial information for the periods indicated. The 
data has been extracted without material adjustment from, and is qualified in its entirety by 
reference to, the financial information in or incorporated by reference into Part X – "Historical
Financial Information".  The summary should be read in conjunction with that section and with Part 
Part XI – "Operating and Financial Review". Investors are advised to read the whole of this 
document and not rely on the information summarised in this Part IX.

Consolidated Statement of Income

For the years ended 31 December 2013, 2012 and 2011 and for the six months ended 30 June 2014 and 
2013

                     

Six	months	

ended	30	

June	2014

(unaudited)	

£m

Six	months	ended	30	

June	2013

(unaudited)	£m

Year	ended	31	

December	2013	

(audited) £m

Year	ended	31	

December	2012	

(audited) £m

Year	ended	31	

December	2011	

(audited) £m

Revenue 360.3 439.8 803.7 850.8 910.2

Underlying 

operating profit
50.3 71.4 115.4 125.5 148.4

Charge relating to 

major legal 

actions

(4.4) (10.3) (15.2) (11.6) (6.6)

Charges relating 

to cost 

improvement 

programme / 

restructuring

(28.6) - - (14.8) (11.5)

Goodwill 

impairment
- - - (123.0) -

Acquisition costs (1.3) - - - -

Reported 

operating profit
16.0 61.1 100.2 (23.9) 130.3

Net finance costs (7.1) (8.6) (15.8) (14.2) (12.3)

Other gains and 

losses
- - - - 1.2

Profit/ (loss) 

before tax
8.9 52.5 84.4 (38.1) 119.2

Taxation (7.1) (12.9) (20.0) (24.0) (30.3)
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Profit/ (loss) of 

consolidated 

companies

1.8 39.6 64.4 (62.1) 88.9

Share of results of 

associates
1.2 0.9 1.4 1.2 1.2

Profit / (Loss) for 

the Period
3.0 40.5 65.8 (60.9) 90.1

Consolidated Balance Sheet

For the years ended 31 December 2013, 2012 and 2011 and for the six months ended 30 June 2014 and 
2013

Six	months	

ended	30	June	

2014

(unaudited)	£m

Six	months	

ended	30	June	

2013

(unaudited)	£m

Year	ended	31	

December	

2013	(audited)

£m

Year	ended	31	

December	

2012	(audited)

£m

Year	ended	31	

December	

2011	(audited)

£m

Non-current assets 390.1 413.6 389.3 380.3 488.2

Current assets 18,864.8 37,620.4 6,103.0 6,185.3 5,628.7

Total assets 19,254.9 38,034.0 6,492.3 6,565.6 6,116.9

Current liabilities (18,627.5) (37,350.3) (5,842.3) (5,918.8) (5,377.5)

Non-current liabilities (253.8) (266.7) (251.6) (274.8) (263.9)

Total liabilities (18,881.3) (37,617.0) (6,093.9) (6,193.6) (5,641.4)

Net assets 373.6 417.0 398.4 372.0 475.5

Equity

Share capital 54.4 54.4 54.4 54.4 53.8

Share premium 17.1 17.1 17.1 17.1 9.9

Reverse acquisition reserve (1,182.3) (1,182.3) (1,182.3) (1,182.3) (1,182.3)

Other reserves 119.0 143.5 123.7 131.5 148.4

Retained earnings 1,364.1 1,381.8 1,383.4 1,348.8 1,442.6

Equity attributable to equity 

holders of the parent
372.3 414.5 396.3 369.5 472.4

Minority interests 1.3 2.5 2.1 2.5 3.1

Total Equity 373.6 417.0 398.4 372.0 475.5
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

For the years ended 31 December 2013, 2012 and 2011 and for the six months ended 30 June 2014 and 
2013

Six	months	
ended	30	June	

2014
(unaudited)	£m

Six	months	
ended	30	June	

2013
(unaudited)	£m

Year	ended	
31	December	
2013	(audited)
											£m

Year	ended	31	
December	

2012 (audited)
£m

Year	ended	31	
December	

2011 (audited)
£m

Net cash from operating activities
8.5 27.5 62.1 16.6 95.2

Net cash from investment 
activities 17.6 (10.6) (18.4) (23.9) (15.7)

Net cash used in financing 
activities (24.6) (56.4) (68.7) (48.6) (128.2)

Net  increase / (decrease) in cash 
and cash equivalents 1.5 (39.5) (25.0) (55.9) (48.7)

Cash and cash equivalents at the 
beginning of the period 251.6 281.5 281.5 342.0 390.1

Effect of foreign exchange rates
(2.7) 4.9 (4.9) (4.6) 0.6

Cash and cash equivalents at the 
end of the period

250.4 246.9 251.6 281.5 342.0
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PART X

HISTORICAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Part A
Audited financial information

The consolidated financial statements of the Company included in the Annual Reports for each of 
the years ended 31 December 2013, 2012 and 2011 together with the audit opinions thereon are 
incorporated by reference into this document. Deloitte LLP, London, United Kingdom, a member 
firm of the Institute of Charted Accountants in England and Wales, has issued unqualified audit 
opinions on the consolidated financial statements of the Company included in the Annual Reports 
for each of the three years ended 31 December 2013, 2012 and 2011. The financial statements for 
the years ended 31 December 2013, 2012 and 2011 were prepared in accordance with IFRS.

The paragraphs below set out the sections of the 2013, 2012 and 2011 Annual Reports which 
contain information incorporated by reference into, and forming part of, Part X of this Prospectus. 
Only information in the parts of the 2013, 2012 and 2011 Annual Reports identified below is 
incorporated into and forms part of Part X of this document. Information in other parts of relevant 
Annual Reports is either covered or incorporated by reference elsewhere in this document or is not 
relevant to an investor's assessment of the assets and liabilities, financial position, profit and losses 
and prospects of the Company.

 The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 
2013, which include a consolidated income statement, a consolidated statement of 
comprehensive income, a consolidated balance sheet, a consolidated statement of 
changes in equity, a consolidated cash flow statement and the notes to the financial 
statements are set out on pages 49-94 (inclusive) of the Company's 2013 Annual Report. 
The audit opinion to the members of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2013
is set out on pages 45 to 48 of the Company's 2013 Annual Report.

 The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 
2012, which include a consolidated income statement, a consolidated statement of 
comprehensive income, a consolidated balance sheet, a consolidated statement of 
changes in equity, a consolidated cash flow statement and the notes to the financial 
statements are set out on pages 46 to 88 (inclusive) of the Company's 2012 Annual 
Report. The audit opinion to the members of the Company for the year ended 31 
December 2012 is set out on page 45 of the Company's 2012 Annual Report.

 The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 
2011, which include a consolidated income statement, a consolidated statement of 
comprehensive income, a consolidated balance sheet, a consolidated statement of 
changes in equity, a consolidated cash flow statement and the notes to the financial 
statements are set out on pages 46 to 88 (inclusive) of the Company's 2011 Annual 
Report. The audit opinion to the members of the Company for the year ended 31 
December 2011 is set out on page 45 of the Company's 2011 Annual Report.

See paragraph 23 of Part XIII of this document for further details about information that has been 
incorporated by reference into this document.
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Part B
Unaudited financial information

The unaudited condensed consolidated interim financial statements of the Company for the six 
months ended 30 June 2014 included in the 2014 Interim Management Report, together with the 
independent accountants review report thereon, are incorporated by reference into this document. 
This financial information was prepared in accordance with the Disclosure and Transparency Rules 
and with IAS 34. 

The paragraph below sets out the sections of the 2014 Interim Management Report, which 
contains information incorporated by reference into, and forming part of, this Prospectus. Only 
information in the parts of the 2014 Interim Management Report identified below is incorporated 
into and forms part of this document. Information in other parts of relevant Interim Management 
Reports is either covered elsewhere in this document or is not relevant to an investor's assessment 
of the assets and liabilities, financial position, profit and losses and prospects of the Company.

 The condensed consolidated financial statements of the Company for the six months 
ended 30 June 2014 , which contains a comparison to figures from the six months ended 
30 June 2013, includes a condensed consolidated income statement, a condensed 
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, a condensed consolidated balance 
sheet, a condensed consolidated statement of changes in equity, a condensed 
consolidated cash flow statement and the notes to the condensed consolidated financial 
statements are set out on pages 17 to 30 (inclusive) of the Company's Interim 
Management Report for the period ended 30 June 2014. The independent accountants 
review report to the Company for the period ended 30 June 2014 is set out on page 32. 

See paragraph 23 of Part XIII of this document for further details about information that has been 
incorporated by reference into this document.
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PART XI

OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

The selected historical financial information discussed in this operating and financial review of the 
Company has been extracted from the "Historical Financial Information" in, or incorporated by 
reference into Part X. You should read the following discussion of the Company's financial 
condition and results of operations together with the rest of this document, including the financial 
information in Part X "Historical Financial Information", and should not rely solely on the 
summarised information contained in this Part XI.

The financial year of the Company commences on 1 January and ends on 31 December of each 
year.

1. OVERVIEW 

1.1 The Group’s business involves the provision of broking services to counterparties operating 
in the world’s major wholesale OTC and exchange traded financial and commodity 
markets. As an intermediary, the Group provides a valuable service to its clients through its 
ability to create liquidity through price and volume discovery to facilitate trading, and to 
provide anonymity and confidentiality for the counterparties.

1.2 The business offers broking services in five major product groups: fixed income securities 
and their derivatives; interest rate derivatives; treasury products; equities; and energy.

1.3 The Group's broking business is conducted through voice broking, where brokers, 
supported by proprietary screens displaying historical data, analytics and real-time prices, 
discover price and liquidity for their clients; and through electronic platforms, which 
complement and support the voice broking capability.

1.4 The business brokers products on either a Name Passing (also known as Name Give-Up)
basis (where all counterparties to a transaction settle directly with each other), a Matched 
Principal basis (where the Group is a counterparty to both sides of a matching trade), or an 
Executing Broker basis (where the Group executes transactions on certain regulated 
exchanges in accordance with client orders and then 'gives-up' the trade to the relevant 
client or its clearing member). The Group does not take any proprietary positions.

1.5 The Group also has an established Information Sales business (Tullett Prebon 
Information), which collects, cleanses, collates and distributes real-time information to data 
providers, and a Risk Management Services business, which provides clients with post-
trade, multi-product matching services.

1.6 The Group operates in Europe, the Middle East, Africa, North and South America and Asia 
Pacific.  Its principal offices are in London, New York, New Jersey, Singapore, Hong Kong 
and Tokyo.

1.7 The Group's revenue is derived from brokerage commission and from subscription fees 
charged by its Information Sales business. 

1.8 The Group generated revenue of £803.7 million and underlying operating profit of £115.4
million in the year ended 31 December 2013. In the first half of 2014, the Group generated 
revenue of £360.3 million and underlying operating profit of £50.3 million.

2. PRINCIPAL FACTORS AFFECTING RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The principal factors affecting the Group's results of operations and financial condition 
during the periods under review, and those that are expected to affect its results of 
operations and financial condition in the future, include the following:
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2.1 Level of financial market volatility

2.1.1 The Group generates revenue from commissions it earns by facilitating and 
executing customer orders. The level of revenue is substantially dependent on 
customer trading volumes. The volumes of transactions the Group’s customers' 
conduct with it are affected by the level of volatility in financial markets, by their 
risk appetite, and by their willingness and ability to trade.  Volatility is one of the 
key drivers of activity in the financial markets.  During periods of market 
turbulence the level of volatility tends to be high and the business benefits from 
the increased volumes that occur during such periods.  Levels of activity in the 
financial markets can reduce sharply, however, when high volatility is 
overshadowed by structural uncertainty, resulting in a reduction in risk appetite 
amongst clients.  During periods of low volatility the level of financial market 
activity is generally lower, and the volume of transactions undertaken by the 
business on behalf of its clients tends to be lower. 

2.1.2 The level of volatility increased markedly during the second half of 2008,
reflecting the upheaval in financial markets following the collapse of Lehman 
Brothers, and this continued into the first half of 2009.  The level of volatility in the 
financial markets has reduced since that time. Yield curves have lowered and 
flattened in response to actions taken by governments and supranational bodies 
through quantitative easing, and increases in both government borrowing and 
government commitments to private sector borrowing have served to reduce 
volatility in the financial markets.

2.1.3 The level of market activity was lower in 2011 than in 2010, and was lower in 
2012 than in 2011, reflecting the lower levels of volatility in most of the asset 
classes in which the business operates. Despite increases in benchmark bond 
yields and a general steepening of yield curves during 2013, measures of 
financial market volatility remained low.  There was some financial market 
turbulence during 2013 but periods of higher levels of market activity were 
isolated and were not sustained. Measures of financial market volatility reached 
post financial crisis lows during the first half of 2014, which also saw further 
flattening of yield curves and significant further spread compression in bond 
markets. Although market conditions have continued to be challenging in the 
period since 1 July 2014, the level of activity in financial markets has benefited 
from some pick up in volatility in September and October, particularly in the 
Americas and in Asia Pacific. The level of activity in Europe and the Middle East 
has improved more modestly, reflecting the cyclical effect of further flattening and 
lowering of yield curves which continues to dampen trading activity in the region.

2.2 The impact of the changing regulatory environment for the Group’s customers

2.2.1 In response to the financial crisis following the collapse of Lehman Brothers in 
2008, regulators worldwide have been adopting an increased level of scrutiny in 
supervising the financial markets and have been generally tightening the capital, 
leverage and liquidity requirements of commercial and investment banks, and 
taking steps to limit or separate their activities in order to reduce risk.

2.2.2 The level of the Group’s revenue is substantially dependent on customer trading 
volumes. The volumes of transactions the Group’s customers conduct with it 
have been affected by their reaction to the actions being taken by regulators 
which have generally reduced their risk appetite and their willingness and ability 
to trade.

2.3 The impact of new regulations directly affecting OTC markets and the costs of complying 
with new regulations 
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2.3.1 Part of the regulatory reforms being introduced relates directly to the operation of 
OTC derivatives markets, which are the most important markets for the Group. 
The regulatory reforms of the OTC derivatives markets are being effected in the 
United States through the implementation by the CFTC and the Securities 
Exchange Commission ("SEC") of the provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act, and in
Europe through the European Markets Infrastructure Regulation ("EMIR") and the 
review of the Markets in Financial Instruments Directive ("MiFID").  There are four 
broad themes to the reforms:

(A) the requirement that certain derivatives contracts be cleared through 
central counterparties (with exemptions for some non-financial market 
participants);

(B) the requirement for trades to be reported to trade repositories;

(C) enhanced pre and post trade transparency; and

(D) the requirement that trades in derivatives contracts which are required to 
be cleared are executed through regulated execution venues (the Swap 
Execution Facility in the United States, and the Organised Trading 
Facility ("OTF") in Europe).

2.3.2 In the United States, the phasing in of mandatory clearing of certain interest rate 
swaps and credit default index swaps commenced in March 2013.  With respect 
to trade execution and reporting, the final rules relating to SEFs were published 
by the CFTC on 4 June 2013.  The Group’s SEF was granted temporary 
registration by the CFTC in September 2013 and started operating on 2 October 
2013 when the rules for the capture and reporting of all trades in instruments 
within the scope of the regulations came into effect. The requirement for the 
mandatory execution within a SEF of trades in instruments that have been 
determined by the CFTC to be 'made available to trade' first came into effect for 
certain instruments in February 2014.

2.3.3   In Europe, the implementation of EMIR, which contains provisions governing 
mandatory clearing requirements and trade reporting requirements for 
derivatives, is coming into effect in stages as the various technical standards are 
agreed.  The mandatory reporting of the details of all derivatives contracts to 
recognised trade repositories came into effect from February 2014.  The first 
clearing obligations are expected to come into effect during 2015, subject to the 
authorisation of a relevant central counterparty, and margin requirements for non-
cleared trades are expected to apply from December 2015.

2.3.4 The legislative framework governing permissible trade execution venues, and 
governance and conduct of business requirements for trading venues, through 
the introduction of a new directive ("MiFID II") and a new regulation ("MiFIR"), 
has been adopted by the EU Council and Parliament. The rules set out in MiFID II 
will become effective at the beginning of 2017.

2.3.5 The development and introduction of the reforms in both the United States and 
Europe has caused considerable uncertainty amongst the Group’s customers, 
which has persisted in the periods after the date at which the various 
requirements have come into force, about which counterparties and which 
transactions may be covered by the reforms and about the actions necessary to 
ensure compliance, which has affected, and may continue to affect, the volumes 
of transactions the Group’s customers conduct with it. 

2.3.6 The reforms reinforce the role of the intermediary in the OTC markets, and the 
introduction of electronic platforms into these markets represents an evolution of 
the facilitation service that the Group provides, rather than fundamentally 
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changing the way in which OTC markets operate, but the reforms do introduce 
new rules for intermediaries and changes in the way in which trading is 
undertaken by participants in these markets.  The reforms are therefore likely to 
have an effect on the Group’s business and the revenue the business is able to 
generate from its activities, including potentially through changes in commission 
rates, the size of the market that is intermediated, or the Group’s market share.

2.3.7 In addition, significant expenditure is being incurred in order to comply with the 
regulations, including the costs of development, launch and the ongoing running 
of new electronic platforms and associated technology infrastructure, and 
additional compliance resources.  In 2013, the charge in the income statement for 
these additional costs was 2% of revenue, and was approaching 3% of revenue 
in the first half of 2014.

2.4 Competition for brokers

2.4.1 The Group competes with other interdealer brokers for staff. The costs of 
employing front office broking staff is currently the largest cost faced by the 
Group.  The effect of the competition for broking staff can result in an increase in 
staff costs, or if staff leave the Group, can result in the loss of capability, 
customer relationships and expertise.

2.4.2 The Group has suffered from predatory actions by one of its competitors including 
raids on the Group’s operations in London and North America designed to poach 
large numbers of brokers. In addition to the costs of the legal action that the
Group has taken to seek to enforce its contractual and other legal rights (see 
below), the Group has faced increased costs of employment for front office 
personnel, reflected in an increase in the broker employment costs relative to 
broking revenue. 

2.5 Management of the cost base

2.5.1 The Group actively manages its cost base to support its profitability as 
circumstances require it.  The Group has in the past undertaken major 
restructuring programmes involving the exit or restructuring of contracts of staff, 
and the exit from certain activities.

2.5.2 Action was taken at the end of 2011 and during the first half of 2012 to reduce 
fixed costs and to maintain flexibility in the cost base. Through this restructuring 
programme, headcount was reduced by 220, over two-thirds of which was from 
the front office, resulting in a significant reduction in annual fixed costs. The costs 
associated with achieving the restructuring programme were included as 
exceptional items in the income statements in the Company's 2011 and 2012 
Annual Reports. 

2.5.3 In light of the continuation of difficult market conditions a number of actions are 
being taken in 2014 to further reduce headcount and other fixed costs. It is 
anticipated that this cost improvement programme will reduce annual fixed costs 
by over £40 million through the exit of around 160 front office headcount and 
around 50 back office headcount and vacating office space. The cost of these 
actions, including the £3.2 million non-cash write down of an employment 
incentive grant receivable that may not be recoverable due to the reduction in 
headcount, is expected to be around £45 million, of which £21 million are non-
cash charges. This cost will be charged as an exceptional item in the 2014 
accounts.

2.5.4 The Group may undertake further cost improvement and restructuring 
programmes from time to time in the future, and any such future action might 
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involve significant costs or have a disruptive effect on the Group’s business, or 
the anticipated benefits of any actions might not be realised in full.

2.6 Changes in the carrying value of goodwill

2.6.1 The Group’s consolidated balance sheet includes a balance relating to goodwill.  
The initial recognition of goodwill represents the excess of the costs of 
acquisitions over the identifiable net assets of the entities acquired.  The carrying 
value of the goodwill allocated to each region is reviewed for impairment at least 
annually.  Impairment testing requires that the estimated value of the business in 
each region is compared with the balance sheet carrying value of the business in 
that region, including goodwill, and any shortfall is recognised as an impairment 
of goodwill.

2.6.2 The estimated value of the business for each region is based on calculations 
reflecting projections of future cash flows and assumptions on growth rates and 
discount rates.  The projections of future cash flows reflect the current 
performance and position of each business without taking into account further 
investment for growth or further actions to reduce costs. Changes in the 
estimated value of the business for each region from time to time may result in 
impairments in the carrying value of goodwill.

2.6.3 The annual impairment review for the 2012 year-end balance sheet concluded 
that the estimated value for the North America region based on its current 
performance and position was £123.0 million less than the balance sheet carrying 
value.  This was recognised as an impairment of the goodwill attributed to the 
region and was included as an exceptional item in the consolidated income 
statement in the Company's 2012 Annual Report. 

2.7 Litigation costs and settlements

2.7.1 Legal action has in the past been, and in some cases continues to be, taken by 
the Group to seek to enforce its contractual and other legal rights, and the Group 
may consider it necessary to take such action in the future. The costs of such 
actions, and the settlements and awards that may be received as a result, may 
be significant.

2.7.2 The costs of the actions taken against BGC and former employees in relation to 
the raids on the Group’s operations in London and North America in 2009, and 
the settlements received as a result, have been reported as exceptional items in 
the Group’s consolidated income statements in the Company's Annual Reports 
since 2010.

2.7.3 Judgment in the legal action that the Group had taken in London against BGC, 
two of BGC’s senior directors and ten former Group brokers was handed down on 
18 March 2010.  It was held that there was an unlawful conspiracy between BGC 
and its two senior directors to poach the Group’s employees and that the Group 
was entitled to a 12 month injunction against all but one of the former brokers, 
and also against BGC, as well as financial remedies.  BGC’s counter-claim 
against the Company was dismissed.  On 22 February 2011 the Court of Appeal 
handed down its Judgment which rejected all of the appeals lodged by BGC.  
This legal action was settled in the first half of 2011.  As part of the settlement it 
was agreed that no further statement would be made by either side about the 
settlement or the dispute.

2.7.4 The outcome of the FINRA arbitration on the claims against certain of BGC's US 
subsidiaries and certain former employees brought by certain of the Group's 
subsidiary companies in the United States which were raided by BGC Partners 
Inc. and certain of its subsidiaries in the second half of 2009, along with various 
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claims asserted against those subsidiary companies, was determined in July 
2014. The Arbitrators determined that certain of BGC's US subsidiaries and 
certain former Group employees should pay US$33.3 million (£19.5 million) in 
compensatory damages to the Group on account of the claims against them, and
that the Group's subsidiary companies should pay $6.1 million (£3.5 million) in 
compensatory damages to a representative of the former equity holders of 
Chapdelaine Corporate Securities & Co. which the Company acquired in January 
2007 on account of certain of their claims, and $0.2 million (£0.1 million) to one of 
the Group's former employees. The net £15.8 million arbitration award was 
received in August 2014.

2.7.5 A separate action is being pursued by the Company and certain of its subsidiaries
against BGC Partners Inc. in the New Jersey Superior Court, alleging, among 
other causes of action, violations under the NJ Racketeering Act. The trial in 
relation to this action has started and is currently scheduled to conclude in
January 2015.

3. RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

3.1 Comparison of the six months ended 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2013

3.1.1 The operating review and financial review for the six months ended 30 June 2014 
and 30 June 2013 respectively of the Company, comprising the information set 
out at the following pages of the Company's 2014 Interim Management Report 
and 2013 Interim Management Report, is incorporated by reference into this 
document:

Interim Management 
Report 2014

Interim 
Management 
Report 2013

Operating Review Pages 7 to 11 Pages 6 to 11
Financial Review Pages 12 to 15 Pages 12 to 15

3.2 Comparison of the financial year ended 31 December 2013 to the financial year 
ended 31 December 2012 and of the financial year 31 December 2012 to the financial 
year ended 31 December 2011

The Business Overview for the financial years ended 31 December 2013 and 31 December 
2012 respectively of the Company, comprising the information set out at the following 
pages of the 2013 Annual Report and 2012 Annual Report respectively, is incorporated by 
reference into this document:

2013 Annual Report 2012 Annual Report 

Operating Review Pages 8 to 10 Pages 8 to 11
Financial Review Pages 11 to 13 Pages 12 to 15

4. CURRENT TRADING TRENDS AND PROSPECTS 

4.1 Market conditions remained challenging throughout the first half of 2014 as the overall level 
of activity in the financial markets remained subdued reflecting persistently low volatility, 
the more onerous regulatory environment for the Group's customers which has reduced 
their risk appetite and their willingness and ability to trade, and the introduction of new 
regulatory reforms directly affecting the operation of the OTC derivatives markets which 
has created uncertainty and the fragmentation of liquidity pools. Consistent with the lower 
level of market activity, revenue in the first half of 2014 was 15% lower than in the same 
period last year at constant exchange rates. Although market conditions have continued to 
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be challenging in the second half of 2014, the level of activity in financial markets benefited 
from some pick up in volatility in September and October, particularly in the Americas and 
in Asia Pacific. The level of activity in Europe and the Middle East has improved more 
modestly, reflecting the cyclical effect of further flattening and lowering of yield curves 
which continues to dampen trading activity in the region.

4.2 Revenue in the four months July to October 2014 was 4% lower than in the same period 
last year at constant exchange rates, and was 8% lower as reported. Year to date (January 
to October) revenue was 11% lower than in the same period last year at constant 
exchange rates (14% lower as reported).

4.3 It is not possible to predict when the level of activity in the financial markets served by the 
Group may increase.

4.4 In the light of the continuation of difficult market conditions the Group continues to focus on 
managing its costs, and a number of actions are being taken to further reduce headcount 
and other fixed costs. 

5. LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

5.1 Cash flow 

5.1.1 The cash flows for the six months ended 30 June 2014 and for the years ended 
31 December 2013, 2012 and 2011 are summarised in the table below:

H1 2014 2013 2012 2011

£m £m £m £m

Operating cash flows before movement in working capital 26.0 112.4 104.7 151.0

Working capital (4.4) (6.0) (45.6)    (6.0)

Cash generated from operations 21.6 106.4 59.1 145.0

Income taxes paid (9.9) (27.5) (27.3) (34.2)

Interest paid (3.2) (16.8) (15.2) (15.6)

Net cash from operating activities 8.5 62.1 16.6 95.2

Net cash from investment activities 17.6 (18.4) (23.9) (15.7)

Dividends paid to shareholders (24.5) (36.7) (36.6) (33.9)

Dividends paid to minority interests (0.1) (0.3) (0.6) (0.7)

Repayment of debt - (30.0) (90.1) (210.2)

Funds received from debt issue - - 80.0 120.0

Debt issue and bank facility arrangement costs - (1.7) (1.3) (3.4)

Net cash used in financing activities (24.6) (68.7) (48.6) (128.2)

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1.5 (25.0) (55.9) (48.7)
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5.2 Explanation of line items in the cash flow statement

5.2.1 The group’s operating cash flows before movement in working capital represents 
the operating profit reported for each year adjusted for non-cash items, mainly 
depreciation and amortisation.

5.2.2 Movements in working capital reflect the net of the movements in settlement 
balances, receivables, prepayments, bonus accruals, and trade and other 
payables. The increase in working capital in 2012 reflected the lower level of 
bonus accruals at the year end.

5.2.3 The majority of the Group’s tax payments are made in the UK where tax liabilities 
are paid partly in arrears. Payments in any one year therefore partly reflect 
charges for current tax in prior periods.

5.2.4 Interest payments reflect the income statement charge for cash finance expenses 
excluding the charge for the amortisation of debt issue costs.

5.2.5 The cash from or used in investment activities reflects capital expenditure, which 
mainly relates to investment in the development of electronic platforms and 
associated infrastructure, and improvements to various leasehold offices, 
expenditure on acquisitions and investments including payments for deferred 
consideration relating to the acquisitions made in previous years, and movements 
in the Group's holdings of financial assets (short term government securities and 
term deposits held with banks and clearing organisations).   

5.3 Capital Structure

5.3.1 The Group’s policy is to maintain a capital base and funding structure that 
maintains creditor, regulator and market confidence and provides flexibility for 
business development.  The capital structure of the Group consists of debt and 
equity attributable to equity holders of the parent, comprising issued capital, 
reserves and retained earnings. 

5.4 Debt Finance

5.4.1 At 31 August 2014 the Group’s outstanding debt comprised £141.1 million 
sterling Notes due July 2016, and £80.0 million sterling Notes due June 2019.
The carrying value of these Notes, net of unamortised issue costs, amounted to 
£219.5 million.

5.4.2 Sterling Notes

(A) Sterling Notes: Due 6 July 2016

In July 2009 £141,144,000 of 7.04% Guaranteed Notes due 6 July 2016 
were issued.

(B) Sterling Notes: Due June 2019

On 11 December 2012, the Group issued its first series of sterling Notes, 
amounting to £80,000,000, under its Euro Medium Term Note 
Programme. These sterling Notes have a coupon of 5.25% and are due 
in June 2019.

5.5 Liquidity and short-term capital resources

5.5.1 The Group manages its day to day liquidity through holding significant cash 
balances and other financial assets, and through various credit and settlement 
facilities provided by the Group's bankers and settlement agents.
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5.5.2 Cash, cash equivalents and other financial assets

At 30 June 2014 the Group held cash, cash equivalents and other financial 
assets totalling £259.8 million.

5.5.3 Revolving Credit Facility

The Group has a committed revolving credit facility of £150 million which will 
mature in April 2016.

5.5.4 Cash flow

The Group generates cash from its operations which funds investment in the 
business and provides funds to pay interest and dividends on the Group’s capital.  
The Group meets principal repayments of debt through a combination of cash 
generated from operations and the raising of new debt, and the Group may issue 
equity in order to fund investments in the business such as acquisitions, or to 
repay debt.  Over the three years 2011 to 2013, the net cash generated from 
operating activities, less the amounts used in investment activities, totalled 
£115.9 million.  The amount paid as dividends to shareholders of the Company in 
that period totalled £107.2 million, with £1.6 million paid as dividends to minority 
interests.   Over that three year period the Group has repaid £330 million of debt 
and raised £200 million (gross of issue costs) of new debt.

6. CAPITALISATION AND INDEBTEDNESS

6.1 Capitalisation and Indebtedness

The following table sets out the capitalisation and indebtedness of the Group as at 31 
August 2014 as extracted from the Group's unaudited accounting records:

Table 6.1

£m 31- August-14 31-December-13

Total Current Debt - (8.5)

Guaranteed - -

Secured - -

Unguaranteed/Unsecured - (8.5)

Total Non-Current Debt (221.1) (221.1)

Guaranteed * (221.1) (221.1)

Secured - -

Unguaranteed/Unsecured - -

Shareholder's Equity (394.6) (396.3)

Share Capital (54.4) (54.4)

Share Premium (17.1) (17.1)

Other Reserves (323.1) (324.8)

TOTAL (615.7) (625.9)

* £80.0m sterling Notes 2019 issued by Tullett Prebon plc guaranteed by TP Holdings Ltd until July 2016
£141.1m sterling Notes 2016 issued by Tullett Prebon Group Holdings Ltd guaranteed by TP Holdings 
Ltd until maturity
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There have been no significant changes to the Group's capitalisation and indebtedness 
position since 31 August 2014.

6.2 Net Financial Indebtedness

The following table shows the net financial indebtedness of the Group as at 31 August 
2014 as extracted from the Group unaudited accounting records:

Table 6.2

£m 31-August-2014 31-December-13

Liquidity 261.4 282.8 

Cash 200.0 212.6 

Cash Equivalents (Liquid Deposits) 50.4 37.4 

Client settlement money 1.7 1.6 

Financial assets 9.3 31.2 

  Current Financial Debt - (8.5)

Notes issued - (8.5)

NET CURRENT FINANCIAL SURPLUS 261.4 274.3 

Non-current financial indebtedness (221.1) (221.1)

Notes issued (221.1) (221.1)

NET FINANCIAL SURPLUS 40.3 53.2 

6.3 Regulatory Capital

The Group's lead regulator is the FCA. The Group has an investment firm consolidation 
waiver (the "Waiver") given by the FCA in accordance with the discretion in Article 15 of 
the CRR so that the Group does not need to apply the requirements of certain aspects of 
the CRR on a consolidated basis. The Waiver took effect on 25 September 2014 and will 
expire on 24 September 2024. Under the terms of the Waiver, the Company, as the parent 
company, must maintain financial resources in excess of the sum of the solo notional 
capital resources requirements for each relevant firm within the Group (the "financial 
holding company test"). Each investment firm within the Group must fall within either of 
the categories set out in Article 95(1) or Article 96(1) of the CRR and each EU investment 
firm in the Group must meet its relevant own funds requirements.

The Group's regulatory capital headroom under the financial company holding test 
calculated in accordance with Pillar 1 as at 31 December 2013 was £608 million (2012: 
£608 million).

Many of the Group's broking entities are regulated on a 'solo' basis, and are obliged to 
meet the regulatory capital requirements imposed by the legal regulator of the jurisdiction 
in which they operate. The Group maintains an appropriate excess of financial resources in 
such entities.

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
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7.1 The Group's Risk Management Governance is set out in paragraph 6 of Part VI of the 
Prospectus. The Group's risk profile is set out on pages 16 to 19 of the Company's 2013
Annual Report, only the following sections of which are hereby incorporated by reference
into this document:

7.1.1 Market Risk;

7.1.2 Credit Risk (including the sub-headings of Pre-settlement risk, Settlement risk, 
Cash deposits, Name Passing brokerage receivables and Concentration risk);

7.1.3 Liquidity Risk; and

7.1.4 Other Financial Risks (including the sub-headings of Interest rate risk, Currency 
risk, Taxation risk and Pension obligation risk).

8. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES, ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

8.1 The Group's critical accounting policies, estimates and judgements are set out in Note 3
(pages 55 to 61) of the Company's audited consolidated annual financial statements in the 
2013 Annual Report which have been incorporated by reference in Part X "Historical 
Financial Information" of the Prospectus.

9. DIVIDENDS AND DIVIDEND POLICY

9.1 There will be no change in the Company's dividend policy as a result of the Acquisition. It is 
envisaged that the Company will continue to pay an interim dividend in November and a 
final dividend in May of each year. 

9.2 Dividends paid per share for the financial years ended 31 December 2013, 2012 and 
2011

9.2.1 In 2014, the Company paid a final dividend for 2013 of 11.25p per Ordinary 
Share, and an interim dividend for 2014 of 5.6p per Ordinary Share.

9.2.2 In 2013, the Company paid a final dividend for 2012 of 11.25p per Ordinary Share 
and an interim dividend for 2013 of 5.6p per Ordinary Share.  

9.2.3 In 2012, the Company paid a final dividend for 2011 of 11.25p per Ordinary Share 
and an interim dividend for 2012 of 5.6p per Ordinary Share.

9.2.4 In 2011, the Company paid a final dividend for 2010 of 10.5p per Ordinary Share 
and an interim dividend for 2011 of 5.25p per Ordinary Share.

10. KEY FINANCIAL AND PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

10.1 The information relating to the Group's key financial and performance indicators as set out 
on page 7 of the Company's 2013 Annual Report is hereby incorporated by reference into 
this document.
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PART XII

DIRECTORS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

1. DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company as at the date of this document and their respective roles are set out 
below:

Name Position

Rupert Robson Chairman

John Phizackerley Chief Executive Officer

Paul Mainwaring Finance Director

Angela Knight Non-executive Director

Roger Perkin Non-executive Director

Stephen Pull Non-executive Director

David Shalders Non-executive Director

The management expertise and experience of each of the Directors is set out below.

Rupert Robson 53 Non-executive Chairman
Rupert Robson was appointed as a Non-executive Director of Tullett Prebon plc in January 2007 
and became the Non-executive Chairman of the Board and Chairman of the Nominations 
Committee on 6 March 2013. He has held a number of senior roles in financial institutions, most 
recently Non-executive Director of London Metal Exchange Holdings Ltd and Non-executive 
Director of OJSC Nomos Bank, Global Head, Financial Institutions Group, Corporate Investment 
Banking and Markets at HSBC and Head of European Insurance, Investment Banking at Citigroup 
Global Markets. He is Chairman of Charles Taylor plc and EMF Capital Partners.

John Phizackerley 52 Chief Executive
John Phizackerley began his career with Anglo American Corporation in South Africa in 1980 as an 
underground mining engineer. He joined Lehman Brothers in 1986 where he worked in both 
Europe and New York becoming Head of Equity Research in 1995. He was appointed Head of 
Equity Sales in Europe in 2000, Global Head of Pan-European Cash Equities in 2003, Co-Head of 
European Equities in 2004, and from 2006 until 2008 was Chief Administrative Officer, Europe and 
Middle East. He remained with the firm post the Nomura acquisition in 2009, first as Co-Chief 
Administration Officer for Nomura International, then in 2010 as Chief Operating Officer for Nomura 
International, and in 2010 he was also appointed Chief Executive Officer for Nomura Bank 
International (NBI). Between 2011 and 2013 he was Chief Executive Officer of Nomura 
International plc. John was an Associate Non-Executive Director of Barts and The London NHS 
Trust from 2010 to 2012, and since 2013 has been Chairman of the Barts and the London NHS 
Trust External Advisory Board.

Paul Mainwaring 51 Finance Director
Paul Mainwaring qualified as a chartered accountant with Price Waterhouse in 1987, and obtained 
an MBA from Cranfield School of Management in 1991. From 1993 to 2000, he worked for 
Caradon plc in a number of financial roles, including three years as Finance Director of MK Electric. 
In 2000, he was appointed as Group Finance Director of TDG plc. He was appointed as Group 
Finance Director of Mowlem plc in 2005. He was appointed to the Collins Stewart Tullett plc Board 
in October 2006, and has been Finance Director of Tullett Prebon plc since December 2006.
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Angela Knight 64 Senior Independent Non-executive Director
Angela Knight was appointed as a Non-executive Director of Tullett Prebon plc in September 2011. 
She is a member of the Audit, Remuneration and Nominations Committees. Angela Knight is 
currently the Chief Executive of Energy UK and a Non-executive director of Brewin Dolphin 
Holdings plc and Transport for London. She was formerly the Chief Executive of the British 
Bankers’ Association from 2007 to 2012 and the Chief Executive of the Association of Private 
Client Investment Managers and Stockbrokers from 1997 to 2006. She was also formerly the 
Member of Parliament for Erewash from 1992 to 1997, serving as a Treasury Minister from 1995 to 
1997. Her previous Non-executive director appointments include the Financial Skills Partnership, 
Lloyds TSB plc, Scottish Widows and LogicaCMG plc.

Roger Perkin 66 Independent Non-executive Director
Roger Perkin joined the Board on 1 July 2012 and became Chairman of the Audit Committee at the 
end of July 2012. He is also a member of the Remuneration and Nominations Committees. He is a 
former partner at Ernst & Young LLP and spent 40 years in the accounting profession before 
retiring from the firm in 2009. He is a Non-executive Director and Chairman of the Audit Committee 
for Nationwide Building Society, Electra Private Equity plc and Friends Life Group Limited and was 
formerly a Non-executive Director at The Evolution Group plc until its acquisition in December 
2011. He is a trustee of two charities, Chiddingstone Castle and Crime Reduction Initiatives.

Stephen Pull 58 Independent Non-executive Director
Stephen Pull was appointed as a Non-executive Director of Tullett Prebon plc in September 2011. 
He is the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and is a member of the Audit and Nominations 
Committees. Stephen Pull was Chairman of Corporate Broking at Nomura between 2008 and 2011 
following their acquisition of Lehman Brothers Europe for whom Stephen worked from 2002 as 
Head of Corporate Broking, and then as Chairman of Corporate Broking. He has also held a 
number of other senior roles in the City, including Managing Director of Corporate Broking at Merrill 
Lynch and Head of UK Equity Sales at Barclays de Zoete Wedd.

David Shalders 47 Independent Non-executive Director
David Shalders joined the Board on 27 February 2014 and is a member of the Remuneration 
Committee. David Shalders is Group Operations & Technology Director at Willis Group Holdings 
plc, responsible for information technology, operations, real estate and change management 
functions. David Shalders joined Willis from the Royal Bank of Scotland Group where he served for 
over a decade in senior operations and IT roles, most recently as Global Chief Operating Officer for 
Global Banking and Markets. He also led the division’s regulatory response to Basel 3. Prior to 
that, David led the Group’s integration with ABN Amro and held roles as Head of London and Asia 
Operations and Head of Derivative Operations for NatWest.

The business address of all of the Directors is Tower 42, Level 37, 25 Old Broad Street, London, 
EC2N 1HQ.

For further information on the Directors, including the companies of which each of the Directors has 
been a director at any time in the past five years, see "Directors and Other Interests" in Part XIII.

2. REMUNERATION AND BENEFITS

2.1 Information regarding the amount of remuneration paid to the Directors and benefits in 
kind, including amounts set aside by the Group to provide pension, retirement or similar 
benefits in relation to Directors for the year ended 31 December 2013, is set out in the 
Report on Directors' Remuneration on pages 32 to 43 of the Company's 2013 Annual 
Report, which is hereby incorporated by reference into this document. Save as set out 
below, there have been no other changes to Directors' remuneration since 31 December 
2013 as at the date of this document.

John Phizackerley entered into a service contract with the Company on 16 July 2014,
which sets out the terms and conditions on which he has been employed as Chief 
Executive Officer of the Company with effect from 1 September 2014 (the "Start Date").
Under this service contract, John's basic salary is £550,000 per annum, payable monthly in 
arrears (less normal deductions for tax and national insurance).
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With effect from the Start Date, John is eligible to be considered for an annual discretionary 
bonus (as set out within the terms of the Directors Remuneration Policy of the Company 
from time to time in force and the rules of the Executive Directors' Bonus Scheme from 
time to time in force).  For the financial year 2014 such bonus is capped at 2% of the 
reported operating profit of the Group and pro-rated for the period he is employed under 
such service contract during 2014.  With effect from the Start Date, John is eligible for
participation in the Company's private medical and life insurance plans, is covered by the 
current Directors and Officers Liability insurance policy and is eligible to be considered for 
participation in the Tullett Prebon Long Term Incentive Scheme (which was approved by 
shareholders at the 2014 AGM and is described in the Report on Directors' Remuneration
on pages 32 to 43 of the Company's Annual Report), subject to the rules applicable to such 
scheme (as considered or varied from time to time).

On 6 November 2014, the Remuneration Committee made awards of £400,000 to John 
Phizackerley and £200,000 to Paul Mainwaring respectively under the Tullett Prebon Long 
Term Incentive Scheme, subject to the performance conditions set out in that scheme and 
the rules applicable to that scheme (as considered or varied from time to time). The normal 
vesting date of both these awards is 30 June 2017. 

3. DIRECTORS' TERMS AND CONDITIONS

3.1 Executive Directors

The terms and conditions relating to the employment of the Executive Directors (except 
John Phizackerley) are set out in the Report on Directors' Remuneration on pages 32 to 43
in the Company's 2013 Annual Report which are hereby incorporated by reference into this 
document.

John Phizackerley entered into a service contract with the Company on 16 July 2014 which 
sets out the terms and conditions on which he has been employed as Chief Executive 
Officer of the Company from the Start Date. Under this service contract, John is required to 
give and entitled to receive not less than 12 months' notice of termination employment 
(save in circumstances justifying summary termination).  The Company may elect to make 
a payment in lieu of notice. John's service contract does not provide for a termination 
payment in excess of annual salary and contractual benefits.

With effect from the Start Date, John is eligible for participation in the Company's private 
medical and life insurance plans, is covered by the current Directors and Officers Liability 
insurance policy and is eligible to be considered for participation in the Tullett Prebon Long 
Term Incentive Scheme (which was approved by shareholders at the 2014 AGM and is 
described in the Report on Directors' Remuneration on pages 32 to 43 of the Company's
Annual Report), subject to the rules applicable to such scheme (as considered or varied 
from time to time).

Save for its use to satisfy any obligation on the Company to automatically enrol John in a 
pension arrangement, he will not be eligible to join the Tullett Prebon Pension Scheme. If 
he is automatically enrolled into the Tullett Prebon Pension Scheme, it will be subject to the 
rules and conditions of that scheme and at the level of contributions required to satisfy the 
statutory minimum requirements, or as otherwise referred to in the applicable remuneration 
policy from time to time.

3.2 Non-Executive Directors

The terms and conditions relating to the appointment of the Non-Executive Directors are 
set out in the Report on Directors' Remuneration on pages 32 to 43 in the Company's 2013 
Annual Report which are hereby incorporated by reference into this document.

3.3 Former directors

Terry Smith stood down as an executive director of the Company on 31 August 2014.  The 
Company has elected to pay Terry the sum of £652,000 in lieu of the 12 month notice 
period under his service contract with the Company.  This reflects the value of the salary
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and contractual benefits to which Terry would have been entitled during the notice period.  
The Remuneration Committee has also exercised discretions in Terry's favour under the
Tullett Prebon Long Term Incentive Plan and the Tullett Prebon Long Term Incentive 
Scheme.  Further details are set out in the website disclosure made by the Company 
pursuant to section 430(2B) of the Companies Act 2006.

On 16 July 2014 the Company entered into a two year fixed term agreement with a 
personal services company, Value Investments Limited, pursuant to which, following his 
standing down as an executive director and Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 31 
August 2014, Terry Smith would provide consultancy services to the Company (with effect
from 1 September 2014). The consultancy services include advising the Chairman and the 
Board on matters relating to the management and strategic development of the Company
and sharing industry knowledge.

The Company has agreed to pay a fee for the consultancy services of £250,000 per annum 
(inclusive of VAT if applicable).  In addition, the Company will reimburse reasonable out of 
pocket expenses in connection with providing the consultancy services.  Given that Terry 
may be required to perform some of the consultancy services from the New York area, the 
Company has agreed that he may stay in Company accommodation in New York (if 
available) for as long as reasonably necessary during the first year of the consultancy.

3.4 Directors' indemnity

All of the Directors have been granted indemnities by the Company to the maximum extent 
permitted by the Companies Act (including the right to recover costs on an ''as incurred'' 
basis), subject to certain exceptions, including that such indemnities will not apply to the 
extent that any recovery is made under any policy of insurance.

3.5 Termination benefits

Save as disclosed above in paragraph 3.1 of this Part XII and set out below, there are no 
existing or proposed service agreements between any Director and any member of the 
Group providing for benefits upon termination of employment. 

4. DIRECTORS' INTERESTS

4.1 The interests (all beneficial) of the Directors in the ordinary share capital of the Company 
as at the end of the financial year ended 31 December 2013 are set out in the Directors' 
Report (page 41) in the Company's 2013 Annual Report which is hereby incorporated by 
reference into this document. Save as discussed below, there have been no changes to 
the interests of the Directors prior to the date of this Prospectus.

4.2 The Directors have the following interests in the Company's Ordinary Shares:

Director Number of Ordinary Shares

John Phizackerley Nil

Paul Mainwaring 279,741

Stephen Pull 7,000

Rupert Robson 7,000

Roger Perkin Nil

Angela Knight Nil

David Shalders Nil
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4.3 The outstanding share options awarded to the Directors under the Tullett Prebon Long 
Term Incentive Plan as at the end of the financial year ended 31 December 2013 are set 
out in the Report on Directors' Remuneration (pages 32 to 43) in the Company's 2013
Annual Report which is hereby incorporated by reference into this document. There have 
been no changes in the share options awarded to the Directors prior to the date of this 
Prospectus.

4.4 Save as disclosed in this paragraph no Director has any interests (beneficial or non-
beneficial) in the share capital of the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

4.5 Save as disclosed above, no other person involved in the Acquisition has an interest which 
is material to the Acquisition.

4.6 No Director has or has had any interest in any transaction which is or was unusual in its 
nature or conditions, or which is or was significant to the business of the Company and 
which was effected by the Company during the current or immediately preceding financial
year or during any further financial year and which remains in any respect outstanding or 
unperformed.

4.7 There are no outstanding loans granted by the Company or any member of the Group to 
any of the Directors nor has any guarantee been provided by the Company or any of its 
subsidiaries for their benefit.

5. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

5.1 The Board currently complies with, and complied throughout the year to 31 December 
2013 with, the Governance Code, and will continue to comply with the Governance Code 
on and following the Acquisition.

5.2 The Company complies with a code of securities dealings which is consistent with the 
Model Code. The Model Code applies to the directors of the Company and relevant 
employees of the Group.

5.3 The Group's corporate governance policies, including the terms of reference and 
composition of the Audit, Remuneration and Nominations Committees, are set out in the 
Corporate Governance Report on pages 25-31 of the Company's 2013 Annual Report 
which are hereby incorporated by reference into this document. Save as discussed below, 
there have been no changes in the Group's corporate governance as at the date of this 
document.

5.4 The Board considers that Angela Knight, Roger Perkin, Stephen Pull, and David Shalders
are Non-executive Directors who are independent of management and free from any 
business or other relationship that could materially interfere with the exercise of their 
independent judgement.

5.5 The Board has established three principal committees, the Audit Committee, the 
Remuneration Committee and the Nominations Committee.

The current members of each committee as at the date of this document are as follows:

Chairman Members

Audit Committee Roger Perkin Angela Knight and Stephen 
Pull

Remuneration Committee Stephen Pull Angela Knight, Roger Perkin
and David Shalders

Nominations Committee Rupert Robson Angela Knight, Stephen Pull 
and Roger Perkin
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PART XIII

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

1. RESPONSIBILITY

The Company and the Directors, whose names appear on page 36 of this document, accept 
responsibility for the information contained in this document.  To the best of the knowledge and 
belief of the Company and the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is 
the case), the information contained in this document is in accordance with the facts and does not 
omit anything likely to affect the import of such information.

2. INCORPORATION AND REGISTERED OFFICE

The Company was incorporated and registered in England and Wales on 5 May 2006 as a public
company limited by shares with the name New CST Plc and the registered number 05807599. By a 
special resolution, the Company changed its name to Tullett Prebon plc on 15 December 2006.

The principal legislation under which the Company operates and under which the Company's 
Consideration Shares will be issued is the Companies Act and the regulations made thereunder.

The Company is domiciled in the United Kingdom with its registered office and principal place of 
business at Tower 42, Level 37, 25 Old Broad Street, London, EC2N 1HQ. The telephone number 
of the Company's registered office is +44 (0) 20 7200 7000.

3. ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

Following the Acquisition, the Company will remain the ultimate holding company in the Group.

The Company's principal subsidiaries and associated undertakings (each of which are considered 
by the Company to be likely to have a significant effect on the assessment of the assets and 
liabilities, the financial position or the profits and losses of the Group) as at the end of the financial 
year ended 31 December 2013 are set out in Note 38 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial 
Statements (page 93) in the Company's 2013 Annual Report which is hereby incorporated into this 
document.

4. SHARE CAPITAL

4.1 Issued share capital

The issued fully paid up share capital of the Company as at the date of this document is, and at the 
date of Admission is expected to be, as follows:

Issued and fully paid at the date of this document

Class Number Nominal value per share £

Ordinary shares 217,739,704 0.25

Issued and fully paid at the date of Admission (assuming that the maximum number of 
Consideration Shares are issued)

Class Number Nominal value per share £

Ordinary shares 243,516,227 0.25
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4.2 Changes in share capital prior to Admission

4.2.1 On incorporation, the authorised share capital of the Company was £50,000.02 
divided into 50,000 redeemable deferred shares of £1 each and two ordinary 
shares of £0.01 each. 

4.2.2 As at 13 December 2006, the Company's authorised share capital was 
£1,992,946,152, comprising 50,002 redeemable deferred shares of £1 each and 
284,699,450 ordinary shares of £7 each.

4.2.3 Pursuant to the authority granted under an ordinary resolution passed on 13 
December 2006, 212,338,139 ordinary shares at £7 each were allotted. Following 
this allotment, 212,338,141 ordinary shares of £7 each were in issue and the 
remainder (being 72,361,309 ordinary shares of £7 each) were unissued and 
50,002 redeemable deferred shares of £1 each were in issue.

4.2.4 By a special resolution of the Company passed on 23 November 2006 and with 
the sanction of the High Court of Justice dated 18 December 2006, the 
authorised share capital of the Company was reduced from £1,992,946,152, 
divided into 50,002 redeemable shares of £1 each and 284,699,450 ordinary 
shares of £7 each, to £925,323,214.50, divided into 50,002 redeemable shares of 
£1 each, of which 50,002 were in issue, and 284,699,450 ordinary shares of 
£3.25 each, of which 212,338,141 were in issue.

4.2.5 On 16 January 2007, two ordinary shares of £3.25 each were cancelled in 
accordance with section 146 of the Companies Act 1985, having been acquired 
by the Company otherwise than for valuable consideration.

4.2.6 By a special resolution of the Company passed on 26 February 2007 and with the 
sanction of the High Court of Justice dated 14 March 2007, the issued capital of 
the Company was reduced from £925,323,214.50, divided into 50,002 
redeemable shares of £1 each and 284,699,450 ordinary shares of £3.25 each, 
to £71,224,864.50, divided into 50,002 redeemable shares of £1 each (of which 
50,002 were in issue) and 284,699,450 ordinary shares of £0.25 each (of which 
212,338,139 were in issue).

4.2.7 On 7 June 2007, 50,002 redeemable deferred shares of £1 each were redeemed 
in accordance with the Company's articles of association.

4.2.8 Pursuant to the authority granted under an ordinary resolution passed on 26 
February 2007:

(A) 630,680 ordinary shares of £0.25 each were allotted on 12 November 
2007;

(B) 2,262,196 ordinary shares of £0.25 each were allotted on 14 March 2008; 
and

(C) 82,569 ordinary shares of £0.25 each were allotted on 2 June 2008.

4.2.9 Pursuant to the authority granted under an ordinary resolution passed on 12 May 
2011:

(A) 2,298,288 ordinary shares of £0.25 each were allotted on 5 January 
2012; and

(B) 127,832 ordinary shares of £0.25 each were allotted on 18 April 2013.
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4.2.10 As at 18 April 2013 (being the date of the most recent allotment prior to the date 
of this prospectus) the share capital of the Company was £54,434,926, divided 
into 217,739,704 ordinary shares of £0.25 each.

4.2.11 By an ordinary resolution of the Company on 9 May 2014, the directors were 
granted authority to allot shares in the Company or grant rights to subscribe for, 
or convert any security into, shares in the Company:

(A) up to a maximum nominal amount of £18,144,975 (such amount to be 
reduced by the nominal amount of any equity securities allotted under
section 4.2.11(B) below in excess of £18,144,975); and

(B) comprising equity securities, up to a maximum nominal amount of 
£36,289,950 (such amount to be reduced by any shares allotted or rights 
granted under 4.2.11(A) above) in connection with an offer by way of 
rights issue. 

Save in respect of the Consideration Shares and the Deferred Consideration Shares pursuant to 
the Acquisition and pursuant to the operation of the Tullett Prebon Long Term Incentive Plan, there 
are no acquisition rights or obligations in relation to the issue of shares in the capital of the 
Company or an undertaking to increase the capital of the Company.

There are no convertible securities, exchangeable securities or securities with warrants in the 
Company in issue.

Save as disclosed in this document, during the three years immediately preceding the date of this 
document, there has been no issue of share capital of the Company fully or partly paid either for 
cash or other consideration and no such issues are proposed and no share capital of any member 
of the Group is under option or agreed, conditionally or unconditionally, to be put under option.

Rights attaching to the Ordinary Shares are summarised in paragraph 5.3.2 of this Part XIII below.

No commissions, discounts, brokerages or other special terms have been granted in respect of the 
issue of any share capital of the Company.

The Ordinary Shares are in registered form and, subject to the provisions of the CREST 
Regulations, the Directors may permit the holding of Ordinary Shares in uncertificated form and title 
to the Ordinary Shares may be transferred by means of a relevant system (as defined in the 
CREST Regulations).  Where the Ordinary Shares are held in certificated form, share certificates 
will be sent to the registered share owners by first class post.  No temporary documents of title 
have been or will be issued in respect of the Company's Ordinary Shares.

5. MEMORANDUM AND ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

5.1 The Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association are available for inspection as 
described in paragraph 22 of Part XIII of this Prospectus, and are available for inspection at 
the Company's registered office.

5.2 The Articles provide that the Company's objects are unrestricted. (Article 3)

5.3 The Articles, adopted pursuant to the Special Resolution passed on 10 May 2012, contain 
(among others) provisions to the following effect:

5.3.1 Share Capital

Liability of Members

The liability of the members is limited to the amount, if any, unpaid on the shares in the 
Company respectively held by them. (Article 4)

Further Issues and Rights attaching to the Shares
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Subject to the Statutes and to the rights conferred on the holders of any other shares, any 
share may be issued with such rights or restrictions as the Company may by ordinary 
resolution determine or, if the Company has not so determined, as the directors may 
determine. (Article 5)

Subject to the Statutes, the Articles of Association and any resolution of the Company, the 
board may offer, allot (with or without conferring a right of renunciation), grant options over 
or otherwise deal with or dispose of any shares to such persons, at such times and 
generally on such terms as the board may decide. (Article 6)

Changes to the share capital

The Company may by ordinary resolution:

 increase its share capital by the allotment of new shares

 reduce its share capital; 

 sub-divide or consolidate and divide all or any of its share capital; and

 redenominate all or any of its shares and reduce its share capital in connection 
with such a redenomination. (Article 10)

Redemption of shares

Subject to the Statutes, any share may be issued which is or is to be liable to be redeemed 
at the option of the Company or the holder, and the directors may determine the terms, 
conditions and manner of redemption of any such share before the shares are allotted. 
(Article 11)

5.3.2 Rights attaching to the Shares of the Company

Dividends

The Company may by ordinary resolution declare dividends in accordance with their
respective rights and interests in the profits but no dividend shall exceed the amount 
recommended by the directors. The directors may pay interim dividends or dividends 
payable at a fixed rate, if it appears to them that they are justified by the profits of the 
Company available for distribution. If the directors act in good faith they shall not incur any 
liability to the holders of shares conferring preferred rights for any loss they may suffer by 
the lawful payment of an interim dividend on any shares having non-preferred or deferred 
rights. (Article 107, 108) 

Except as otherwise provided by the Articles of Association or the rights attached to 
shares, all dividends shall be declared and paid according to the amounts paid up on the 
shares on which the dividend is paid. If any share is issued on terms that it ranks for 
dividend as from a particular date, it shall rank for dividend accordingly.  In any other case, 
dividends shall be apportioned and paid proportionately to the amounts paid up on the 
shares during any portion(s) of the period in respect of which the dividend is paid. The 
dividends may be declared or paid in any currency. (Article 109) 

A general meeting declaring a dividend may, upon the recommendation of the directors, 
direct that it shall be satisfied wholly or partly by the distribution of specific assets and, 
where any difficulty arises in regard to the distribution, the directors may settle the same as 
they think fit. (Article 115)

The directors may, with the authority of an ordinary resolution of the Company, offer any 
holders of ordinary shares the right to elect to receive new ordinary shares, credited as fully 
paid, instead of cash in respect of the whole (or some part) of any dividend specified by the 
ordinary resolution. (Article 116)
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No dividend or other moneys payable by the Company on or in respect of any share shall 
bear interest against the Company, unless otherwise provided by the rights attached to the 
share. (Article 111)

The Company may cease to send any payment in respect of any dividend payable in 
respect of a share if: 

 in respect of at least two consecutive dividends payable on that share, the cheque 
or warrant has been returned to the Company or remains uncashed; or 

 in respect of one dividend payable on that share the cheque or warrant has been 
returned to the Company or remains uncashed, or another method of payment has 
failed, and reasonable enquiries have failed to establish any new address or 
account of the recipient,

but, subject to the Articles of Association, the Company may recommence sending 
cheques or warrants or using another method of payment in respect of dividends payable 
on that share if the person(s) entitled so request and have supplied to the Company a new 
address or account to be used for that purpose. (Article 114)

All unclaimed dividends, interest or other sums payable may be invested or otherwise 
made use of by the board for the benefit of the Company until claimed. All dividends 
unclaimed for a period of 12 years after having been declared shall be forfeited and cease 
to remain owing by the Company. (Article 113)

Voting rights

Subject to any rights or restrictions attached to any shares (Article 40)

 on a show of hands:

o every member who is present in person has one vote;

o every proxy present who has been duly appointed by one or more 
members entitled to vote on the resolution has one vote, except that if the 
proxy has been duly appointed by more than one member entitled to vote 
and is instructed by one or more of those members to vote for the 
resolution and by one or more others to vote against it, or is instructed by 
one or more of those members to vote in one way and is given discretion 
as to how to vote by one or more others (and wishes to use that discretion 
to vote in the other way)  he has one vote for and one vote against the 
resolution; and

o every corporate representative present who has been duly authorised by a 
corporation has the same voting rights as the corporation would be entitled 
to;

 on a poll every member present in person or by duly appointed proxy or corporate 
representative has one vote for every share of which he is the holder or in respect 
or which his appointment as proxy or corporate representative has been made.

For the purposes of determining which persons are entitled to attend or vote at any general 
meeting and how many votes such persons may cast, the Company may specify in the 
notice convening the meeting a time, not more than 48 hours before the time fixed for the 
meeting (not including any part of a day that is not a working day), by which a person must 
be entered on the register in order to have the right to attend or vote at the meeting. (Article 
40)

In the case of joint holders, the vote of the joint holder whose name appears first on the 
register of members in respect of the joint holding shall be accepted to the exclusion of the 
votes of the other joint holders. (Article 42)
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No member, unless the board decides otherwise, shall have the right to vote at any general 
meeting or at any separate meeting of the holders of any class of shares, either in person 
or by proxy, in respect of any share held by him unless all amounts presently payable by 
him in respect of that share have been paid. (Article 44)

5.3.3 Transfer of the shares

Subject to the restrictions in the Articles of Association, a member may transfer all or any of 
his shares in any manner which is permitted by the Statutes and is from time to time 
approved by the directors. (Article 17)

A share in certificated form may be transferred by an instrument of transfer which may be 
in any usual form or in any other form approved by the directors, executed by or on behalf 
of the transferor and, where the share is not fully paid, by or on behalf of the transferee. 
The Company shall maintain a record of uncertificated shares in accordance with the 
Statutes.  The transfer may not be in favour of more than four transferees. (Articles 18, 19)

In their absolute discretion the directors may refuse to register the transfer of a share in 
certificated form over which the Company has a lien or which is not fully paid provided that 
if the share is listed on the Official List such refusal does not prevent dealings in the shares 
from taking place on an open and proper basis.  The directors may also refuse to register a 
transfer of a share in certificated form (whether fully paid or not) unless the instrument of 
transfer:

• is lodged, duly stamped, at the registered office of the Company or such other 
place as the directors may appoint;

• is accompanied by the certificate for the share to which it relates and such other 
evidence as the directors may reasonably require to show the right of the transferor 
to make the transfer; and

• is in respect of only one class of share; (Article 19)

If the directors refuse to register a transfer of a share, they shall send the transferee notice 
of that refusal with reasons for the refusal within two months after the date on which the 
transfer was lodged with the Company (in the case of a transfer of a share in certificated 
form). (Article 21)

No fee shall be charged for the registration of any instrument of transfer of other document 
or instruction relating to or affecting the title to any share. (Article 20)

5.3.4 Distribution of assets on a winding-up

If the Company is wound up, the liquidator may, with the sanction of a special resolution 
and any other authority required by law, divide among the members in specie the whole or 
any part of the assets of the Company and may, for that purpose, value any assets and 
determine how the division shall be carried out as between the members or different 
classes of members. The liquidator may, with the like sanction, vest the whole or any part 
of the assets in trustees upon such trusts for the benefit of the members as he may with 
the like sanction determine, but no member shall be compelled to accept any assets upon 
which there is a liability. (Article 130) 

5.3.5 Disclosure of interest in shares 

Where a section 793 notice is given by the Company to a person appearing to be 
interested in any share, a copy shall at the same time be given to the holder, but the 
accidental omission to do so or the non-receipt of the copy by the holder shall not prejudice 
the operation of this Article 25.
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If the holder of, or any person appearing to be interested in, any share has been given a 
section 793 notice and, in respect of that share, has been in default for a period of 14 days 
after the section 793 notice has been given, the below restrictions shall apply and shall 
continue to apply for the period specified by the board being not more than seven days 
after the earlier of the Company being notified that the default shares have been sold 
pursuant to an exempt transfer or the due compliance, to the satisfaction of the board, with 
the section 793 notice.

The restrictions referred to above are as follows:

o if the default shares in which any one person is interested or appears to be 
interested represent less than 0.25% of the issued shares of that class, the holder 
of the default shares shall not be entitled, in respect of those shares, to attend or to 
vote at any general meeting;

o if the default shares in which any one person is interested or appears to be 
interested represent less than 0.25% of the issued shares of that class, that 
holders of the default shares shall not be entitled to, in respect of those shares:

 attend or vote at any general meeting;

 receive any dividend or other distribution;

 transfer of agree to transfer any of those shares on the rights in them

The restrictions shall not prejudice the right of either the member holding the default shares 
or, if different, any person having a power of sale over those shares to sell or agree to sell 
those shares under an exempt transfer. The board has the power to waive these 
restrictions, in whole or in part, at any time. (Article 25)

5.3.6 Untraced members

The Company shall be entitled to sell at the best price reasonably obtainable any share 
held by a member, or any share to which a person is entitled by transmission (including in 
consequence of death or bankruptcy of the member or otherwise by operation of law) if:

 for a period of 12 years, no cash dividend has been claimed, no dividend sent by 
means of a funds transfer system has been paid, no communication has been 
received by the Company from the member or the person entitled by transmission 
to the share and no cheque or warrant or other method of payment for amounts 
payable in respect of the share sent and payable in a manner authorised by the 
Articles of Association has been cashed or effected;

 during that period of 12 years, at least three dividends have become payable 
(whether interim or final) and no such dividend has been claimed by the member or 
person concerned;

 the Company has, after the expiration of that period, by advertisement in a national 
newspaper published in the UK and in a newspaper circulating in the area of the 
registered address or last known address of the member or person concerned, 
given notice of its intention to sell such share; and

 the Company has not during the further period of three months following the date 
of publication of the advertisements and prior to the sale of the share received any 
communication from the member or person concerned. (Article 127)

5.3.7 Variation of Rights

If the capital of the Company is divided into different classes of shares, the rights attached 
to any class in issue may be varied from time to time (whether or not the Company is being 
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wound up) in such a manner (if any) as may be provided by those rights or if there are no 
such provisions either with the consent in writing of the holders of three-quarters in nominal 
value of the issued shares of that class, or with the sanction of a special resolution passed 
at a separate meeting of the holders of such shares.

To every such separate meeting the provisions of the Articles of Association relating to 
general meetings shall apply, except that the quorum for any such meeting shall be two 
persons together holding or representing by proxy at least one-third in nominal value of the 
issued shares of the class in question. At an adjourned meeting the quorum shall be, one 
person holding shares of the class in question or his proxy. 

Unless otherwise expressly provided by the rights attached to any class of shares, those 
rights shall be deemed not to be varied by the creation or issue of further shares ranking 
pari passu with them or by the purchase or redemption of any of its own shares by the 
Company. (Article 16)

5.3.8 Directors of the Company

Appointment

Unless the Company determines otherwise by ordinary resolution, the number of directors 
(other than alternate directors) shall not be less than two nor more than 15. (Article 50) 

Subject to the provisions of the Articles of Association, the Company may by ordinary 
resolution appoint a person who is willing to act as a director, and is permitted by law to do 
so, to be a director, either to fill a vacancy or as an additional director. (Article 52)

The directors may appoint a person who is willing to act as a director, and is permitted by 
law to do so, to be a director, either to fill a vacancy or as an additional director, provided 
that the appointment does not cause the number of directors to exceed any number fixed 
as the maximum number of directors.  (Article 54)

Other than a director retiring at the meeting, no person shall be appointed or reappointed a 
director at any general meeting unless he is recommended by the directors or notice of the 
intention to propose such person for appointment or reappointment executed by a member 
qualified to vote on the appointment or reappointment is given to the company not less 
than 14 nor more than 42 days before the date of appointed for the meeting. (Article 52)

Retirement

At each AGM, all directors who held office on the date seven days before the date of notice 
of the AGM will retire.   

If the Company, at the meeting at which a director retires under any provision of the 
Articles of Association, does not fill the vacancy the retiring director shall, if willing to act, 
be deemed to have been reappointed unless at the meeting it is resolved not to fill the 
vacancy or a resolution for the reappointment of the director is put to the meeting and lost. 
If a director retiring at an AGM is not reappointed or deemed to have been reappointed, he 
shall retain office until the meeting elects someone in his place or, if it does not do so, until 
the close of the meeting. (Article 55)

Removal

In addition to any power of removal under the Companies Act, the Company may remove a 
director before the expiration of his period of office by special resolution or by an ordinary 
resolution of which special notice has been given. A director may also be removed from 
office by giving him notice to that effect signed or approved in writing by or on behalf of not 
less than three quarters of the other directors (or their alternates).  (Article 56)

A person ceases to be a director as soon as:
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 he is prohibited by law from being a director;

 he generally becomes bankrupt or he makes any arrangements or composition 
with his creditors generally; or

 a registered medical practitioner who has examined him gives a written opinion to 
the Company stating that he has become physically or mentally incapable of acting 
as a director and may remain so for more than three months, or by reason of his 
mental health, a court makes an order which wholly or partly prevents him from 
personally exercising any powers or rights which he would otherwise have and, in 
either case, the board resolves that his office is to be vacated;

 for more than six months both he and any alternate director appointed by him are 
absent, without special leave of absence from the board, from board meetings held 
during that period and the board resolves that his office is to be vacated; or

 he gives to the Company notice of his wish to resign, in which event he shall 
vacate that office on the receipt of that notice by the Company or at such later time 
as is specified in the notice. (Article 57)

5.3.9 Powers of directors

The business of the Company shall be managed by the directors who, subject to the 
provisions of the Articles of Association and to any directions given by special resolution to 
take, or refrain from taking, specified action, may exercise all the powers of the Company. 
The directors also have the power to change the name of the Company. (Article 64, 68)

The board may delegate any of the powers which are conferred on them under the Articles 
of Association to such a director or committee (provided that a majority of the members of 
the committee are directors); by such means; to such an extent; in relation to such matters 
or territories; and on such terms and conditions, as they think fit. The Board may revoke or 
vary all or any delegations of its powers but no person dealing in good faith will be affected 
by any such revocation or variation. (Articles 69, 70, 71)

Each director (other than an alternate director) may appoint any other director, or any other 
person approved by resolution of the directors and willing to act and permitted by law to do 
so, to be an alternate director and may remove such an alternate director appointed from 
office. (Article 59)

An alternate director shall be entitled to receive notices of meetings of the directors, to 
attend and vote at any such meeting at which the director appointing him is not present and 
generally to perform all the functions of his appointer as director in his absence. (Article 59)

5.3.10 Borrowing powers 

The directors may exercise all the powers of the Company to borrow money and to 
mortgage or charge all or any part of its undertaking, property and assets (both present 
and future) and uncalled capital and to issue debentures and other securities, whether 
outright or as collateral security for any debt, liability or obligation of the Company or of any 
third party. 

The directors shall restrict the borrowings of the Company and exercise all powers of 
control exercisable by the Company in relation to its subsidiary undertakings so as to 
secure (insofar as they can) that the aggregate principal amount (including any premium 
payable on final repayment) outstanding of all money borrowed by the Group (excluding 
intra group borrowings other than as specifically provided by the Articles of Association) 
shall not at any time, save with the previous sanction of an ordinary resolution of the 
Company, exceed:

 the greater of £500 million and an amount equal to 3 times the adjusted total 
equity; or

 the higher limit fixed by an ordinary resolution of the Company which is applicable 
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at the relevant time. (Article 67)

5.3.11 Voting at board meetings

No business shall be transacted at any meeting of the directors unless a quorum is present 
and the quorum may be fixed by the directors.  If the quorum is not fixed by the directors, 
the quorum shall be two. Any director who ceases to be a director at a board meeting may 
continue to be present and to act as a director and be counted towards the quorum until 
the end of the board meeting if no other director objects and if otherwise a quorum would 
not be present. (Article 82)

Questions arising at a meeting shall be decided by a majority of votes.  In case of an 
equality of votes, the chairman shall (unless he is not entitled to vote on the resolution in 
question) have a second or casting vote. (Article 85)

A resolution in writing agreed to by all the directors entitled to receive notice of a meeting of 
the directors and who would be entitled to vote (and whose vote would have been counted) 
on a resolution at a meeting of the directors shall (if that number is sufficient to constitute a 
quorum) be as valid and effectual as if it had been passed at a meeting of the directors, 
duly convened and held. (Article 87)

5.3.12 Restrictions on voting

A director shall not vote (or be counted in the quorum at a meeting) in respect of any 
resolution concerning his own appointment (including fixing or varying its terms), or the 
termination of his own appointment, as the holder of any office or place of profit with the 
Company or any other company in which the Company is interested but, where proposals 
are under consideration concerning the appointment (including fixing or varying its terms), 
or the termination of the appointment, of two or more directors to offices or places of profit 
with the Company or any other company in which the Company is interested, those 
proposals may be divided and a separate resolution may be put in relation to each director 
and in that case each of the directors concerned (if not otherwise debarred from voting 
under this article) shall be entitled to vote (and be counted in the quorum) in respect of 
each resolution unless it concerns his own appointment or the termination of his own 
appointment. 

Subject to the provisions of the Articles of Association, a director shall not vote at a 
meeting of the directors on any resolution concerning any transaction or arrangement with 
the Company in which he has an interest which may reasonably be regarded as likely to 
give rise to a conflict of interest, unless such interest arises only because the case falls 
within one or more of the following:

 any transaction or arrangement in which he is interested by virtue of an interest in 
shares, debentures, or other securities of the Company or otherwise in or through 
the Company;

 the giving of any guarantee, security, or indemnity in respect of:

o money lent or obligations incurred by him or by any other person at the 
request of the Company or any of its subsidiaries; or

o a debt or obligation of the Company and its subsidiaries for which he 
himself has assumed responsibility under a guarantee or indemnity by 
giving security

 indemnification by the Company in relation to the performance of his duties on 
behalf of the Company or any of its subsidiaries; 

 any issue or offer of shares, debentures or other securities of the Company or any 
subsidiary undertakings in respect of which he is or may be entitled to participate in 
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his capacity as holder of any such securities or as an underwriter or sub-
underwriter;

 the purchase or maintenance of insurance for the benefit of directors or for the 
benefit of persons including directors;

 any arrangement for the benefit of the employees of the Company or any of its 
subsidiary undertakings which does not accord to him any privilege or benefit not 
generally accorded to the employees to whom the arrangement relates; and

 any transaction or arrangement with any other company in which he is interested, 
directly or indirectly, provided that he is not the holder of or beneficially interested 
in 1 per cent. or more of any class of the equity share capital of that company and 
not entitled to exercise 1 per cent. or more of the voting rights available to 
members of the relevant company. (Article 79)

The Company may by ordinary resolution suspend or relax to any extent, in respect of any 
particular matter, any provision of the Articles of Association prohibiting a director from 
voting at a meeting of the directors or of a committee of the directors. (Article 79)

5.3.13 Directors' interests

If there arises a situation in which a director has, or can have, a direct or indirect interest 
that conflicts, or possibly may conflict, with the interests of the Company, the conflicted 
director must declare the nature and extent of that interest to the other directors. Such a 
declaration must be made as soon as is reasonably practicable except in relation to an 
interest in a proposed transaction, in which case such a declaration must be made before 
the transaction is entered into. A director will not be required to declare an interest if (i) it 
cannot reasonably be regarded as giving rise to a conflict of interest, (ii) the other directors 
are already aware or ought reasonably to be aware of the interest or (iii) it concerns terms 
of the director's service contract that have been or are to be considered by a meeting of the 
director or by a committee of the directors appointed for this purpose. (Articles 76, 77, 78)

The directors (other than the conflicted director who shall not be counted in the quorum for
the meeting and shall not vote on the resolution) may authorise the conflict on such terms 
as they may determine. The conflicted director may be permitted to be counted in the 
quorum of the meeting and to vote on the resolution if the non-conflicted directors resolve 
that he should be able to do so. (Article 74)

5.3.14 Directors' remuneration and expenses 

The non-executive directors shall be paid fees not exceeding in aggregate £700,000 per 
annum (or such larger sum as may be permitted by an ordinary resolution). Any fee 
payable under this article shall be distinct from any remuneration or other amounts payable 
to a director under other provisions of these articles and shall accrue from day to day. 
(Article 60)

Any director who performs, or undertakes to perform, services which the directors consider 
go beyond the ordinary duties of a director may be paid such additional remuneration 
(whether by way of fixed sum, bonus, commission, participation in profits or otherwise) as 
the directors may determine. (Article 61)

The directors may also be paid all reasonable expenses properly incurred by them in 
connection with their attendance at meetings of the directors or of committees of the 
directors or general meetings and any reasonable expenses properly incurred by them 
otherwise in connection with the exercise of their powers and the discharge of their 
responsibilities in relation to the Company. Subject to any guidelines and procedures 
established from time to time by the board, a director may also be paid out of the funds of 
the Company all expenses incurred by him in obtaining professional advice in connection 
with the affairs of the Company or the discharge of his duties as a director. (Article 62)
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5.3.15 Directors' gratuities and benefits

The board may exercise all the powers of the Company to:

 provide benefits, whether by the payment of allowances, gratuities or pensions, or 
by insurance or death, sickness or disability benefits or otherwise, for any director 
or any former director of the Company or of any body corporate which is or has 
been associated with the Company or a predecessor in business of the Company 
or of any such associated company, and for any member of his family or 
dependants; 

 establish and enable participation in any profit sharing or incentive scheme 
including shares, share options or cash or any similar schemes for the benefit of 
any director or employee of the Company or any associated body corporate, and to 
lend money to any such director or employee or to trustees on their behalf to 
enable any such schemes to be established or maintained; and

 support and subscribe to any institution or association which may be for the benefit 
of the Company or of any associated body or any director or employees of the 
Company or associated body corporate or their relatives or dependants or 
connected with any town or place where the Company or associated body 
corporate carries on business, and to support and subscribe to any charitable or 
public object whatsoever. (Article 63)

5.3.16 Indemnity

To the extent permitted by the Statutes, the Company may:

 indemnify any director of the Company (or of an associated body) against any 
liability;

 indemnify a director of a company that is a trustee of an occupational pension 
scheme for employees (or former employees) of the Company (or of an associated 
body) against liability incurred in connection with the Company's activities as 
trustee of the scheme;

 purchase and maintain insurance against liability for any director referred to above; 
and

 provide a director referred to above with funds (whether by loan or otherwise) to 
meet expenditure incurred or to be incurred by him in defending any criminal, 
regulatory or civil proceedings or in connection with an application for relief (or to 
enable any such director to avoid incurring such expenditure).

The powers given by the Articles of Association shall not limit any general powers of the 
company to grant indemnities, purchase and maintain insurance or provide funds (whether 
by way of loan or otherwise) to any person in connection with any legal or regulatory 
proceedings or applications for relief. (Article 131)

5.3.17 General Meetings 

The directors may call general meetings. If there is no director, any two members of the 
Company may call a general meeting. (Articles 27, 65)

Subject to the Statutes, an annual general meeting shall be called by not less than 21 clear 
days' notice and all other general meetings shall be called by not less than 14 clear days' 
notice or by not less than such minimum notice period as is permitted by the Statutes.
(Article 29)

The notice shall comply with all applicable requirements in the Statutes and shall specify 
whether the meeting will be an annual general meeting. Subject to the provisions of the 
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Articles of Association and to any rights or restrictions attached to any shares, notices shall 
be given to all members of the Company, the directors and the auditor. (Article 29)

A member whose registered address is not within the UK shall not be entitled to receive 
any notice, document or information from the Company unless he gives the Company an 
address (not being an electronic address) within the UK at which notices, documents or 
information may be sent or supplied to him.  (Article 122)

Where, by reason of any suspension or curtailment of postal services, the Company is 
unable effectively to give notice of a general meeting, the directors may decide that the 
only persons to whom notice of the affected general meeting must be sent are those 
directors and members to whom notice to convene the general meeting can validly be sent 
by electronic means (Article 123)

No business shall be transacted at any meeting unless a quorum is present.  Two
qualifying persons entitled to vote upon the business to be transacted, each being a 
member or a proxy for a member or a duly authorised representative of a corporation which 
is a member (except where the two persons are proxies or corporate representatives of the 
same member), shall be a quorum. (Article 31)

A member is entitled to appoint another person as his proxy to exercise all or any of his 
rights to attend and to speak and vote at a meeting of the Company.  The appointment of a 
proxy shall be deemed also to confer authority to demand or join in demanding a poll. The
appointment of a proxy shall not preclude a member from attending and voting in person at 
the meeting or at any adjournment of it. (Articles 34, 38, 46)

A proxy need not be a member and a member may appoint more than one proxy in 
relation to a meeting, provided that each proxy is appointed to exercise the rights attached 
to a different share or shares held by him. (Article 46)

An appointment of proxy shall be in any form which the directors may approve and shall be 
executed by or on behalf of the appointor which in the case of a corporation may be either 
under its common seal or under the hand of a duly authorised officer or other person duly 
authorised for that purpose. (Article 47)

Any corporation (other than the Company itself) which is a member of the Company may, 
by resolution of its directors or other governing body, authorise such person(s) to act as its 
representative(s) at any general meeting of the Company. The board, any director or the 
secretary may require such person(s) to produce a certified copy of the resolution before 
permitting him to exercise his powers. (Article 41)

The directors may in relation to uncertificated shares (and shall if and to the extent that the 
Company is required to do so by the Acts) allow the appointment of a proxy to be sent or 
supplied in electronic form subject to any conditions or limitations as the directors may 
specify and approve supplements to, or amendments or revocations of, any such 
uncertificated proxy instruction by the same means. (Article 47)

Directors may attend and speak at any general meeting of the Company, whether or not 
they are members. (Article 34)

A resolution put to the vote of a general meeting shall be decided on a show of hands 
unless a poll is validly demanded. A poll on a resolution may be demanded either before a 
vote on a show of hands on that resolution or immediately after the result of a show of 
hands on that resolution is declared. A poll on a resolution may be demanded by:

 the chairman of the meeting; 

 not less than five members present in person or by proxy having the right to vote at 
the meeting; 
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 a member or members present in person or by proxy representing not less than 
one-tenth of the total voting rights of all the members having the right to vote at the 
meeting (excluding any voting rights attached to any shares in the Company held 
as treasury shares); or

 a member or members present in person or by proxy holding shares conferring a 
right to vote on the resolution on which an aggregate sum has been paid up equal 
to not less than one-tenth of the total sum paid up on all the shares conferring that 
right (excluding any shares in the Company conferring a right to vote at the 
meeting which are held as treasury shares). (Article 38) 

The board may direct that any person wishing to attend any general meeting should submit 
to and comply with such searches or other security arrangements as they or he consider 
appropriate in the circumstances. A director or the secretary may refuse entry to any 
person who refuses to comply with any such arrangements or to eject from a meeting any 
person who causes the proceedings to become disorderly. (Article 32)

A general meeting may be held at more than one place if (i) the notice convening the 
meeting specifies that is shall be held at more than one place or (ii) the board resolves, 
after notice convening the meeting has been given, that the meeting shall be held at more 
than one place or (iii) it appears to the chairman that the place of the meeting specified in 
the notice thereof is inadequate to accommodate all persons entitled and wishing to attend.
(Article 37)

A general meeting held at more than one place is duly constituted and its proceedings are 
valid if the chairman of the meeting is satisfied that facilities are available to enable each 
person present at each place to participate in the business of the meeting (Article 37).

6. DIRECTORS' INTERESTS

6.1 Other Directorships

Save as set out below, none of the Directors have been a member of any partnerships; or 
held any directorships of any other company (other than subsidiaries of the company of 
which those persons are also directors), at any time in the last five years prior to the date of 
this document:

Director
Current Directorships and 
Partnerships

Previous Directorships and 
Partnerships  held in the 
previous five years

John Phizackerley

Lehman Brothers Europe Ltd
Nomura Properties plc
Nomura Bank International plc
The Nomura Charitable Trust
Nomura International plc
Marex Spectron Group Ltd

Paul Mainwaring - -

Rupert Robson Charles Taylor Plc
ExtraVert Limited
EMF Capital Partners LLP

Tenet Group Limited
LME Holdings Limited
silkroutefinancial group Ltd
OJSC Nomos Bank
ExtraVert Gardens LLP
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Angela Knight Brewin Dolphin Holdings Plc
Knightrail Limited
Angela K Services Ltd
Association of Independent 
Electricity Producers Ltd (trading 
as Energy UK)
William Cook Holdings Limited

BBA Enterprises Limited
The Lending Standards Board 
Limited
Financial Skills Partnership
International Financial Services 
London

Roger Perkin Bower Bequest Trustee Company 
Limited
Electra Private Equity Plc
Friends Life Group Limited
Electra Private Equity 
Investments plc
Nationwide Building Society

Evolution Group plc

Stephen Pull Ravenshurst Partners LLP -

David Shalders - -

6.2 Interests of Directors in share capital

The interests of the Directors in the share capital of the Company are set out at paragraph 
4.2 of Part XII of this document.

6.3 Confirmations and conflicts of interest 

6.3.1 Confirmations

At the date of this document, none of the Directors has during at least the 
previous five years to the date of this document:

(A) any convictions in relation to fraudulent offences;

(B) been a member of the administrative, management, supervisory body or 
senior management of a company associated with any bankruptcies, 
receiverships or liquidations; or

(C) been subject to any official public incrimination or sanctions by any 
statutory or regulatory authorities (including designated professional 
bodies) or been disqualified by a court from acting as a member of the 
administrative, management or supervisory bodies of an issuer or from 
acting in the management or conduct of the affairs of any issuer.

There are no family relationships between any of the Directors.

6.3.2 Conflicts of interest

Save as disclosed in paragraphs 6.1 and 6.2 above and save as disclosed below, 
no Director has any potential conflict of interest between his or her duties to the 
Company and his or her private interests or other duties:

(A) Rupert Robson, Paul Mainwaring and Stephen Pull currently serve as 
trustees of the Tullett Prebon Pension Scheme.
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6.3.3 Transactions with Directors

Save as disclosed at paragraph 3.3 of Part XII of this document, no Director has, 
or has had, any interest in any transaction which is or was unusual in its nature or 
conditions or which is, or was, significant in relation to the business of the Group 
and which was effected by any member of the Group during the current or 
immediately preceding financial year, or during any earlier financial year, and 
remains in any respect outstanding or underperformed.

There are no outstanding loans granted by the Company or any Group company 
to any of the Directors nor has any guarantee been provided by the Company or 
any Group company for their benefit.

6.3.4 Director appointment arrangements

There are no arrangements or understandings with major Shareholders, 
customers, suppliers or others pursuant to which any Director is or was selected 
as a director.

7. EMPLOYEES

7.1 As at the latest practicable date the Group had 2,462 employees globally. 

7.2 For the last three financial years, the average number of Group employees was as follows: 

 31 December 2013 – 2,603 employees

 31 December 2012 – 2,645 employees

 31 December 2011 – 2,550 employees

8. EMPLOYEE SHARE SCHEMES

8.1 The Group has one active equity-based long term incentive plan (the "Tullett Prebon
Long Term Incentive Plan"), for the granting of non-transferable awards to certain 
employees and executives. 

8.2 Details of the Tullett Prebon Long Term Incentive Plan are set out in Note 28 of the Notes 
to the Consolidated Financial Statements on pages 84 to 85 of the Company's 2013
Annual Report, which is hereby incorporated by reference into this document. There have 
been no further awards under the Tullett Prebon Long Term Incentive Plan since 31 
December 2013.

9. PENSIONS

9.1 Details of the Group's pension schemes are set out in Note 34 of the Notes to the 
Consolidated Financial Statements on page 88 of the Company's 2013 Annual Report, 
which is hereby incorporated by reference into this document.

10. SIGNIFICANT SHAREHOLDERS

10.1 As at the Latest Practicable Date, the following (not being Directors, their families, or 
persons connected, within section 252 of the Companies Act) had notified the Company in 
accordance with DTR 5 of their interest in the following voting rights of the issued ordinary 
share capital of the Company:

Name of Shareholder Number of Ordinary 
Shares and vested options

Percentage of issued share 
capital

Jupiter Asset Management 
Limited

18,651,200 8.57%

Allianz Global Investors 11,398,535 5.23%



     98

Europe GmbH

OppenheimerFunds Inc 10,951,454 5.03%

Majedie Asset 
Management Limited

10,947,324 5.03%

Schroders 10,912,044 5.01%

Invesco 10,895,800 5.00%

Aberdeen Asset Managers 
Limited

10,772,958 4.95%

Terry Smith 9,947,658 4.57%

10.2 After the Acquisition has been completed, the following (not being Directors, their families, 
or persons connected, within section 252 of the Companies Act) will hold an interest in the 
following voting rights of the issued ordinary share capital of the Company which will be 
notifiable to the Company in accordance with DTR 5:

Name of Shareholder Number of Ordinary 
Shares and vested options

Percentage of issued share 
capital

Jupiter Asset Management 
Limited

18,651,200 7.66%

Allianz Global Investors 
Europe GmbH

11,398,535 4.68%

OppenheimerFunds Inc 10,951,454 4.50%

Majedie Asset 
Management Limited

10,947,324 4.50%

Schroders 10,912,044 4.48%

Invesco 10,895,800 4.47%

Aberdeen Asset Managers 
Limited

10,772,958 4.42%

Terry Smith 9,947,658 4.09%

10.3 Save as disclosed in paragraphs 10.1 and 10.2 above, the Directors are not aware of any 
interest which will represent an interest in Company's share capital or voting rights which is
currently notifiable under the Disclosure and Transparency Rules or which will be notifiable
following the Acquisition becoming effective and Admission occurring.

10.4 So far as the Company is aware, on the Acquisition becoming effective, no person or 
persons, directly or indirectly, jointly or severally, will exercise or could exercise control 
over the Company.

10.5 There are no differences between the voting rights enjoyed by the shareholders described 
in paragraphs 10.1 and 10.2 above and those enjoyed by any other holder of Ordinary 
Shares.

11. WORKING CAPITAL

The Company is of the opinion that the working capital available to the Group is sufficient 
for its present requirements, that is for at least the next 12 months from the date of 
publication of this document.
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12. NO SIGNIFICANT CHANGE

Save as disclosed below, there has been no significant change in the financial or trading 
position of the Group since 30 June 2014, being the date to which the most recent interim 
financial information has been prepared.

Revenue in the four months July to October 2014 of £233 million was 8% lower than in the 
same period last year.

13. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

13.1 Save as disclosed in the Historical Financial Information set out in Part X of this document, 
there were no related party transactions entered into by the Company during the financial 
years ended 31 December 2013, 2012 and 2011.

13.2 The total amount owed to the Group by related parties and associates at 31 December 
2013 was £0.4 million (2012: £0.4 million). The total amount owed by the Group to related 
parties and associates at 31 December 2013 was £nil (2012: £nil). There have been no 
material changes in the nature or value of related party transactions in the six months 
ended 30 June 2014 or since that date.

13.3 The amounts outstanding are unsecured and will be settled in cash.  No guarantees have 
been given or received.  No provisions have been made for doubtful debts in respect of the 
amounts owed by related parties.

14. MATERIAL CONTRACTS

The following is a summary of each material contract, other than contracts entered into in 
the ordinary course of business, to which the Company or any member of the Group is a 
party, for the two years immediately preceding the date of publication of this document and 
a summary of any other contract (not being a contract entered into in the ordinary course of 
business) entered into by any member of the Group which contains any provision under 
which any member of the Group has any obligation or entitlement which is material to the 
Group as at the date of this document:

14.1 Syndicated Multicurrency Revolving Credit Facility Agreement

The Company entered into a £150,000,000 multicurrency revolving credit facility (the 
"RCF") and a £50,000,000 swingline facility (the "Swingline Loans") dated 19 April 2013 
as borrower with (i) TP Holdings Limited as guarantor, (ii) Banc of America Securities 
Limited, HSBC Bank plc, Lloyds Bank plc (previously known as Lloyds TSB Bank plc) and 
the Royal Bank of Scotland plc as mandated lead arrangers, (iii) Banc of America 
Securities Limited as facility agent, (iv) Bank of America, N.A. as swingline facility agent, 
and (vi) Bank of America, N.A., HSBC Bank plc, Lloyds Bank plc and National Westminster 
Bank plc, acting through its agent the Royal Bank of Scotland plc, as original lenders (the 
"Facilities Agreement"). 

Purpose

The RCF is made available for (i) general corporate purposes of the Group, including 
acquisitions and to refinance, repay and / or prepay any outstanding amounts under a 
previous (now repaid) facilities agreement and (ii) refinancing the Swingline Loans. 

Each Swingline Loan is made available only to fund margin calls and cannot be applied 
towards the repayment or prepayment of another Swingline Loan. 

Interest and fees

The rate of interest payable on borrowings under the RCF is the aggregate of LIBOR (or, in 
relation to any loan denominated in euro, EURIBOR) and the applicable margin. The 
Company may select interest periods for each loan of one, two, three or six months or any 
other period agreed with the lenders. 
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The rate of interest payable on each Swingline Loan for each day is the higher of, the 
prime commercial lending rate in U.S. Dollars announced by the swingline agent in force 
on that day, and the applicable margin over the rate per annum determined by the 
swingline agent to be the federal funds rate (weighted average of the rates on overnight 
Federal funds transactions with members of the US Federal Reserve System, published by 
Federal Reserve Bank of New York, or if a rate is not published, the average quotation for 
that day on those transactions received by the swingline agent from three Federal funds. 
The Company may select the interest period for a Swingline Loan in the relevant request 
for than loan.

Certain fees and expenses, including, facility agent's fee, swingline agent's fee, 
arrangement fee, RCF commitment fee and RCF utilisation fee, are also payable.

Repayment

Each loan made under the RCF is repayable on the last day of its interest period but, 
subject to the terms of the Facilities Agreement, may be re-borrowed.

Each Swingline Loan is repaid by drawing down a loan under the RCF.

Mandatory and voluntary prepayment

The Facilities Agreement allows for voluntary prepayments and requires mandatory 
prepayments in full in certain circumstances, including on a change of control of the 
Company.

Representations, warranties and undertakings

The Facilities Agreement contains certain customary representations and warranties.

It requires the Company to comply with certain negative covenants, including covenants 
relating to creation of security, financial indebtedness, disposals, acquisitions and change 
in business.

In addition, the Facilities Agreement requires the Company to maintain specified financial 
ratios in relation to consolidated total net borrowings to consolidated EBITDA, and 
consolidated EBIT to consolidated net interest payable.

The Facilities Agreement also contains certain customary affirmative undertakings 
including, amongst others, undertakings in relation to delivery of financial statements, 
compliance with laws, insuring the business and assets and pari passu ranking.

Final maturity

The final date of the Facilities Agreement is 19 April 2016.

Events of default

The Facilities Agreement contains certain customary events of default including, amongst 
others, events relating to failure to pay, misrepresentation, cross default, breach of financial 
covenants, insolvency, insolvency proceedings and material adverse change.

Miscellaneous

The Company must indemnify each lender against any loss or liability which that lender 
incurs as a consequence of receiving an amount in respect of the obligor's liability or that 
liability being converted into a claim, proof, judgement or order in a currency other than the 
currency in which the amount is expressed to be payable.

The Company is also required to pay break costs if a loan or an overdue amount is repaid / 
prepaid otherwise than on the last day of any term applicable to it.

14.2 Placing Agreement

The Placing Agreement, dated 21 November 2014, was entered into between the 
Company and HSBC Bank plc (the "Manager") under which the Manager agreed, subject 
to certain conditions that are typical for an agreement of this nature, to use its reasonable 
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endeavours to procure subscribers for Consideration Shares under the Placing at a price 
agreed between the Manager and the Company.

The Placing Agreement contains, among other things, the following provisions: 

Fees

For its services in connection with the Placing and provided that the Placing Agreement 
becomes wholly unconditional and is not terminated in accordance with its terms at any 
time prior to Admission, the Manager is entitled to a fee equal to 1.75% of the aggregate 
gross proceeds of the Placing, together with any VAT chargeable thereon. 

Conditions

The obligations of the Manager under the Placing Agreement are subject to certain 
conditions that are typical for an agreement of this nature. These conditions include, 
among others, Admission occurring by not later than 8:00 a.m. on 26 November 2014 (or 
such later time and/or date as the Company and the Manager may agree in writing).

Warranties and indemnities

The Company has given certain market standard warranties and indemnities to the 
Manager concerning, inter alia, the accuracy of the information contained in this 
Prospectus. 

The liability of the Company under the Placing Agreement is unlimited as to time and 
amount. 

Termination

The Placing Agreement can be terminated by the Manager giving notice to the Company in 
certain circumstances that are typical for an agreement of this nature at any time before 
Admission. 

These circumstances include: (i) a breach by the Company of any of the warranties or 
undertakings or other provisions of the Placing Agreement; (ii) the occurrence of certain 
material adverse changes in the condition of the Company or the Group; or (iii) certain 
adverse changes in financial, political or economic conditions. 

Governing law

The Placing Agreement is governed by English law

15. UK TAXATION 

The following paragraphs are intended as a general guide only, are based on current law 
and HM Revenue and Customs practice (which is subject to change, possibly with 
retrospective effect) and are not exhaustive as at the date of this document. They 
summarise the position of Shareholders who (unless the position of non-resident 
Shareholders is expressly referred to) are resident and domiciled in the United Kingdom 
("UK") for tax purposes, who are the absolute beneficial owners of their Shares and who 
hold their Shares as an investment. The summary below does not address all possible tax 
consequences relating to an investment in shares. Certain Shareholders, such as dealers 
in securities, those that are exempt from taxation, insurance companies, collective 
investment vehicles and employees and officers of the Company (or a connected 
company), may be taxed differently and are not considered.

If you are in any doubt as to your tax position or you are subject to tax in a 
jurisdiction outside the UK, you should consult an appropriate professional adviser 
before taking any actions.

15.1 Dividends

15.1.1 Under current law, no tax will be withheld by the Company when it pays a 
dividend.
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15.1.2 A UK resident individual Shareholder who receives a dividend from the Company 
will be entitled to a tax credit, currently at the rate of 1/9th of the cash dividend 
paid (equal to 10% of the aggregate of the net dividend and related tax credit).  
The individual is treated as receiving for tax purposes gross income equal to the 
cash dividend plus the tax credit.  The tax credit is set against the individual's tax 
liability on that gross income.

15.1.3 A UK resident individual Shareholder who is a basic rate taxpayer will be liable to 
income tax on the receipt of the cash dividend and the tax credit at the rate of 
10%.  The tax credit will be set against this tax liability and as a result, such 
Shareholders will have no further income tax liability in respect of the dividend.

15.1.4 A UK resident individual Shareholder who is a higher rate taxpayer will be liable 
to income tax on the cash dividend and the tax credit at the rate of 32.5%.  After 
taking account of the tax credit, the effective tax rate is 25%. 

15.1.5 A UK resident individual Shareholder who is an additional rate taxpayer will be 
liable to income tax on the cash dividend and the tax credit at a rate of 37.5%.  
After taking into account the tax credit, the effective tax rate is 30.56%.  

15.1.6 UK resident Shareholders who do not pay income tax or whose liability to income 
tax on the dividend and related tax credit is less than the tax credit (including 
pension funds, charities and certain individuals) are not entitled to claim 
repayment of any part of the tax credit associated with the dividend from HM 
Revenue and Customs. This will include an individual Shareholder who holds the 
shares through an ISA.

15.1.7 UK resident corporate Shareholders will not generally be subject to tax on 
dividends received from the Company as long as the dividends fall within an 
'exempt class' and certain other conditions are met.  An example of dividends that 
fall within an exempt class are dividends paid on shares that are 'ordinary share 
capital' for UK tax purposes and are not redeemable.

15.1.8 Non-UK resident Shareholders will not generally be subject to UK tax on any 
dividends received from the Company.    A non-UK resident Shareholder may 
also be subject to foreign taxation on dividend income.

15.2 Taxation of Chargeable Gains

15.2.1 A disposal of shares by a Shareholder who is resident in the UK may, subject to 
the Shareholder's circumstances and any available exemption or relief, give rise 
to a chargeable gain (or allowable loss) for the purposes of UK taxation of 
chargeable gains. 

15.2.2 For UK resident corporate Shareholders subject to the charge to corporation tax 
on chargeable gains, indexation allowance should be available to reduce the 
amount of chargeable gain realised on a disposal of shares (but not to create or 
increase any loss).  

15.2.3 UK resident individual Shareholders will, subject to any exemption or relief, 
generally be liable to pay UK capital gains tax on any gains above the annual 
exempt amount (which, for the tax year 2014/2015, is £11,000) at a rate of 18% 
or 28% depending on the total amount of the individual's taxable income and 
gains.  Trustees and personal representatives pay capital gains tax at 28%.  

15.2.4 A Shareholder who is not UK resident will not be subject to UK tax on a gain 
arising on a disposal of shares unless (i) the Shareholder carries on a trade, 
profession or vocation in the UK through a branch, agency or permanent 
establishment and, broadly, holds the shares for the purposes of the trade, 
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profession, vocation, branch, agency or permanent establishment or (ii) the 
Shareholder falls within the anti-avoidance rules applying to individuals who are 
temporarily not resident in the UK.

15.3 Inheritance Tax

15.3.1 The Shares will be assets situated in the UK for the purposes of UK inheritance 
tax.  A gift of Shares by, or on the death of, an individual Shareholder may 
(subject to certain exemptions and reliefs) be subject to UK inheritance tax, even 
if the Shareholder is neither domiciled nor deemed to be domiciled in the UK.  For 
inheritance tax purposes, a transfer of the Shares for less than full market value 
will be treated as a gift and may give rise to inheritance tax.  Special rules apply 
to gifts where the donor reserves or retains some benefit and these rules could 
give rise to a liability to UK inheritance tax on the death of the donor.

15.4 Stamp Duty and Stamp Duty Reserve Tax ("SDRT")

15.4.1 No stamp duty or stamp duty reserve tax will be payable by Shareholders on the 
allotment, issue or registration of Shares.

15.4.2 Any subsequent conveyance or transfer on sale of Shares outside of CREST will 
usually be subject to stamp duty, at the rate of 0.5% (rounded up to the nearest 
multiple of £5) of the amount or value of the consideration paid.   Stamp duty is 
normally paid by the purchaser.  A charge to SDRT at the rate of 0.5% of the 
amount or value of the consideration paid will arise in relation to an unconditional 
agreement to transfer shares.  SDRT is normally a liability of the purchaser. 
However, if within six years of the date of the agreement (or, if the agreement 
was conditional, the date on which the agreement became unconditional) a share 
transfer is executed pursuant to the agreement and is duly stamped, the 
stamping of the transfer will normally cancel the SDRT liability.  Any SDRT 
already paid will be refunded.

15.4.3 A transfer of Shares effected on a paperless basis through CREST will generally 
be subject to SDRT, as opposed to stamp duty, at the rate of 0.5% of the amount 
or value of the consideration paid.  Euroclear UK & Ireland Limited ("Euroclear") 
will collect SDRT on relevant transactions settled through CREST and will 
account for the SDRT to HM Revenue and Customs.

15.4.4 There will be no stamp duty or SDRT on a transfer of Shares into or out of 
CREST where such a transfer is made for no consideration.  

15.4.5 Special rules apply to agreements made by market intermediaries, to certain sale 
and repurchase and stock borrowing arrangements, and where shares are issued 
or transferred to (i) a nominee for a person whose business is or includes the 
provision of clearance services or (ii) a nominee or agent for a person whose 
business is or includes issuing depositary receipts. Charities in the UK and EU as 
well as Norway and Iceland are generally exempt from stamp duty and SDRT on 
the acquisition of Shares.

16. LITIGATION

16.1 Save as disclosed in paragraph 2.7 of Part XI "Operating and Financial Review" (which 
sets out details regarding the legal action taken against BGC and former employees of the 
Group in relation to raids on the Group's operations in London and North America in 2009), 
there are not and have not been, since the date 12 months prior to the date of this 
document, any governmental, legal or arbitration proceedings (including any such 
proceedings which are pending or threatened of which the Company is aware) which may 
have, or have had in the recent past, significant effects on the Company or the Group's 
financial position or profitability and the Group is not currently engaged (whether as 
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claimant or respondent) in any material litigation and there are no material claims against 
the Group.

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

17.1 Details of the Company's principal properties are as set out below:

Location Tenure Utilisation

Tower 42, Level 37, 25 Old 
Broad Street, London, EC2N 
1HQ, United Kingdom

Existing lease expires on 11 
December 2023

Registered Office

Level 2 and part of Level 3, 155 
Bishopsgate, London, EC2M 
3YX, United Kingdom

Existing lease for Level 2 and 
parts of Level 3 expires on 3 
October 2025

Offices

Suites 1001 – 1003 and Suites 
1010-1016, 10

th
floor of CITIC 

Tower, No 1, Tim Mei Avenue, 
Central, Hong Kong

Existing lease expires on 7 
September 2016 

Offices

50 Raffles Place, #39-01/06, 
#40-06 and #42-04, Singapore 
Land Tower, Singapore 048623

Existing lease expires on 30 
April 2015

Offices

23
rd

, 24
th

and 12
th

Floors, 101 
Hudson Street, Jersey City, 
New Jersey

Existing lease expires on 30 
November 2023

Offices

17
th

Floor and part of 16
th

Floor 
199 Water Street, New York,   
NY 10038

Existing lease expires on 31 
December 2026

Offices

18. AUDITORS

18.1 Deloitte LLP, a member firm of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and 
Wales, is the Company's auditor and audited the accounts of the Company for the financial 
year ended 31 December 2013.

19. CONSENTS

19.1 Deloitte LLP has given and not withdrawn its written consent to the inclusion in this 
document of its name and references thereto in the form and context in which they appear.

19.2 HSBC has given and not withdrawn its written consent to the inclusion in this document of 
its name and references thereto in the form and context in which they appear.

20. THE CITY CODE ON TAKEOVERS AND MERGERS

20.1 The City Code on Takeovers and Mergers (the "Takeover Code") applies, among other 
things, to offers for public companies which have their registered office in the United 
Kingdom, the Channel Islands or the Isle of Man if any of their securities are admitted to 
trading on a regulated market in the United Kingdom. As a company incorporated under 
the laws of England and Wales with shares being admitted to the main market of the 
London Stock Exchange, the Company is subject to the provisions of the Takeover Code, 
including those provisions concerning mandatory takeover bids and compulsory 
acquisition.
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20.2 Under Rule 9 of the Takeover Code, if:

20.2.1 a person acquires an interest in shares of the Company which, when taken 
together with shares already held by him or persons acting in concert with him, 
carry 30 per cent. or more of the voting rights of the Company; or

20.2.2 a person who, together with persons acting in concert with him, is interested in 
not less than 30 per cent. and not more than 50% of the voting rights in the 
Company acquires additional interest in shares which increase the percentage of 
shares carrying voting rights in which that person is interested;

the acquirer and, depending on the circumstances, its concert parties, would be required 
(except with the consent of the Panel on Takeovers and Mergers (the "Panel") to make a 
cash offer for the outstanding shares in the Company at a price not less than the highest 
price paid for any interests in the shares by the acquirer or its concert parties during the 
previous 12 months.

20.3 Under Rule 37 of the Takeover Code, an increase in the percentage of voting shares held 
by a person or group of persons acting in concert as a result of the Company redeeming or 
purchasing its own shares, will be treated as an acquisition for the purpose of Rule 9. 
Subject to prior consultation, the Panel will normally waive any resulting obligation to make 
a general offer if there has been a vote of the independent shareholders and the procedure 
outlined in Appendix 1 to the Takeover Code has been followed.

20.4 Under the Companies Act, an offeror in respect of a takeover offer for the Company has 
the right to purchase compulsorily the shares of minority shareholders where the offeror 
has acquired at least 90 per cent. in value of the shares to which the offer relates. 
Additionally, where there has been a takeover offer for the Company, minority shareholders 
can require the offeror to purchase their shares provided that at any time before the end of 
the period within which the offer can be accepted the offeror has acquired at least 90 per 
cent. in value of all voting shares in the Company, which carry not less than 90 per cent. of 
the voting rights of all shares in the Company.

20.5 The Companies Act also gives minority shareholders a right to be bought out in certain 
circumstances by an offeror who has made a takeover offer. If a takeover offer relates to all 
the shares of a company and at any time before the end of the period within which the offer 
could be accepted the offeror holds or has agreed to acquire not less than 90 per cent. of 
such shares to which the offer relates, any holder of shares to which the offer relates who 
has not accepted the offer may by a written communication to the offeror require it to 
acquire those shares. The offeror is required to give any shareholder notice of his right to 
be bought out within one month of that right arising. The offeror may impose a time limit on 
the rights of the minority shareholders to be bought out, but that period cannot end less 
than three months after the end of the acceptance period. If a shareholder exercises his or 
her rights, the offeror is bound to acquire those shares, on the terms of the offer or on such 
other terms as may be agreed.

20.6 Other than as provided in Part 28 of the Companies Act and the Takeover Code, there are 
no rules or provisions relating to mandatory bids and/or squeeze-out and sell-out rules in 
relation to the Ordinary Shares.

21. GENERAL

21.1 The total costs and expenses (exclusive of VAT) payable by the Company in connection 
with the Acquisition and the Admission are estimated to be approximately £2.6 million of 
which £1.1 million relates to the Admission. There are no amounts payable to financial 
intermediaries.
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22. DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE FOR INSPECTION

22.1 Copies of the following documents will be available for inspection at the Company's 
registered office, Tower 42, Level 37, 25 Old Broad Street, London, EC2N 1HQ during 
normal business hours on Monday to Friday each week (public holidays excepted) for a 
period from and including the date of publication of this document until the date of 
Admission:

22.1.1 Memorandum of Association and the Articles;

22.1.2 the audited accounts of the Company for the financial years ended 31 December 
2013, 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011 together with the 
accompanying auditor's reports for the financial years ended 31 December 2013, 
31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011;

22.1.3 the unaudited interim accounts prepared for the six months ending 30 June 2014 
together with the accompanying independent accountant's review report for the
six months ending 30 June 2014; and

22.1.4 this document.

23. INFORMATION INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

23.1 The following information, available free of charge in electronic format through Tullett 
Prebon plc's website www.tullettprebon.com or in printed format from Tullett Prebon plc's
registered office at Tower 42, Level 37, 25 Old Broad Street, London, EC2N 1HQ, is 
incorporated by reference into this document.

23.1.1 the consolidated financial statements of Tullett Prebon plc for the financial year 
ended 31 December 2013, as detailed in the Company's 2013 Annual Report: 

 Independent Auditor's Report Pg 45-48

 Consolidated Income Statement Pg 49

 Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income Pg 50

 Consolidated Balance Sheet Pg 51

 Consolidated Changes in Equity Pg 52

 Consolidated Cash Flow Statement Pg 53

 Notes to the Accounts Pg 54-94

23.1.2 the consolidated financial statements of Tullett Prebon plc for the financial year 
ended 31 December 2012, as detailed in the Company's 2012 Annual Report:

 Independent Auditor's Report Pg 45

 Consolidated Income Statement Pg 46

 Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income Pg 47

 Consolidated Balance Sheet Pg 48

 Consolidated Changes in Equity Pg 49

 Consolidated Cash Flow Statement Pg 50

 Notes to the Accounts Pg 51-88

23.1.3 the consolidated financial statements of Tullett Prebon plc for the financial year 
ended 31 December 2011, as detailed in the Company's 2011 Annual Report:

http://www.tullettprebon.com/
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 Independent Auditor's Report Pg 45

 Consolidated Income Statement Pg 46

 Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income Pg 47

 Consolidated Balance Sheet Pg 48

 Consolidated Changes in Equity Pg 49

 Consolidated Cash Flow Statement Pg 50

 Notes to the Accounts Pg 51-88

23.1.4 the condensed consolidated financial statements of Tullett Prebon plc, as detailed 
in the unaudited interim accounts of the Company for the six months ended 30 
June 2014:

 Condensed Consolidated Income Statement Pg 17-18

 Condensed Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income Pg  19

 Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet Pg  20

 Condensed Consolidated Cash Flow Statement Pg  22

 Condensed Consolidated Changes in Equity Pg  21

 Notes to the Accounts Pg  23-30

 Accountants Independent Review Report Pg  32

23.1.5 information relating to the Group's risk profile, as detailed in the Company's 2013
Annual Report in the following sections on pages 16-19:

 Market Risk; Pg 16

 Credit Risk (including the sub-headings of Pre-settlement risk,   
Settlement risk, Cash deposits, Name Passing brokerage        
receivables and Concentration risk); Pg 16-17

 Liquidity Risk; and Pg 18

 Other Financial Risks (including the sub-headings of Interest rate        
risk, Currency risk, Taxation risk and Pension obligation risk) Pg 18-19

23.1.6 information relating to the amount of fixed remuneration paid to the Directors and 
benefits in kind, as detailed in the Company's 2013 Annual Report on page 40.

23.1.7 information relating to the terms and conditions of the Executive Directors' 
employment, as detailed in the Company's 2013 Annual Report on pages 38.

23.1.8 information relating to the interests of the Directors in the ordinary share capital of 
the Company, as detailed in the Company's 2013 Annual Report on page 41.

23.1.9 information relating to the outstanding share options awarded to the Directors 
under the Company's long term incentive plan, as detailed in the Company's 
2013 Annual Report on page 40.

23.1.10 information relating to the Company's principal subsidiaries and associated 
undertakings, as detailed in Note 38 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in 
the Company's 2013 Annual Report on page 93.

23.1.11 information relating to the Company's equity-based long term incentive plan for 
the granting of non-transferable awards to certain employees and executives, as 
detailed in Note 28 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in the Company's 
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2013 Annual Report on pages 84 to 85.

23.1.12 information relating to the Company's pension schemes, as detailed in Note 33 of 
the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements in the Company's 2013
Annual Report on pages 88.

23.1.13 information relating to the Company's corporate governance policies as set out in 
the Corporate Governance Report in the 2013 Annual Report on pages 25-31.

23.1.14 information relating to the Company's key financial and performance indicators as 
set out in the 2013 Annual Report on page 1.

23.1.15 information relating to the Company's operating and financial reviews for the year
ended 31 December 2013, as set out in the 2013 Annual Report on pages . 

23.1.16 information relating to the Company's operating and financial reviews for the year 
ended 31 December 2012, as set out in the 2012 Annual Report on pages 8 to 
15.

23.2 To the extent that any information incorporated by reference itself incorporates any 
information by reference, either expressly or impliedly, such information will not form part of 
this document for the purposes of the Prospectus Rules, except where such information is 
stated within this document as specifically being incorporated by reference or where this 
document specifically includes such information.

23.3 Any statement which is deemed to be incorporated by reference into this document shall 
be deemed to be modified or superseded for the purpose of this document to the extent 
that any statement contained in this document (or by a later document which is 
incorporated by reference into this document) modifies or supersedes such earlier 
statement (whether expressly or impliedly). Any statement so modified or superseded shall 
not be deemed, except as so modified, to constitute a part of this document.

23.4 Except as set out above, no other portion of these documents is incorporated by reference 
into the Prospectus and those portions which are not specifically incorporated by reference 
in the Prospectus are either not relevant for prospective investors or the relevant 
information is included elsewhere in this document.

This document is dated 21 November.
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PART XIV
DEFINITIONS

The following definitions shall apply throughout this document unless the context requires 
otherwise:

"2011 Annual Report" the annual report and accounts of the Company for the year ended 31 
December 2011

"2012 Annual Report" the annual report and accounts of the Company for the year ended 31 
December 2012

"2013 Annual Report" the annual report and accounts of the Company for the year ended 31 
December 2013

"Acquisition" the acquisition of the PVM Group in accordance with the terms of the
Sale and Purchase Agreement

"Admission" the admission of the Ordinary Shares to the Official List and to trading 
on the London Stock Exchange's main market for listed securities and 
Admission becoming effective means it becoming effective in 
accordance with paragraph 3.2.7 of the Listing Rules and the 
Admission and Disclosure Standards

"Admission and Disclosure 
Standards"

the requirements contained in the publication "Admission and 
Disclosure Standards" dated 1 October 2008 containing, among other 
things, the admission requirements to be observed by companies 
seeking admission to trading on the London Stock Exchange's main 
market for listed securities

"Aggregate Revenue Level" has the meaning attributed to it in Part VIII, paragraph1.2.3

"AGM" the annual general meeting of the Company

"Articles of Association" or
"Articles"

the articles of association of the Company

"Audit Committee" the audit committee established by the Board inter alia to monitor 
financial risks in the Company's businesses, as described in paragraph 
5 of Part XII: "Directors and Corporate Governance"

"BGC" BGC Partners, Inc.

"Board" or "Directors" the board of Directors of the Company

"Bonus Scheme" has the meaning attributed to it in paragraph 2.3 of Part XII 

"business day" a day (other than a Saturday or Sunday) on which banks are open for 
general business in London

"CFTC" the United States Commodity Futures Trading Commission

"Companies Act" the Companies Act 2006

"Company" or "Tullett Prebon
plc"

Tullett Prebon plc, a company registered in England and Wales with 
registered number 05807599

"Conditions" has the meaning attributed to it in Part VIII, paragraph 1.3.2

"Completion" the completion of the Acquisition

"Consideration" has the meaning attributed to it in Part VIII, paragraph 1.2.1
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"Consideration Shares" the Ordinary Shares to be issued to the PVM Shareholders and/or 
allotted and issued directly to institutional investors procured by HSBC 
Bank plc pursuant to the Sale and Purchase Agreement, as amended 
as between certain Electing PVM Shareholders and the Company 
pursuant to a Deed of Election and Variation in respect of the Initial 
Consideration;

"CREST" the system of paperless settlement of trades in securities and the 
holding of uncertificated securities operated by Euroclear UK & Ireland 
Limited in accordance with the Uncertificated Securities Regulations 1

"CRD" the EU Capital Requirements Directive

"CRD IV" the Capital Requirements Directive IV package which transpose, via a 
regulation and a directive, the new global standards on bank capital 
(the Basel III agreement) into EU law

CRR the Capital Requirements Regulation No 575/2013 of the European 
Parliament and of the Council of 26 June 2013 on prudential 
requirements for credit institutions and investment firms and amending 
Regulation (EU) No 648/2012

"Deed of Variation and Election" has the meaning attributed to it in Part VIII, paragraph 1.2

"Deferred Consideration" has the meaning attributed to it in Part VIII, paragraph 1.2.2

"Deferred Consideration
Calculation Period"

has the meaning attributed to it in Part VIII, paragraph 1.2.5

"Deferred Consideration Shares" has the meaning attributed to it in Part VIII, paragraph 1.2.6

"Deferred Period" has the meaning attributed to it in Part VIII, paragraph 1.2.2

"Directors" the directors of the Company whose names appear in paragraph 1 of 
Part III of this document

"Disclosure and Transparency 
Rules"

the disclosure and transparency rules made by the FCA under Part 6 of 
the FSMA

"DTCC" the Depository Trust and Clearing Corporation

"EBITDA" earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation

"EEA State" a state which is a contracting party to the agreement on the European 
Economic Area signed on 2 May 1992, as it has effect for the time 
being

"Electing PVM Shareholders" has the meaning attributed to it in Part VIII, paragraph 1.2

"EMIR" the European Markets Infrastructure Regulation

"EMTN Prospectus" The prospectus published by the Company on 15 November 2012 for a 
£1,000,000,000 Euro Medium Term Note Programme

"Enlarged Company Shares" the Existing Company Shares and the Consideration Shares;

"EU" the European Union

"Euroclear" Euroclear UK & Ireland Limited, the operator of CREST

"Executive Directors" John Phizackerley and Paul Mainwaring

"Existing Company Shares" the 217,739,704 Ordinary Shares currently in issue prior to the 
Acquisition;
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"Facilities Agreement" the Company's facilities agreement as described in paragraph 14.1 of 
Part XIII

"FCA" the Financial Conduct Authority

"FCA Change in Control 
Approval" 

the approval granted by the FCA pursuant to section 182 of the FSMA
for the Company's acquisition of control of PVM

"FINRA" the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority, Inc.

"FSMA" the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 (as amended)

"Governance Code" the UK Corporate Governance Code issued by the Financial Reporting 
Council in June 2010

"Government" Her Majesty’s Government of the United Kingdom

"Group" or "Tullett Prebon" the Company and its subsidiary undertakings (as defined in the 
Companies Act) from time to time, which shall include, post Acquisition 
and Admission, the PVM Group

"GTRC" The Group's Treasury and Risk Committee which monitors the Group's 
risk exposure against the agreed risk appetite, as described in 
paragraph 6.3 of Part VI

"High Court of Justice" the High Court of Justice of England and Wales

"Historical Financial Information" the IFRS Historical Financial Information for the Group set out in Part X 
of this document

"HM Revenue and Customs" Her Majesty’s Revenue and Customs

"IASB" International Accounting Standards Board

"ICAAP" Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process

"Initial Consideration" has the meaning attributed to it in Part VIII, paragraph 1.2.2

"Initial Consideration Calculation 
Period"

has the meaning attributed to it in Part VIII, paragraph 1.2.4

"IFRS" International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the 
European Union

"ISIN" International Security Identification Number

"Latest Practicable Date" has the meaning attributed to it in Part I, B.6.

"LIBOR" London Inter-Bank Offer Rate

"Listing Rules" the listing rules made by the UKLA pursuant to Part 6 of the FSMA

"London Stock Exchange" London Stock Exchange plc

"Long Stop Date" has the meaning attributed to it in Part VIII, paragraph 1.3.3

"Manager" HSBC Bank plc, 8 Canada Square, London, E14 5HQ

"Memorandum of Association" the memorandum of association of the Company

"MiFID" the Markets in Financial Instruments Directive

"MiFID II" the Markets in Financial Instruments Directive II
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"MiFIR" the Markets in Financial Instruments Regulation

"Model Code" the Model Code published by the UKLA at Annex 1 of Listing Rule 9 of the 
Listing Rules

"NJ Racketeering Act" the New Jersey Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt Organizations Act

"Non-Executive Directors" Angela Knight, Roger Perkin, Stephen Pull, and Rupert Robson

"Nominations Committee" the director nomination committee established by the Board to consider and 
make recommendations to the Board concerning the composition of the Board, 
as described in paragraph 5 of Part XII: "Directors and Corporate Governance"

"Notes" Notes issued in connection with the Company's Euro Medium Term 
Note Programme

"Official List" the Official List of the Financial Conduct Authority 

"Ordinary Shares" the ordinary shares of nominal value £0.25 in the capital of Tullett 
Prebon plc including, following the Acquisition, the Consideration 
Shares;

"OTC" over the counter

"OTF" organised trading facility

"Overseas Shareholders" Shareholders of the company who are not resident in the UK

"Panel" the UK Panel on Takeovers and Mergers

"Principal Employees" as defined in the Sale and Purchase Agreement

"Prospectus" this document

"Prospectus Directive" Directive of the European Parliament and of the Council 2003/71/EC

"Prospectus Rules" the prospectus rules made by the FCA under Part 6 of the FSMA

"PVM" PVM Oil Associates Limited, a company registered in Bermuda with 
registered number EC 5137

"PVM Group" PVM together with its subsidiaries as at the date of this document

"PVM Shareholders" the shareholders of PVM immediately before Completion

"RCF" the Company's revolving credit facility as described in paragraph 14.1 
of Part XIII

"Reporting Accountants" Deloitte LLP, Hill House, 1 Little New Street, London, EC4A 3TR

"Risk Management Services 
business"

has the meaning attributed to it in Part VI, paragraph 1.5

"Sale and Purchase Agreement" the sale and purchase agreement between Tullett Prebon plc and the 
PVM Shareholders governing the terms and conditions of the 
Acquisition dated on or around the same date as the date of publication 
of this document;

"SDRT" Stamp Duty Reserve Tax

"SEC" the United States Securities and Exchange Commission

"Securities Act" the United States Securities Act of 1933 (as amended)

"SEF" Swap Execution Facility
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"Separate Business Period" has the meaning attributed to it in paragraph 3.1 of Part VIII

"Series" has the meaning attributed to it in paragraph 14.2 of Part XIII

"Shareholder" a shareholder of the Company

"Sponsor" or "HSBC" HSBC Bank plc, 8 Canada Square, London, E14 5HQ

"Statutes" has the meaning attributed to it in the Company's Articles of 
Association, meaning the Companies Act, the Uncertificated Securities 
Regulations 2001 and every other statute, statutory instrument, 
regulation or order for the time being in force concerning the Company

"Swingline Loans" the Company's swingline facility as described in paragraph 14.1 of Part
XIII

"Takeover Code" the City Code on Takeovers and Mergers issued from time to time by or 
on behalf of the Panel on Takeovers and Mergers

"TPHL" TP Holdings Limited

"Tranche" has the meaning attributed to it in Part XIII, paragraph 14.2

"Tullett Prebon Information" or 
"Information Sales business"

The Group's Information Sales business, as described in paragraph 1.5 
of Part VI of this document

"Tullett Prebon Long Term 
Incentive Plan"

The Group's long term incentive plan as described in paragraph 9 of  
Part XIII of this document

"Tullett Prebon Pension 
Scheme" or "Scheme"

The Group's pension scheme described in paragraph 10 of Part XIII of 
this document

"Transaction" the Acquisition and the Admission of Consideration Shares

"Uncertificated Securities 
Regulations"

the Uncertificated Securities Regulations 2001

"UK Listing Authority" or "UKLA" the FCA when it is exercising its powers under Part 6 of the FSMA

"United Kingdom" or "UK" the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland

"United States" or "US" the United States of America, its territories and possessions, any state 
of the United States of America, the District of Columbia; and

"VAT" or "Value Added Tax" value added tax.

"Waiver" the investment firm consolidation waiver which took effect on 25 
September 2014

For the purpose of this document, references to one gender include the other gender and 
references to the singular include the plural. 




